r % Montecito Sanitary District

= - =

l = 1042 Monte Cristo Lane A Public Service Agency Phone: (805) 969-4200
d Santa Barbara, CA 93108 wWww.montsan.org
f--""\"":.c:"\ -/ i — e

BOARD PACKET

For the Special Board Meeting of

Thursday, June 15, 2023

L. AGENDA . e R R R Rt e R R e R Re e r e R nrenrenre s 2
2. STAFF REPORT - DISCUSSION ON NEXT STEPS ON MSD/MWD DRAFT

CONSOLIDATION REPORT ..ottt 4

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 1 of 251


https://www.montsan.org/files/40704f473/Agenda+2023-06-15+Special+Mtg.pdf
https://www.montsan.org/files/40704f473/Agenda+2023-06-15+Special+Mtg.pdf

r % Montecito Sanitary District

n-z;’ £'- 1042 Monte Cristo Lane A Public Service Agency Phone: (805) 969-4200
Santa Barbara, CA 93108 www.montsan.org

- om

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT - 3A

DATE: June 15, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: John Weigold, General Manager

SUBJECT: Next Steps on MSD/MWD Draft Consolidation Report

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board discuss their opinions on the MSD/MWD Draft Consolidation
Report and accompanying Powerpoint Presentation prepared by Raftelis, Inc. and take any such
additional, related action that may be desirable.

ANALYSIS

At the May 17, 2023 General Board Meeting the Board discussed their desire to review the current
Raftelis Materials that were presented at the Montecito Water District’s May 2, 2023 Special
Meeting by Raftelis, the consulting firm hired to complete the Consolidation Feasibility Study.

The Board determined that members should review the materials and come prepared to discuss
and develop a list of questions at a future meeting with Raftelis. It was also noted that the method
of said meeting should be discussed as to whether it should be held in person or remotely via
Zoom.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 2 of 251


https://www.montsan.org/meetings

Montecito Water
and Sanitary
Districts

Special District Collaboration and
Consolidation Study

Revised Draft Report v.3 / April 2023

= RAFTELIS



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 4 of 251



= RAFTELIS

April 19, 2023

Mr. Nick Turner, P.E.
General Manager
Montecito Water District
583 San Ysidro Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93108

Mr. John F. Weigold, IV

General Manager/District Engineer
Montecito Sanitary District

1042 Monte Cristo Lane

Santa Barbara, CA 93108

Subject: Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study

Dear Mr. Turner and Mr. Weigold:

We are pleased to present this third round revised draft report summarizing our analysis of a potential consolidation
of the Montecito Water District and the Montecito Sanitary Districts and reflective of input received from both
Districts as a result of the Joint Committee meeting on February 24, 2023, and comments provided afterward.

This report includes a review of how a potential consolidation would impact areas of governance and staffing,
financial position, and operations and efficiencies. Raftelis reviewed the pros and cons of consolidation and

considered the associated costs from an objective perspective.

We would be happy to present the report. Thank you for the opportunity to work with the Montecito Water District
and the Montecito Sanitary District.

Sincerely,

P “ébmw._) ¢
Rebekka G. Hosken Jim Armstrong
Project Manager Principal Consultant

445 S Figueroa St Suite 1925, Los Angeles, CA 90071
www.raftelis.com
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 5 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 6 of 251



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...t s ssssssss s s nn s e nm s e e e r e e 1
INTRODUCTION. ... s s s s s s s s e e s en s s e m s e em e e mmm e en 4.
BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY. ......cccciireirecirrmnreesirmss s e s enmssemnssenses 4
ABOUT THE MONTECITO WATER DISTRICT ... e e 5
STMUCTUNE ... 6
Staffing....cccoii 8
T Lo = 8
ABOUT THE MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT ...cc.coeeeieee e er e een e 8
STMUCTIUNE ... 10
Staffing....ccccii 1
0o = 12
ABOUT CONSOLIDATION ......cciiriciiiinmecsinrmesiennmss s rnsmas e s s s e snanns 15
ALTERNATIVE COOPERATIVE STRUCTURES SHORT OF
CONSOLIDATION.....ccciieciireiiiisrrmesssasrem s s sn s srmssssenssrnmsssensssnnsssrnnsssnnssrnns 16
CONSOLIDATION.....ccciiiciiriire s resss s mmn e s s en s srmn s senssrnm s semsssnnsssrmnsssnnssrnns 17
GOVERNANCE AND STAFFING ... 21
GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE ........cocccireereeeeee 21
GOVEINANCE ....ouuiniiiiiii R aan 21
Organization StruCture ...........ccccciiiiiiinnin 23
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION ... e e e e 25
Services and Positions.........ccccciii . 25
Consolidated Administration — Interim ... 27
Consolidated Administration — Long Term..........ccccciiiiiiiinninnnnnnns 30
TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS ... e e e er e en e 32
Services and POSItioNS.........ccccciiiini - 32
Consolidated Treatment and Field Operations - Interim ..........ccccoviiiciiiieccccecnecene, 35
Consolidated Treatment and Field OPerations — Long Term............cccoeeiininninniiiinnnnns 35
ENGINEERING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ... e 37
MONTREITO WATER ANDSANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 7 of 251



Y=Y YA o2 =X3E= 1 [ BN o =3 1 A o] o 1= 37

Consolidated Engineering - INterim ... 38
Consolidated Engineering — Long term ..o 39
IMPACT OF POTENTIAL CONSOLIDATION ON ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND STAFFING ... s e e e e 41
Consolidated Agency — Interim ..o 41
Consolidated Agency — LONg TerM.....cocuieeeeiiiiniiiiinrieess st s smmsssssssnns 43
FINANCIAL POSITION. ... e e s et s rn s enemne e nm e mm e 47
BOOKKEEPING...... e rrrrecs s s s s st st ne s sba s s s em e mn s nan s e e mm s en s e nnns 47
REVENUES AND EXPENSES ... v s sc s er s en s enmm s s e e 48
SALARIES AND BENEFITS ...t rec s srmi s n s s e s e e e 53
Governing Board Compensation............cccciiiiiinnnin s 53
Staff Compensation ... ——————— 53
Collective Bargaining .........ccccciiiiiiinnnsiinnsnnn e 55
Staff Benefits........ccoooiiiiii 55
INVESTMENTS ...t rsc s esr e n s s sna s s e e s em s srmn s en s srmm s snnnsnnns 57
DEBT AND DEBT SERVICE........ .. rres s ss s er s e en e e e 58
WORKING CAPITAL AND RESERVES......... i rreree e er e ena e 59
OPERATIONS AND EFFICIENCIES..........oom e e e 63
ECONOMIES OF SCALE.......... e s s s se s s e e e r e s e e 63
PROVISION OF RECYCLED WATER ... rrrrec s en e e e 63
N O | I T 64
MWD FacilitieS.....cuuuummmmmmmnemmmmenmnnnneinienennnnee s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s nnnnnnnnnnns 64
LS I = Lo 65
Consolidated Facilities...........cccciiiiiiiininiinin 66
THE FEASIBILITY OF CONSOLIDATION........ccciiimrcrirrreserenasn e e 69
INTERIM CONSOLIDATION........ oo rr e e sr s se s s en e e e 69
LONG TERM CONSOLIDATION .......ciiiiiiieircecsrere e sr e s e snan s e s e e ennn e 71
POTENTIAL FOR COLLECTIVE SAVINGS..........rcrrece e ereen e 73
HURDLES TO PROGRESS ........co it rrrrse s e sn s se s e en s e 75
MONTEGITO WATER ANDSANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 8 of 251



DATA GAPS ... s s e e e e e e an e an raanraanreanreanreanreanrenns 76
CONCLUSION ... .ot rr s s s s e s s s s a s mn e an s ras sensrennsnnnsnnnes 79
List of Tables
Table 1: MWD COre SEIVICES ....cucuiiieiiiiiiiiiniininsreessreesssrnasssrnnsssrnnsssbnnsssennsssennssrennssrennssrennsnns 6
Table 2: MWD Authorized Staffing Level, FY2018 to FY2022........ccoociiiiiiiiiinneeennnennns 8
Table 3: MWD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2022 ..........coocciiiiiiiiimnnneeinnnennns 8
Table 4: MSD COre SEIVICES ....ciieuiiieiiiiciiriiiernessreessrems s reasssrenssssensssrnnsssrnnsssannsssrnnssrennssrennsns 9
Table 5: MSD Authorized Staffing Level, 2017 t0 2021 ..........cccmriiiiiiiieeieeeeerereesin e s e 12
Table 6: MSD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2023 ............cccccciiiiiniinmisnnnninnnnnnen, 13
Table 7: MWD, MSD, and Consolidated Personnel by Function..........ccccccccceiiiiiimmnnnennnnnnn. 24
Table 8: MWD Revenues FY2020-FY2022.........ccoomiieimiiceiesineenssssesmnssssesnmsssssssnmnssssesnmsssssees 48
Table 9: MSD Revenues FY2020 — FY2022 .........coooeiiimiemmeerrecnsssrssmsssssessmsssssssnmsssssssnmnssssees 49
Table 10: MWD Expenses FY2020 t0 FY2022..........ccoeoiiieceiiemricesnsrrscassssessmsssssessmssssssssmnsssnees 50
Table 11: MSD Expenditures FY2020 to FY2022.........cooooiiiieceiisiremenssersmssssessmssssessmsssnnees 52
Table 12: Staff Benefits Comparison ...t 55
Table 13: MWD Investment Portfolio........cciuiiiiiiii i cvir e s s s s s e s emnas 57
Table 14: MSD Investment Portfolio...........o oo reer e r e s s e e e 57
Table 15: MWD Debt Obligations...........cccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiis s es s s s s s e s s s s e s s s s s sssssssssssssssssnes 58
Table 16: MSD Debt Obligations..............ccccoiiiiiii 59
Table 17: Consolidated MWD and MSD Debt Obligations..............cccceiiiinnn, 59
Table 18: MWD FY2022 Committed RESErves.......ccccccoiiiiiceiiiireccssrrs s er e s e s smsss s e s smmssnnees 60
Table 19: MSD FY2021 Designated RESErves ...........cccooiimmmmmmmmiinnininnnnneessss s snssssssssns 60
Table 20: Pros and Cons of MWD and MSD FacilitieS.....c...ccuemeiiiimececniirececs s erececs e er e 67
Table 21: Pros and Cons of Consolidation...........cccccceiiiieceiiiiieceiniirecess e rsesss s rsmsssnsens 73
Table 22: Net Savings (Costs) of Consolidation over 10 Years.........ccccccevvvvvvvivrvreenennnnnenenens 75
Table 23: Phased Consolidation Plan..........c. i sreeerrses s s e e s e enas 77
Table 24: Detailed Personnel Information MWD and MSD Positions.......ccccoceiienciiicnnneee. 83

List of Figures

Figure 1:
Figure 2:
Figure 3:
Figure 4:
Figure 5:
Figure 6:
Figure 7:
Figure 8:

MWD Boundaries Map.........cccoouiimmmmmmmmnnsniiirirnnsssssss s sssssssssssssss s s sssmsssssssssssssnnns 5
MWD Organizational Chart, FY2022..........ccccoiiiiiiiieminn s 7
MSD Boundary Map......ccceuuciiiniimimnnemssssnssiensssssassssnss s ssssnmssssssssssssssssnnnsssssssssssnnnns 9
MSD Organizational Chart ... 1

Current MWD Administrative Support Structure ..o, 25
Current MSD Administrative Support Structure ..., 27
Potential Interim Consolidated Administrative Support Structure....................... 29
Potential Long Term Consolidated Administrative Support Structure................ 30

MONT, CI'EO YV%FE% ANB.%AF‘{ITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY
ontecito sanitary DIstriC

Special

Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 9 of 251



Figure 9: Current MSD Operations Structure...........ccomimeciiiiin s 32

Figure 10: Current MWD Operations Structure.........ccoummeeciiiiiiiimmnnc s 34
Figure 11: Interim Treatment and Operations Structure ...........ccoiiciiiiin 35
Figure 12: Long Term Operations StruCture ..........ccccceeeemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeeeeesssenssesssessssssssnsnnnes 36
Figure 13: Current MWD Engineering Structure ..........ccccceeememmmmmmmmmmmmmmemenmnenneeseessesssssssssnnne 37
Figure 14: Current MSD Engineering Structure ..........ccccceeememmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeeenesnesesesseeessseneens 38
Figure 15: Potential Interim Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure ................... 38
Figure 16: Potential Long Term Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure............. 40
Figure 17: Potential Interim Consolidated Structure............cccooiiin i 42
Figure 18: Potential Long-Term Organizational Structure.........ccoomiiiiiininiiinnns 44
Figure 19: Aerial Photo of MWD Administrative Office ..........ccoommmmsiiiiiinccnnes 64
Figure 20: Aerial Photo of MSD Administrative Office ......ccccccrrmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmsineeeeneeeenee 66
Figure 21: Potential Interim Agency Structure.............ccccmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeneeee st 70
Figure 22: Potential Long Term Agency StrucCture ..........ccceevveimemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmemmseesesssnesessesnsennne 72
Figure 23: Phased Consolidation Plan in Graphic FOrm.........ccccccceemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmnneenenennnnnnnn. 77
Figure 24: MWD Boundary Map.........cccouiimmmmmmmmunsninniirrnsssssassssseessssnnssssssssssmsssmssssssssssssnnnn 91
Figure 25: MSD Boundary Map.........cccouiimmmmmmmmmnininriirnsnnss s ssssssssssssssssssssnsssnssssssssssssnnnn 93
List of Appendices

APPENDIX A: Current MWD & MSD POSItioNs .....cccccccmmmiiiiinniienn s 81
APPENDIX B: Map of MWD & MSD Boundaries .........ccccerrriiiiniiisnmmennnsninnssssssssssssss s ssssssssnnes 89
APPENDIX C: Salary RaANQeS ..cuuuuuuuuuuurmmmrrsrmmsnnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnne 94
MONT, 8h‘[é)ci¥\cl)ﬁs'l'aEnlﬁaN\lBiS§ﬁ8{ITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 10 of 251



Executive Summary

The Montecito Water District (MWD) and the Montecito Sanitary District (MSD) formed as special districts under
State of California law to provide water and wastewater services, respectively. Each is governed by a five-member
Board of Directors, which appoints a General Manager to manage the operations of each district. Each serves largely
the same service area and customers with the exception of Summerland (MSD) and a few minor boundary
differences. MWD and MSD engaged Raftelis in April 2022 to study the feasibility of consolidating the two districts.

The districts have expressed interest in evaluating consolidation for several reasons. First, there is a desire by both
organizations and their elected Boards of Directors to optimize the use of resources. As drought conditions become
more frequent and severe in California, the potential in using Montecito Sanitary District’s effluent wisely, including
pursuing beneficial reuse, is increasingly important. The current evaluation of recycled water options by the districts
is an example of the commitment to using resources wisely. Second, there is interest in providing customers with the
best level of service in the most cost-effective manner. Each district has pursued this on their own, but the economies
of scale of a combined entity may create additional opportunities. Third, the State of California, as stated in various
versions of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act, has encouraged reviews of special
districts in California to ensure the “logical formation and determination of local agency boundaries...”! in order to
ensure constituents are getting the best service at the lowest practical cost. Evaluating consolidation aligns with this
statewide initiative. Consolidation, however, must be weighed against a potential perceived loss of local control and
dilution of services that could result from combining formerly separate organizations. Consolidation costs and
impacts on staff time, focus, and delays for other projects during any transition must also be considered.

A consolidation or reorganization of MWD and MSD is feasible and can be achieved, resulting in one organization
managing potable water and wastewater services for the community. This organizational approach is not unique,
and there are many examples of consolidated operations in California, both as special districts and within municipal
organizations. In fact, the City of Santa Barbara uses this approach in its management of its water resources. While
these programs can also be implemented through other mechanisms such as forming a JPA, utilizing a single
organization to move forward on these endeavors ensures a unified approach and helps to avoid potential future
organizational conflicts that can arise due to conflicting missions and priorities, and as Boards and management
changes over time.

There are benefits and drawbacks to consolidation of the two districts, as shown in the table below and discussed
later in this report.

. Pos Cons

e Costs of remodeling and physical co-location

o Better integrated water policies and approach e Cost of new shared systems such as financial

e Unified governing board management software

e Some savings through potential elimination of one e Staff time to review policies and procedures and to
position merge operations (especially administrative)

o Greater staff specialization e Impacts on staff morale and retention

e Some economies of scale through shared contracting, o Diverts staff capacity from other initiatives
shared resources (tools, chemicals), and coordination e Perceived or real loss of local control and dilution of

services

! California Government Code, Division 3. Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, §56001

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 1
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 11 of 251



The greatest benefit that would accrue from consolidation would be a unified governing body that could ensure
integrated water policies. This would be especially helpful should there be a decision to move forward with a large
recycled water program that would involve significant capital expenditures, changes in water use policies, and
allocation of costs to users through rate increases. Other potential benefits include some limited potential financial
savings, the possibility of having greater staff specialization at the administrative level, and some savings through
shared contracts and software systems.

Potential drawbacks to consolidation include the costs of aligning staff salaries and benefits, physical moves and co-
location, and new shared systems such as financial management software. Significant staff time would be dedicated
to managing the efforts needed to merge the two districts and it is unclear how time-sensitive projects could also be
accomplished. Administrative facilities would need to be combined and perhaps expanded, resulting in additional
costs. Existing staff could be disenfranchised and morale negatively impacted; in any significant restructuring, it is
expected some subset of staff could choose to move elsewhere rather than deal with the uncertainty of major change.
The combined entity could lose some talent in a job market where competition for skilled utility operators is stiff.
This risk must be purposefully acknowledged and planned for due to its potential to delay or eliminate many of the
potential benefits that might be achieved by consolidation.

As a percentage of total operating costs, the potential for cost savings is limited and in itself probably does not justify
consolidation. Both Districts are currently managed well and appropriately staffed; if anything, current staffing is
lean and there are already some areas of unmet need due to a lack of staffing, particularly in human resources,
conservation, and recycled water. There would be some one-time costs associated with the transition, but these may
be offset by potential long-term savings. Costs associated with consolidation include preparation of an application to
the Santa Barbara County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCQO), new or expanded software/licensing,
legal fees, potential facility renovations and/or expansions, and the time associated with staff merging the two
organizations. Over the first 10 years, the financial impact of consolidation is a savings between $370,000 and
$655,640, with the biggest variables being the cost of potential salary and benefits parity, retention or elimination of
the second General Manager position as a second Assistant General Manager, and potential addition of two new
positions, a Human Resources Specialist and Control System Technician, as recommended. Costs are also dependent
on the level of any renovations done to facilities; while costs may be contained in the near-term, some expansion to
accommodate staff growth may be necessary over time and such costs have not been included here. A combined
district may experience increased costs in the long term, particularly with implementation of recycled water, which
would require additional FTEs for the treatment, distribution, management and use of this new water source. Other
operational changes associated with expansion of in-house laboratory services and water conservation could improve
service levels but might require increased staffing; this is the case whether or not the two agencies consolidate.

Operational efficiencies resulting from consolidation are primarily limited to the administrative and engineering
functions. Because the primary operations and maintenance activities associated with water and sewer provision
would remain relatively unaffected by consolidation, little impact would occur in the bulk of either district’s treatment
or field operations. Combining the districts could potentially streamline administration and engineering activities
and may realize some savings in the future if the consolidated entity adopted a leaner staffing arrangement which,
while financially attractive, is not recommended. Should all the current positions be retained in the long term with
some reclassifications, the consolidated district may be able to enhance current service levels by allowing
administrative staff to focus on specific subject areas rather than wearing “multiple hats” as is now done in each
utility individually, and by allowing water and sewer engineering staff to collaborate. While MWD has a
communications specialist on staff, MSD does not and could benefit from access to this expertise. Service levels can
also be improved by adding expertise that was not economical in one utility.

2 MONTEC|TQ WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
I&ontem{o%anltaryRDs”lct

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 12 of 251



Raftelis suggests that the consolidation, if desired, be implemented in a phased manner. The first phase, the interim
period, would simply merge the two organizations without any significant changes in staffing and largely maintain
status quo activities. The Santa Barbara County LAFCO would work with the districts to either merge MSD into
MWD, a process known as “reorganization” (as defined in Government Code §56073), given that water districts in
California have an existing option to provide wastewater services and MWD is a larger organization, or create a new
Community Services District, which is referred to as “consolidation” (as defined in Government Code §56030).
There are pros and cons to each approach. The interim period is expected to take 3-5 years. During this interim
transition period financial, governance, and other areas would need to be aligned to develop a deeper understanding
of the strengths and weaknesses of various options. Decisions could then be made about long-term staffing, combined
facilities, and streamlining policies and procedures to assure the best chance for success.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 3
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 13 of 251



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 14 of 251



Introduction
Background and Methodology

The MWD and the MSD, collectively referred to as “districts” were formed as special districts under State of
California law. MWD was formed in 1921 and its mission is to “provide an adequate and reliable supply of high-
quality water to the residents of Montecito and Summerland, at the most reasonable cost.”? MWD is governed by a
five-member Board of Directors who appoint a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the District.
MSD was formed in 1947 and its mission statement is, “a community service commitment to protect public health
and safety and to preserve the natural environment through the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater in
the most cost-effective way possible.”3 MSD is also governed by a five-member Board of Directors, which appoints
a General Manager to manage the operations of the District.

Collaboration with other entities has been a longstanding value at MWD and part of their history dating back to
formation in 1921. The MWD collaborated with the City of Santa Barbara on Jameson Lake in the late 1920s, with
all water purveyors on the south coast for construction and operation of the Cachuma Project in the 1950s, and with
many water purveyors in the County on the State Water Project in the 1990s. In 1995, MWD took over water service
for the community of Summerland when the Summerland Water District was dissolved. The service area was
annexed by MWD. Wastewater services in Summerland are provided by the Summerland Sanitary District. In 2018,
MWD became the agency responsible for managing the area’s groundwater resources and operates the Montecito
Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA).# In 2020, MWD entered into a water supply
agreement with the City of Santa Barbara to share capacity of the City’s desalination plant, which ensures a long
term rainfall independent water supply for the communities of Montecito and Summerland. Currently both districts
are actively collaborating on the evaluation of recycled water services and have hired Carollo Engineers to study the
options.

In April 2022, MWD and MSD collaborated to jointly engage Raftelis to study the potential consolidation of the
two districts with knowledge that State regulatory changes and a push toward a “OneWater” concept (the entire
process from water sourcing to wastewater treatment to recycled use) will require increased collaboration in the
future. The goals of this study included:

e  Articulating the pros and cons of consolidation

e Assessing the anticipated costs and cost savings of consolidation

o Assessing and quantifying operational efficiencies of consolidation, if any

¢ Evaluating the advantages, disadvantages, opportunities, and limitations of consolidation

e Determining if there is a business case to affirm the two districts can and should consolidate.

In order to do so, Raftelis has simulated the likely steps and results of a consolidation effort in order to determine its
impacts on both current agencies and a new consolidated one. Where possible, estimated costs and potential cost
savings associated with the creation of a single entity are quantified.

The project team reviewed background information and data provided by both districts including services, finances,
organizational charts, staffing history, job responsibilities, and other relevant information. The project team
interviewed the General Managers and several Board of Directors members, as well as the LAFCO in Santa Barbara
County and the districts’ legal firm retained for this evaluation, Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC. The

2 Montecito Water District, Mission & History,
3 Montecito Sewer District, About the District,
4 Montecito Groundwater Basin GSA, Mission & Purpose,

4 MONTEC|TQ WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
Iﬂontecn o%anltarthMs#lct

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 15 of 251



interviews and review of data helped the project team understand the history and context for the current operations
and structure, and assess the likely benefits and challenges associated with potential consolidation.

About the Montecito Water District

The MWD manages water resources and delivers water to customers in the communities of Montecito and
Summerland with a population served of approximately 11,817.° The water treatment and distribution system
includes approximately 4,630 service connections, 114 miles of water main, nine pump stations, 12 groundwater
wells, and two water treatment plants.® The MWD is also responsible for Juncal Dam, which was built in 1930 and
created Jameson Lake, one of the water sources for MWD.” MWD bills customers monthly for water service based
on metered usage.

The MWD service area is approximately 15.4 square miles in the southeast portion of Santa Barbara County. The
MWD service area encompasses all but a small portion of the MSD’s service area in addition to the community of
Summerland to the southeast and portions of unincorporated Santa Barbara County east of Ladera Lane to the south
of the Los Padres National Forest boundary, as well as a section west of Westmont Road up to the Los Padres
National Forest Boundary. Figure 1 shows a map from the Santa Barbara County Surveyor of MWD’s service area
shaded in blue. A larger version is provided as Appendix B to this report.

Figure 1: MWD Boundaries Map

Montecito Water District
Compiled by of the County . ol 3018

T, Pages 267291, 11771901

by ¥
Sphere 11/2012 Lant Acson: 34, Bella Vists Annesation. LAFCD 10-01. 342010 o

5 Montecito Water District, FY2022 Adopted Budget, Page 5

 Montecito Water District (MWD), District Facilities Overview, https://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/service-
facilities/

" Montecito Water District (MWD), FY2022 Adopted Budget, Pages 2 and 7.

. . s SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 5
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 16 of 251



Table 1 below provides an overview of the primary activities of MWD staff, associated with treating and supplying
water. It is not intended to be all-inclusive, but rather a summary of the general activities performed by MWD staff.

Table 1: MWD Core Services

Department Lo .
Function/Division Activities and Service Levels

e Manage and direct MWD staff to meet the Board of Director’s goals and
objectives

Management/ e Ensure compliance with regulatory and reporting requirements
Administration e Advertise, recruit, and hire staff
e Prepare board packets and agendas
e Maintain records
e  Provide public information to customers and the community
Communication e Respond to questions from customers
.. . e Provide education for conservation issues, techniques, and strategies
Administration . . . . o . .
e Provide engineering expertise and support to District capital projects
Engineering o Develop growth and renewal schedules and plans for horizontal and
vertical infrastructure
. e Develop and monitor an annual budget
Finance and Lo .
Customer Service . Maln'taln general ledger, A/P, A/R, and purchasing
e  Provide Payroll
e Provide education and outreach on MWD to the public
Public Information o Assist MWD staff with formatting and content of communications
e Develop relationship with local press

e Conduct regular proactive maintenance of water mains, valves,
. hydrants, and other appurtenances
System Maintenance .
Water Distribution o Respond to water line breaks and leaks
Perform flushing of water mains to ensure water quality

Fleet Maintenance e Perform maintenance on District owned vehicles and equipment

Operate the Bella Vista and Doulton Water Treatment Plants

e  Monitor the Doulton Tunnel, Jameson Lake, groundwater wells, and
Treatment Plant other water sources
Operations e  Conduct regular water quality tests to ensure water meets acceptable

Water Treatment

and Production drinking standards

e Inspect and maintain wellhouses, treatment plants, and pump stations
Inspect and maintain the Juncal Dam

Report inspections to the State of California

e Perform routine preventative maintenance

Dam Maintenance

STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors appoints a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the MWD. The General
Manager also serves as the Board Secretary. The MWD consists of three workgroups all reporting to the General
Manager: water production and treatment, water distribution, and administrative support. Additionally, MWD
General Manager serves as the General Manager for the Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability
Agency (GSA), which consists of a fourth and separate workgroup for groundwater. As of the FY2022 adopted
budget, the MWD has a total of 28 employees. The following figure shows MWD'’s organizational structure based
on 2022 staffing levels.

6 MONTEC|TQ WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
Iﬂontecn o%anltarthMs#lct

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 17 of 251



Water District
Board of Directors

General Manager Administrative

Assistant
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
Public Information Asst. General .
) Manager / Business Manager
Officer ) h
1.0FTE Engineering 1.0 FTE
’ 1.0 FTE
I
I I I
. P Treatment & Sr. Office
\Water CorIsgrvatlon D|str|but|on Production Technician / Staff
Specialist Superintendent : H
10ETE 10 FTE Superintendent Accountant
’ ’ 1.0 FTE 1.0FTE
I I
Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker Treatment Chief Eng|rIeer|ng Groungwgter Office Technician I
Operator 1.0 FTE 1 Operator Assistant Specialist 20FTE
1.0 FTE ’ 1.0FTE 2.0FTE 1.0 FTE ’
[
Distribution Control _System Treatment Plant Financial Analyst /
Technician / -
Operator Operator — Operator o IT Specialist
6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 20FTE 1.0 FTE
Fleet Technician /
Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 2: MWD Organizational Chart, FY2022

The Treatment and Production Department is led by the Treatment & Production Superintendent with oversight and
support from the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager. The Treatment & Production Superintendent
supervises three full time operators along with a Control System Technician/Operator which support the operation
of two treatment plants: the Bella Vista Treatment Plant and the Doulton Treatment Plant, including the operation
of twelve groundwater wells and associated localized treatment systems, and ten water storage reservoirs. The Dam
Caretaker is responsible for maintenance and upkeep of the Juncal Dam which forms Jameson Lake, one of the
primary water sources for the District.

The Distribution Department is led by the Distribution Superintendent with oversight and support from the Assistant
General Manager/Engineering Manager. The Distribution Superintendent supervises a full time Distribution Chief
Operator, six Distribution Operators and a Fleet Technician/Distribution Operator. The seven full time operators
maintain and repair MWD’s water mains, valves, pump stations, hydrants, pressure reducing stations, and other
infrastructure. Fleet maintenance is also part of this workgroup, which is supported by a Fleet
Technician/Distribution Operator who is cross trained to perform some Operator duties.

Administrative support includes a Public Information Officer (PIO) responsible for communications with customers
and the public. A Water Conservation Specialist is responsible for educating the public on water conservation issues.
Clerical, financial, and information technology related tasks are led by a Business Manager and supported by four
full time employees who provide finance and accounting, human resources, and board agenda and packets services
to the District.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 7
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 18 of 251



STAFFING

Between FY2018 and FY2022, MWD staffing has increased by two full time equivalents (FTEs). The additional
positions include an Assistant Engineer, and subsequent to the GSA formation, a Groundwater Specialist. These
positions were needed to improve responsiveness and customer communications, and respond to new groundwater
regulations. The following table shows MWD staffing between FY2018 and FY2022.

Table 2: MWD Authorized Staffing Level, FY2018 to FY20228

Percent Change
FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2018 to
FY2022
26.0 26.0 28.0 28.0 28.0

Full Time 0
Equivalents 2%

BUDGET

The MWD adopted budget has increased by approximately 32% between FY2018 and FY2022. This is in part driven
by the cost of a long-term water supply agreement (WSA) with the City of Santa Barbara to receive an allotment of
drinking water from their Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility.? This agreement provides 1,430 acre-feet of water
annually for 50 years. The following table shows the adopted budget by expenditure category for FY2018 to FY2022.

Table 3: MWD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY20221°

Percent

Category FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Change
Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget FY2019 to

FY2023

Operating Expenditures $15,553,982 $15,633,053 $15,721,945 $17,717,256 $19,833,249 27.5%

Depreciation Expense 1,183,710 1,198,312 1,088,741 1,156,535 1,152,000 -2.7%

Non-Operating ) o
Expenditures 1,411,401 1,549,850 1,082,134 1,203,196 667,427 52.7%

Total Expenditures $18,149,093 | $18,381,215 | $17,892,820 | $20,076,987 | $21,652,676 19.3%

About the Montecito Sanitary District

The MSD provides collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater to residents within the Montecito community
with an approximate population served of approx. 9,000.!! The wastewater collection system includes five pump
stations, 75.2 miles of sewer main, and a wastewater treatment plant with a rated capacity of 1.5 million gallons per
day (MGD). There has been significant support over recent years by property owners and the Board of Directors
(BoD)to extend the MSD sewer system to allow for septic to sewer conversions. Even with expansion of more
connections, the District’s flows at the treatment plant are at lows not seen for multiple decades.

The MSD is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected to four-year terms. MSD serves 3,185 properties.'?
Billing for wastewater services is done through an annual fee that is levied as part of each parcels’ property tax bill;
this is processed and collected by Santa Barbara County on behalf of the District.

8 Montecito Water District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets, https://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/financials/
° Montecito Water District, FY2022 Adopted Budget, Page 7

10 Montecito Water District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets, https://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/financials/
' Montecito Sanitary District, About the District, https://www.montsan.org/about-the-district

12 Montecito Sanitary District (MSD), About the District, https://www.montsan.org/about-the-district

8 MlaNTEC' T%WATE A{\ID SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 19 of 251



The MSD service area covers approximately 9.3 square miles in southeast Santa Barbara County. MSD’s service
area is mostly coterminous with MWD’s boundaries except for the community of Summerland to the southeast and
portions of unincorporated Santa Barbara County east of Ladera Lane and north of the Los Padres National Forest
boundary, as well as a section west of Westmont Road up to the Los Padres National Forest Boundary. Figure 3
shows a map from the Santa Barbara County Surveyor of MSD'’s service area shaded in pink. A larger version is
provided as Appendix B to this report.

Figure 3: MSD Boundary Map

7]
“:\M;‘l"i?.["

—_—

Viola £y

g

-~ ;

H ~N .
s
};i\_' \ T 'j

. \\\ ¢
.'}.”‘ sﬁfﬁ'.g,’:,ln—-ﬁ‘“;c’s & %”b 3 \3:_ ?
: i 2\
X 5

;1
o
g—nmﬂ_.mpm

4
i

J | A
2, Montecito Sanitary District Legend =
% c.m«‘n‘..,‘r. of 7 GRAPHIC SCALE — Frrenays Sectioni 3 spheve of influsnce '\' 2
[ rormed 7211900 o Haghwnyt ity of Santa Barbars I reemation i Lo
S 0 0 os 1 — Rty wdary B Arwesation ¥
= Radwoach wi Fosest (2] Detachenent p iy~
Mt [ i b,

The following table provides an overview of core services provided by MSD. This table is not intended to be all-
inclusive, but rather a summary of the core services provided by MSD staff.

Table 4: MSD Core Services

Depar_tmen? . . Program Area Activities and Service Levels
Function/Division

e Manage and direct MSD staff to meet the Board of Directors goals and
objectives
Develop and monitor an annual budget
Ensure compliance with regulatory and reporting requirements

e Permit development in accordance with District policies

e Provide engineering expertise and support to District capital projects

Engineering e Develop growth and renewal schedules and plans for horizontal and
vertical infrastructure

e Operate the Wastewater Treatment Plant to meet all regulatory
requirements of the District's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System

Management/

el s Administration

Wastewater Treatment Plant
Treatment Operations

. . — SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 9
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 20 of 251



Depar_tmen? . . Program Area Activities and Service Levels
Function/Division

Facilities Maintenance

Lab and Pretreatment

Wastewater Collection System
Collection Maintenance ¢
STRUCTURE

Monitor the treatment plant effluent into the Pacific Ocean
Perform maintenance and repairs as needed

Operate District’s recycled water pilot plant

Perform routine and proactive facility maintenance

Complete specialized HVAC, electrical, and plumbing maintenance
Conduct regular water quality tests to comply with State treatment
standards

Manage pretreatment program with applicable customers

Comply with Waste Discharge Requirements General Order

Conduct regular maintenance of sewer mains including televising and
cleaning

Provide routine inspection and maintenance of lift stations

Oversee lateral inspection program to comply with state requirements
to prevent private sewer lateral discharges (PLSDs)

Respond to blockages and report sanitary sewer overflows per
regulatory requirements

The Board of Directors appoints a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the MSD. The MSD consists
of five workgroups all reporting to the General Manager: collections, treatment, engineering, lab and pretreatment,
and administrative support. The MSD has a total of 18 employees. The following figure shows MSD’s organizational

structure based on 2022 staffing levels.

onteci
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 21 of 251

10 (o] TE?I oW AT%} ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
o Sanitary Distric



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0 FTE
I
Laboratory & . . ) Treatment Supt./ o
Pretreatment Engineering CoII.ectlons Chief Plant D.IST.I'ICt
Manager Manager Superintendent Operator Administrator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
[ : 1
Collections Chief Maintenance
Operator IV Mechanic
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
[ [
Collections Facilities Wastewater Accounting &
Maintenance Treatment Plant Administrative
Operator L .
4.0 FTE Technician Operator Assistant
' 1.0 FTE 40FTE 1.0 FTE

Figure 4: MSD Organizational Chart

MSD operations is split into three workgroups: Collections, Treatment Plant, and Maintenance. Collection staff
maintain the wastewater mains and lift stations that collect wastewater from customers to the treatment plant; a total
of six FTEs support this work. Treatment plant staff operate the District’s wastewater treatment plant and perform
maintenance as needed; a total of five FTEs support this work. The Chief Maintenance Mechanic and Facilities
Maintenance Technician, two FTEs, support the Collection and Treatment Superintendents with more complex
maintenance at the treatment plant and lift stations, as well as maintain the facilities.

Engineering support is provided by the Engineering Manager, who provides engineering expertise for planning and
execution of capital projects including new construction, rehabilitation, and replacement.

The Lab and Pretreatment Manager is responsible for conducting testing to support the regulatory monitoring and
process control analysis for the wastewater treatment plant and ensure the MSD is complying with its National
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit requirements and State regulations. This also includes
managing the District’s source control program for Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG).

Administrative support includes a District Administrator and Clerk of the Board as well as an Accounting and
Administrative Assistant. These positions are responsible for clerical, financial, human resources, clerk of the board
duties, permit review and coordination, and information technology related tasks.

STAFFING

Since 2017, staffing for MSD has only increased by one FTE. In 2018 an additional Collection System Operator was
created to support the maintenance needed on the pipelines and lift stations. The following table shows the District’s
authorized staffing level from 2017 to 2021 according to data reported to the California State Controller.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 11
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 22 of 251



Table 5: MSD Authorized Staffing Level, 2017 to 202113

. Percent
18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0

Full Time )
Equivalents 170 6%

BUDGET

The annual budget for MSD has increased by 24% between FY 2018 and FY2022. In addition, input costs like the
cost of fuel and electricity have risen by 41% over the last five fiscal years. The following table shows the expenditures
by category according to adopted budget documents and annual audited financial statements.

13 California State Controller, Government Compensation in California, Montecito Sanitary District,
https://publicpay.ca.gov/Reports/SpecialDistricts/Special District.aspx?entityid=2017

12 (0] TE?I oW AT? ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 23 of 251



Table 6: MSD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2023'4

Percent

Cateas FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 N FY2023 Change
gory Actual Actual Actual (unaudited) Budget FY2019 to

FY2023

Operating Expenditures $5,386,384 $5,832,724 $5,897,097 $4,201,370 $5,160,763 -4.2%
Non-Operating Expenditures 245,318 245,012 866,091 674.780 251,500 2.5%
Capital Contributions® 6,979,983 42,479 154,807 123,068 4,980,500 -28.7%

Total Expenditures $12,611,685 | $6,120,215 $6,051,904 m $10,392,763 -17.6%

4 Montecito Sanitary District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets and FY18 to FY2021 Annual Financial Reports.
15 FY2018-19 MSD capital contributions included the Miramar Lift Station and Force Main and sewer main extension reimbursements.

. . s SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 13
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 24 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

14 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 25 of 251



About Consolidation

Any potential consolidation of the Districts would require approval by the Santa Barbara County LAFCO. LAFCOs
were created by the State of California in response to rapid growth experienced in the 20" century and the urban
sprawl that resulted.'® Each LAFCO works with residents, the County, and any cities and special districts in their
region on jurisdictional issues to discourage urban sprawl and encourage the orderly formation of local agencies.!”
A regular part of a LAFCQO’s duties is to review special districts to ensure services are being provided in a cost
effective and efficient manner. LAFCOs have the authority to approve and manage consolidation efforts.
Applications for consolidation or collaboration need to be submitted to the local LAFCO for review, public
engagement, and approval. LAFCOs are able to work with agencies to provide guidance and temporary rules to
facilitate consolidation. This can include arrangements for transitioning Board of Directors seats and finances
between agencies, or consolidating them in the case of a combination of two or more entities. As part of a
consolidation or collaboration process, local agencies would work closely with their County LAFCO.

Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) are prepared by LAFCOs for a variety of purposes, most often as a precursor to
a review of a sphere of influence. California Government Code Section 56430 states that an MSR should include a
review of seven factors with regard to service provision:

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area

2. Location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to

affected spheres of influence

3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies
Financial ability of agencies to provides services
Status and opportunities for shared facilities
Accountability for community service needs, including structure and operational efficiencies
Matters relating to effective or efficient service delivery as required by policy

NS e

Raftelis has consulted with Santa Barbara County LAFCO and other LAFCO agencies in California on utility
consolidation matters. The Raftelis project team interviewed Santa Barbara County LAFCO staff to discuss and
review consolidation procedures and steps that would be necessary to achieve consolidation, within Santa Barbara
County. Ultimately, a formal application by both agencies would need to be submitted to the Santa Barbara County
LAFCO for review and approval. In addition, before an application is submitted, agencies desiring consolidation
would need to conduct public outreach and meetings with stakeholders.

The Sacramento LAFCO also provided information, which has been included and summarized below:
While the terms “merger,” “combination” and “consolidation” are often used colloquially, in the LAFCO context
there are a number of terms that have specific definitions. The words “combination” or “combined” do not have a
legal definition under LAFCO Law. This stands in contrast to the terms “consolidation” (as defined in Government
Code §56030) and “reorganization” (as defined in Government Code §56073),” which have specific meanings.
Technically, consolidation is when two like agencies — two cities or two special districts -- join together into a single
agency. Reorganization is when one agency is dissolved and annexed by the other. The end results are essentially
the same: one agency assumes the rights, responsibilities, assets, and liabilities from others. For the purposes of
simplicity, this study uses the term “consolidation.”

16 Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission, History,
17 Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission,

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 15
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 26 of 251



In a consolidation, all existing agencies are dissolved and a new one is created in their place with a service area that
encompasses the previous districts’ service areas. The new agency is the successor entity. The process is initiated
when both agencies file an application to LAFCO for consolidation. In a reorganization, one or more districts are
dissolved and one agency annexes all or a portion of their former service areas. An existing agency is the successor
entity. The process initiates when one or more districts applies to dissolve, and the remaining district applies to annex
the service area of the dissolved district(s).

Either district, as well as the County which includes both, can initiate these processes by adopting a resolution of
application and going through the “normal” LAFCO process (which, in reality, can vary across counties). There is
also one provision of State Law that may also be applicable: Government Code §56853(a) states that if the combining
agencies adopt substantially similar resolutions of application, LAFCO must either approve or conditionally approve
the proposal (in other words, LAFCO cannot deny the application). In addition, this section says that the
reorganization could be ordered without an election unless the conditions under GC §57081(b) are met. After the
approval hearing, a second hearing (called a Conducting Authority Hearing or a protest hearing) must be held, but
only to determine if the conditions specified in Government Code §57081(b) exist.

Before reviewing consolidation of the two entities, it is helpful to review other alternative cooperative structures short
of full consolidation.

Alternative Cooperative Structures Short of Consolidation

State law also provides for other structures short of consolidation that the districts could utilize to implement
specific projects or programs, such as the creation of a recycled water program. As discussed in a report issued
by the California State Legislature Local Government Committee in 2007'®, these structures can generally be
described as follows:

Joint Powers Agreement — A joint powers agreement is a formal, legal agreement between two or more public
agencies that share a common power and want to jointly implement programs, build facilities or deliver services.
Under a joint powers agreement, one of the member agencies agrees to be responsible for delivering the program
or constructing facilities. The agreement spells out how the programs will be administered and how the costs
will be allocated to the member agencies. Each joint powers agreement is unique, and can be amended by the
mutual consent of the agencies.

The benefits of a joint powers agreement are as follows:
e Relatively simple to create and operate
e Does not require a separate set of financial statements or independent audit
¢ One agency provides the staff to implement the programs and projects
o Key components of the financial responsibilities of the parties is spelled out in the joint powers agreement

Negative aspects of a joint powers agreement are as follows:
¢ One agency administers the terms of the agreement, limiting the involvement of staff from other agencies
¢ No independent ability to secure long term financing through instruments such as revenue bonds.
e May be difficult to utilize for complex, multi-year projects and programs that have a lot of uncertainty.

18 California State Legislature Local Government Committee, Governments Working Together: A Citizen’s Guide to Joint Power
Agreements, August 2007,

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 27 of 251

16 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r% ni z:’nry"clfs-\:strlc{3



Joint Powers Agencies — A joint powers agency or joint powers authority (JPA) is a new, separate government
agency created by the member agencies, but legally independent from them. Like a joint powers agreement, in
which one agency administers the terms of the agreement, a joint powers agency shares powers common to the
member agencies. The governance structure of the new agency is determined by the agency members and can
vary depending upon the needs of the agencies. Typically, member agencies appoint the individuals who will
sit on the governing board. Members of the governing boards can be staff members, board members, or
separately selected members from the community.

The formation of a joint powers agency is done through the creation of a formal agreement that spells out the
powers of the new agency, financial responsibilities, and the governance structure. Each agency’s governing
body must approve the joint powers agreement. Once the agency is created, a notice must be filed with the
Secretary of State.

Joint powers agencies are legally separate public agencies that can hire staff, obtain financing to build public
facilities, and usually protect member agencies from the agency’s debts or other liabilities. JPAs are frequently
used for financing purposes, since they are able to issue revenue bonds without voter approval.

As a separate agency, the JPA must appoint a treasurer and an auditor. Annual audits must be conducted and
filed with the County Auditor. Additionally, Board of Directors meetings must be conducted in accordance
with the Brown Act.

Benefits of creating a joint powers agency are as follows:
o (Can be used to implement very specific projects and programs that benefit a number of agencies
o Separate financing authority to issue bonds and ability to apply for grants
o Separate staff dedicated to authority projects and programs, and independent of the member agencies

Negative aspects include the following:
o Confusing governance structure that is difficult to understand by the public
e Higher costs due to need to create separate administrative structure, maintain separate financial records,
conduct audits, etc.
e Appointed members of the Board of Directors may have conflicting loyalties when disputes arise

Consolidation

Governance is a key component of any effort toward consolidation. Organizationally, there are two avenues to
combine the services of MSD and MWD, consolidation or reorganization. The end result is essentially the same,
with one agency assuming the rights, responsibilities, assets, and liabilities from the current organizations. Below are
more details on the reorganization and consolidation scenarios:

¢ Reorganization: Dissolution of MSD and annexation by MWD — One district is dissolved, and one agency
annexes their former service area. Under California Water Code, water districts can also perform the services
of a wastewater utility, including constructing, operating, and maintaining wastewater collection, treatment,
and disposal infrastructure.!” Restructuring MWD to merge wastewater services would result in dissolving
MSD. The MWD Board of Directors would remain intact at five members and the current MSD Board
would be dissolved.

19 State of California, California Water Code, Division 13 California Water Districts, Article 5. Sewers

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 17
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 28 of 251



¢ Consolidation: Creation of a new Community Services District — All agencies are dissolved and a new
Community Services Agency is created in their place with a service area that encompasses the previous
districts’ service areas. Under California State Code, Community Services Districts can provide several
municipal services including treating and supplying drinking water and collection and treatment of
wastewater.?° A new Community Services District would require dissolving both MWD and MSD. LAFCO
can approve a larger temporary Board of Directors which would include members of both existing Boards
of Directors. The Board of Directors would become smaller over time as member terms expire.

To initiate the process, the Districts would need to submit resolutions of application to LAFCO which should
include: the actions requested from LAFCO, designated contact person(s), map of the service area(s) affected, what
should be done with zones of benefit or benefit assessments, fiscal considerations, governing considerations, and any
other conditions of approval requested of LAFCO. The Districts would work with LAFCO to review the
consolidation plans and engage with the community to review the proposed organizational structure, impact upon
service delivery, and financial implications. LAFCO would also do an environmental assessment of the proposed
consolidation. Based upon our discussions with LAFCQO, it is believed that the project would either be Categorical
Exempt or receive a Negative Declaration.

As a part of the consolidation process, State Law requires that LAFCO send formal notices to all landowners and
registered voters within the boundaries the district(s) being considered for dissolution or consolidation. The formal
notice would provide landowners and registered voters an opportunity to object to the proposed organizational
change. After objections are received and tabulated, LAFCO would move forward as follows:

o Ifless than 25% of voters or owners by land value object to change, the dissolution/consolidation
would go forward after approval by LAFCO

o Ifbetween 25-50% of registered voters or owners by land value object to the change, LAFCO would
call an election to approve the dissolution/consolidation

e If more than 50% of registered voters or owners by land value object to the change, the
dissolution/consolidation would not go forward and the status quo situation would remain.

Both of the organizational options eventually result in the same outcome, a consolidated organization with a five
member elected Board of Directors overseeing operations. Creating a new Community Services District does allow
for an interim governing structure that allows members from both Boards of Directors to participate in the transition
process until their terms expire.

MWD and MSD would need to consider potential impacts to the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and
the Summerland Sanitary District (SSD). For example, if a decision is made to create a new Community Services
District, the duties of the GSA would need to be assigned to the new agency. We expect that LAFCO and the State
Department of Water Resources would readily approve the new organization taking over the responsibilities of
managing the GSA.

With respect to the SSD, the new agency — whether consolidated entity or CSD -- would need to either exclude the
SSD from its boundaries for purposes of sanitary services, or develop an appropriate services agreement with SSD to
continue to provide these services. Santa Barbara County LAFCO can assist in this process. For simplicity purposes,

20 State of California, Government Code, Division 3 Community Services Districts, Part 3 Purposes Services and
Facilities, Chapter 1 Authorized Services and Facilities, Section 61100(a) and Section 61100(b),

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 29 of 251

18 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r'ﬁ ni aryEIfﬁstrlc{3



the consulting team does not recommend including any consideration of annexing or consolidating with SSD into
the process at this stage.

It would be important for both organizations to communicate regularly about the consolidation process and potential
options being considered. Developing resources like a fact sheet, infographics, or short videos, which can be used in
different communications channels can help proactively address potential questions and drive people to learn more.
It may be appropriate to conduct a survey to gather information and gain insights on the topics that need to be
communicated or methods of communication that would work best. Holding in-person or virtual open houses can
be a good method to humanize the agencies and provide an opportunity for stakeholders to learn more about the
process. In addition, communications around the formation of the Montecito GSA may be helpful in informing
communications for this process.

This report assesses the potential impacts of consolidation by reviewing the likely many changes that would occur
should the two districts consolidate into one. These impacts are evaluated in two scenarios, a short-term, interim
scenario which highlights immediate changes through three years immediately following consolidation, and a long-
term scenario with changes beyond the three years. The next sections will evaluate potential consolidation impacts
in three areas: Governance and Staffing, Financial Position, and Operations.

Should the Districts decide to move forward with consolidation, Raftelis recommends it be accomplished in a phased
approach. This would include an interim phase, of approximately three to five years, and a long term phase, where
full consolidation would be completed.

In the next sections of this report, we discuss the recommended interim and long term organizational structures.
This includes new governance, administrative, and operational structures. From an operational standpoint, there is
little to no impact on day to day operations or in the services provided to customers. In the long term, there will be
some changes to administrative and support functions, as the consolidation is completed. These changes should
provide management with additional “bandwidth” to address future projects such as enhanced recycling programs,
and to improve personnel management and outreach to the community.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 19
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 30 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

20 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 31 of 251



Governance and Staffing

MWD and MSD have separate, although complementary, purposes and missions. Operationally, MSD is focused
on wastewater collection and treatment and MWD is focused on drinking water acquisition, treatment and
distribution. Each organization acts as a separate utility. However, in many communities and jurisdictions water and
wastewater services are provided by a single utility. The benefit of this approach is that it can align CIP planning and
construction, provide some economies of scale for administrative and engineering functions, and provide customers
with a single service provider and bill to pay.

This section will review the potential impacts of consolidation on governance and staffing for each agency.

Governance and Organizational Structure

One key area of consideration is the organizational structure of any consolidated organization and the process to
combine staff of the previously separate organizations. As discussed earlier, the two organizations have separate
operations with little overlap in terms of core water and wastewater activities, but there is opportunity to potentially
improve water resource management, customer service, service levels, and efficiency through creating a combined
utility.

In order to align the two organizations in the least disruptive manner, there would be a need for an interim structure
that aligns similar workgroups and begins melding staff together as the formal steps of consolidation are worked
through. The interim alignment may provide some redundancy and would provide management an opportunity to
assess the actual needs of the newly formed agency before implementing operational changes, for example to reduce,
retain the same or increase staffing. The full efficiency of combining the organization in the interim period may not
be captured initially but it does allow the combined organization to leverage natural staff attrition, allay staff concerns
about job security, and engage in transition activities more effectively.

GOVERNANCE

MWD and MSD are both governed by separate five-member Boards of Directors. Directors are elected at-large from
the District services areas to serve four-year terms with staggered elections occurring every two years in line with the
Statewide General Elections. Prior to the most recent drought, the number of candidates for the elected boards of
both districts was limited, In fact, over several elections cycles from 2008 through 2016, elections were cancelled due
to the lack of competitive contests. However, as drought restrictions were implemented, interest in serving on both
boards increased. As a result, elections to both boards have been more competitive, and interest by community
members in district operations and policies has increased.

Each Board of Directors sets the policy of the organization including approving the annual budget and setting fees
and rates. The Board of Directors for each organization appoints the General Manager to oversee day-to-day
operations while the Board provides policy direction.

If the Districts decide to pursue the creation of a community services district, the Districts will need to work with
LAFCO to determine a transitional arrangement for governance. This might include combining both current Boards
of Directors into one temporarily and reducing the numbers of Directors over time through future election cycles.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 21
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 32 of 251



The consolidated new agency would ultimately have a single five member Board of Directors providing policy
directly over both water and wastewater operations. In the short term, creating a single Board of Directors may mean
additional monthly meetings to cover all topics in a timely manner, but in the long term streamlines governance by
requiring only one agenda, one board packet, and fewer elections, potentially resulting in greater efficiency and some
cost savings for ratepayers.

Creating a new community services district might provide a better transition for the two Boards of Directors to merge
over time because members of both Boards would be involved in decision making in the initial years of the new
organization. However, how this new community district is presented to the community is very important. Because
community service districts can legally provide most municipal services, including public safety and parks and
recreation, there could be the perception in the community that a new community services district is a precursor to
a large organization providing more services, or even possible cityhood. In order to allay these concerns, the Districts
will need to have a strong public outreach campaign to explain that the new District intends to only provide water
and wastewater services.

Probably the most important reason to consider consolidation is that the new governing Board of Directors would
provide unified direction to management concerning overall water supply and treatment policies, including the use
of recycled water. This could be especially important should the districts decide to utilize recycled water as a major
water supply. Specific decisions such as where to locate new facilities and how to allocate costs to ratepayers would
be easier to make with a single Board of Directors.

The concept of OneWater and recycled water is enhanced by having a single vision and policymaking body. A single
policy making body would control all facets of water, from sourcing, treatment of drinking water to treatment of
wastewater and potentially reuse. Because these components naturally inter-relate, having a singular governing body
would enhance planning and coordination. While coordination by separate entities is certainly achievable, it requires
additional work.

One potential negative aspect of this change to a single governing body is the reduction in the number of directly
elected members of the Board of Directors in the community by half which, some could argue, reduces the level of
local governance and stakeholder input. We do not concur with this assessment and have seen many combined water
and wastewater utilities operate well nationwide with no known impacts to local governance or community
participation.

Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)

To comply with the State of California Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, MWD became the Groundwater
Sustainability Agency for the Montecito Groundwater Basin. The Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency was established in 2018 to comply with the State of California Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act, which required all groundwater basins designated as medium or high priority to form local GSAs
to assess conditions in their local groundwater basins and adopt management plans based on those assessments.?!
MWD initiated formation of the GSA. The MWD Board of Directors serves as the GSA Board of Directors and
MWD staff serve as GSA staff. Only one employee is dedicated toward GSA work, the Groundwater Specialist, who
assists with the development and implementation of the GSA’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan. The GSA budget
and accounting is separate from the MWD budget.

21 Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Mission and Purpose,

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 33 of 251

22 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r% ni aryEIfﬁstrlc{3



The GSA would be impacted by any organizational or structural change to MWD. As part of any consolidation,
staff would need to contact the State Department of Water Resources to transfer responsibility for the GSA to the
new agency, including a new Community Services District if created??. Notification would not be necessary if the
MWD consolidates with the MSD and preserves current GSA activities. The consultant team believes that both
LAFCO and the State Department of Water Resources would readily approve the inclusion of GSA responsibilities
in the new organization.

Summerland Sanitary District
The boundaries of MWD and MSD are generally aligned except for the area encompassing the community of

Summerland. Summerland receives water services from MWD, but an independent special district provides
wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal services. The SSD operates a treatment plant with a design capacity
of 0.3 MGD, maintains eight miles of sewer main and three pumping stations, and a lab to ensure compliance with
State and Federal laws.?3 The SSD has held recent discussions during regular Board of Directors meetings concerning
its future including possible dissolution of the SSD due to infrastructure challenges and financial pressures.?*
Conceivably, MSD or the neighboring Carpinteria Sanitary District could absorb SSD if desired by SSD.

The boundary of any new consolidated agency serving MWD customers would encompass the SSD service area
posing an opportunity to adjust services for MWD customers within the SSD Boundaries. This could be addressed
in one of three ways. First, if a new Community Services District is created, it could exclude wastewater services to
the area served by the SSD in the application to LAFCO, specifically noting that sanitary services will be provided
by SSD, not the new Community Services District.

Secondly, if MWD combines with the MSD, the combined agency could work with the SSD to establish an out of
area service agreement that would specify that SSD would continue to provide sanitary services within the existing
boundaries of the SSD.

Thirdly, MWD and MSD could work with SSD to absorb responsibility for wastewater services in that area. This
would result in the dissolution of the SSD and would likely require more time to evaluate the integration of the
current staff, facilities, and finances.

The consultant team recommends that the possible dissolution of SSD and incorporation into a new entity formed
by MWD and MSD be viewed as a follow up potential action and not be included in this analysis unless specifically
requested by LAFCO.

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

The project team reviewed the organizational structure for MWD and MSD as well as position descriptions, job
duties, and expectations for each employee in the two districts. The two operational areas of water operations and
wastewater operations are distinct and have little opportunity for overlap. However, there may be an opportunity to
align administrative, engineering, and maintenance staff where appropriate.

22 California Water Code, Chapter 4, §10723
23 Summerland Sanitary District, Who We Are,
24 Summerland Sanitary District, Agendas and Minutes,

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 23
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 34 of 251



Table 7 shows current MWD and MSD staffing by functional area and the total if all staff were retained under a
consolidated agency.

Table 7: MWD, MSD, and Consolidated Personnel by Function

Current MWD Current MSD Consolidated
Staffing Staffing Organization

Administration 2.50 2.50 5.00
Finance 1.25 0.50 1.75
Billing & Customer Service 2.50 0.00 2.50
Human Resources 0.50 0.00 0.50
Information Technology 0.25 0.00 0.25
Communications 1.00 0.00 1.00
Total Administration 80 300 1100
Water Treatment 4.33 0.00 4.33
Water Distribution 8.33 0.00 8.33
Environmental Compliance 1.00 0.00 1.00
Total Water Operations 1368 000 1386
Wastewater Treatment 0.00 4.33 4.33
Wastewater Collection 0.00 5.33 5.33
Environmental Compliance 0.00 1.00 1.00
Total Wastewater Operations 000 1066 1066
Grounds Maintenance 1.00 0.33 1.33
Facilities Maintenance 2.00 2.66 4.66
Fleet Maintenance 1.00 0.34 1.34

Engineering

Total All Staff 28.00 18.00 46.00

Generally, fewer management and administrative support staff are necessary in combined utilities. According to the
2020 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Utility Benchmarking survey, the median combined utility has
43.5% of overall staffing used for management, engineering, and customer service positions compared to 49.1% for
water only utilities.?

A detailed assessment of the impacts of potential consolidation on management and administration, treatment and
field operations, and engineering and capital improvements is provided below. For each area, an interim and long
term scenario is provided showing impacts of consolidation on staffing levels and organization structure.

% American Water Works Association (AWWA), 2020 AWWA Utility Benchmarking, Page 31.

24 oG EamAY Tishiap SANITARY DISTRICTS

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 35 of 251



Management and Administration

MWD and MSD, as standalone special districts, have management and administration staff to operate and provide
valuable enterprise-wide services such as human resources (HR), finance, risk, and information technology that
support the core function of water and sewer operations. This section will review the management and
administration implications of consolidation at each district.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

Within MWD, administrative activities, including general management, finance, HR, communications, and
customer service, are currently provided by 9.0 FTEs: the General Manager, an Administrative/Human Resources
Assistant, the Public Information Officer, the Business Manager, a Finance Analyst/IT Specialist, a Senior Office
Technician, two Office Technician II positions, and the Groundwater Specialist.

Current MWD Administration staffing and reporting relationships are shown in Figure 6 below.

Water District
Board of Directors

Administrative /
General Manager Human Resources
1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
[ 1
Public Information Business Manager Groundwater

Officer H 10 FTE 9 Specialist (GSA)

1.0FTE ’ 1.0 FTE

Financial Analyst/
IT Specialist
1.0 FTE

Sr. Office
Technician
1.0 FTE

| | Office Technician II
2.0FTE

Figure 5: Current MWD Administrative Support Structure

According to the job description, the MWD General Manager is responsible for operations and policy guidance for
the entire utility under approval of the Board of Directors and manages all aspects of operations and staffing, as well
as fostering external relationships with intergovernmental and regulatory agencies and other groups in the
community. The General Manager is directly supported by the Administrative Assistant who provides office

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 25
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 36 of 251



administrative and secretarial support to the General Manager, Board of Directors, and other management
personnel. In addition, the General Manager acts as the Board Secretary and prepares Board agendas, minutes,
actions, ordinances and resolutions, maintains official documents and records, and conducts District elections. The
Administrative Assistant/Human Resources Assistant acts as an HR assistant for recruitments, training,
compensation and benefits, labor relations, and more. The Administrative Assistant is also a point of contact for the
General Manager, Board of Directors, and other departments with the public to resolve issues and provide customer
service.

The MWD Public Information Officer (P1IO) plans, coordinates, and participates in a variety of communications,
public information, marketing, community relations and outreach activities and initiatives. The PIO is responsible
for developing original content including communications, media, website content, and other materials, and ensures
positive interactions and collaboration with the Board of Directors, Committees, management and staff,
constituencies, and media outlets. The position serves as a critical resource and liaison for the Emergency Response
Plan, providing public notification responsibilities.

The Business Manager directs and manages the administrative activities and operations of the MWD including
budget and accounting, information technology, human resources, and general office management. The position is
responsible for preparation and management of annual budget, oversight of customer service and billing functions,
and management of human resources issues.

The Business Manager supervises a Finance Analyst/IT Specialist position. This position performs complex
financial accounting and administrative duties, provides budgetary, grant, and work-flow support to projects and
programs, analyzes utility practices and procedures to recommend improvements, and supports development and
implementation of accounting, financial, and related systems, and trains staff on them.

The Business Manager also supervises Senior Office Technician who provides general accounting, customer service,
and payroll functions, maintains financial records, and assists in preparation of financial reports and analyses. The
Senior Office Technician serves as lead of the customer service office support team, provides direct customer service
associated with utility payments, requests for service, maintains centralized payroll functions, and provides
assistance for a wide variety of assignments.

The Business Manager also supervises two Office Technician II personnel, who perform a variety of administrative
and office support duties. The Office Technicians establish and maintain customer service accounts, provide direct
customer service associated with utility payments, requests for service, and respond to complaints and information
requests. They provide assistance for a wide variety of assignments.

The Groundwater Specialist reports to the General Manager, and is responsible for assisting with the implementation
the GSA’s groundwater sustainability plan to comply with State regulations.

At MSD, administrative activities, including general management, finance, human resources, and customer service,
are provided by 3.0 FTEs: the General Manager, the District Administrator/Clerk of the Board, and the
Accounting/ Administrative Assistant. MSD Administration staffing and reporting relationships are shown in the
Figure 7 below.

26 Ol\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 37 of 251



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

District
Administrator
1.0 FTE

Accounting &
Administrative
Assistant
1.0 FTE

Figure 6: Current MSD Administrative Support Structure

The MSD General Manager serves as the chief executive and management official for the District and reports to the
Board of Directors. The General Manager manages and organizes MSD operation and is supported by a District
Administrator and Accounting and Administrative Assistant, as shown in Figure 7.

The District Administrator serves a variety of roles including Clerk of the Board, HR manager, accountant and
finance manager, payroll administrator, information technology manager, and safety and staff training officer.

The District Administrator supervises an Accounting/Administrative Assistant whose role is to provide general
clerical and administrative support as well as customer service, plan checking and review, permit preparation, GIS
data entry, accounts payable invoicing, and payment processing.

CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATION — INTERIM

Administrative operations within MWD and MSD could be consolidated. While duties would be similar for several
positions, the workload for each utility would remain and there would be no apparent need for immediate staff
reductions or additions; indeed, current staff express high stress and believe the existing operational structure is lean.
Temporary staff or contract assistance may be required during consolidation. The ability to have additional staff
dedicated to focus upon individual subject areas, rather than single positions that are split between human resources
and information technology, for example, is beneficial; better focus and economies of scale would result for each
subject area, service levels would likely improve as a result, and current staff would be unburdened from having to
work in multiple areas at once.

However, in a few positions there is some redundancy that would occur. A consolidation would result in two General
Manager positions. In the proposed interim structure, one General Manager could be retitled as a second Assistant
General Manager to oversee the operations functions of Wastewater functions within the combined entity. In this
way, the General Manager would be free to focus upon inter-governmental and community relations, as well as the
possible implementation of a new recycled water program, leaving internal operational concerns to the two Assistant
General Managers over Water and Wastewater operations.

There would also be overlap in duties between the MWD Administrative/HR Assistant and the MSD District
Administrator/ Clerk of the Board position, both of whom prepare Board of Directors agendas and packets, oversee

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 27
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 38 of 251



elections, and provide human resources services. These duties could be split, with one position focused solely on
providing assistance with Board agendas and packets and elections, and the other focused solely on human resources
in the interim. Other possible workload assignments could ensure duties are not duplicated across staff.

There would also be some overlap in duties between the MWD Business Manager and MSD District
Administrator/Clerk of the Board positions as both currently supervise the finance operations of their respective
districts. As an example, the MSD District Administrator/Clerk of the Board could focus on Board agendas, packets,
and elections for the new district, allowing the MWD Business Manager could be responsible for supervision of all
administrative functions.

Because of the larger scope of the MWD financial operation, including regular billing cycles and larger staffing, it
would be beneficial for the MWD and MSD finance staff to report to the Business Manager position. Both staffs can
continue operating mostly independently for now but over time, the finance function can begin to consolidate and
specialize by operational area versus water and wastewater business line, e.g., rather than having separate payrolls,
a single staff member may be able to provide payroll for both water and sewer staff once systems are combined and
automated. Information Technology (IT) would continue to be the focus of a Financial Analyst/IT Specialist who
supervises outsourced assistance and uses additional capacity to assist the financial function, as is done now.

A proposed new interim organizational structure consolidating the two administrative functions is shown in Figure
8 below. Positions in blue represent current MWD positions and positions in orange represent current MSD
positions. The second General Manager position, which would either have a new role overseeing operations or be
eliminated, is not shown. The result is a new combined Management and Administration Division with 11
employees, including the General Manager.

28 Ol\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 39 of 251



Board of Directors

| | Office Technician Il

Administrative /
General Manager Human Resources
1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
/_+ 4_"\ /’+ 4'_\ /’+ “"\
/ vy \ 4 \
I’ | I I |
| [ : [ [
| _||Business Manager : : Public Information | | : Groundwater :
| 1.0 FTE I Officer ) Specialist (GSA) |
| I 1.0 FTE I 1.0 FTE I
I ] I I
' I I |
I o I L [
I District I [ |
' H Administrator I | I
| 1.0 FTE I I |
I I I [
: [ [ : I I
| Accounting & : ' | : :
| Administrative | : . |
| Assistant L I |
| 1.0 FTE I\ I\ /
| N _/ NS s
' | Communications GSA
| Financial Analyst / I
I T Specialist I
: 1.0 FTE |
| |
' |
| Sr. Office |
: H Technician |
| 1.0 FTE :
' |
' |
' |
' |
' |
' |

2.0FTE
\
N ,/
Finance, Billing, Customer
Service & IT

Figure 7: Potential Interim Consolidated Administrative Support Structure

In the interim period, there is little potential for collective savings related to Administrative staffing. As noted above,
this structure would require minor retitling and reassignment of job duties across positions to ensure a minimum of
overlap. Since all 11 FTE positions are currently budgeted, there would be negligible short-term financial impacts.

The focus should be on facilitating the consolidation and integrating services, rather than cost savings. The
consolidated entity would still require roughly the same number of administrative staff to continue operations on
both the water and wastewater sides. While there is immediate overlap in duties, several roles such as the District
Administrator and Administrative Assistant positions currently wear multiple hats; several positions are currently
responsible for multiple unrelated tasks, such as HR, information technology, and finance, all of which require focus
in order to perform at a best practices level.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 29
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 40 of 251



By consolidating, the new entity could be able to divide work between the combined staff so that individual staff
members can focus on fewer areas and work with greater efficiency and enhance the level of service provided. We
would anticipate more comprehensive human resources services, for example, by having a single staff member fully
devoted to these functions.

CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATION — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, the administrative function could continue to consolidate and become more
cohesive, structuring by functional areas such as finance and accounting or billing and customer service across the
entire enterprise rather than continuing by water or sanitary business lines. In particular, an opportunity exists to
move some Finance staff capacity to assist with Human Resources needs. A potential long-term structure for a new
Administrative Services function including finance and human resources, which would require changing job
classifications and moving staff over time, is shown in Figure 9 below.

Should the District choose to enhance levels of service, the combined Administrative Assistant/ Human Resources
position currently at MWD could be split into two, adding one new Human Resources specialist FTE devoted to
HR functions for a larger organization. This split also increases administrative support to the new General Manager
by 0.5 FTE (from 0.5 FTE now to 1.0). The result is 12 FTEs, one more than the interim 11. The estimated loaded
cost of a Human Resource Specialist (salary and benefits) is $80,791 at midpoint.

Board of Directors

Administrative
General Manager Assistant
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
- — -» <+-————-- ~ Y ad <4-~ N2 > <4—-<
/ AN) - \
| ' Vil ! |
| |
y. A | |
: SAd'mlems'\tAraatl\a/e | I'| Public Information 1! Groundwater :
| e”’f SFTE" ger | : Officer 1| specialist (GSA) |
. : Ly 1.0 FTE I: 1.0 FTE |
| L q !
' I ¥ :
: Human Resources District | : | : |
| Specialist Administrator [ | | |
| 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Iy :, |
[ P |l !
| ! P I :
| sr. Office Aocounting & | 1 1 |
- Administrative 1!
| Technician — : [ | |
| 1.0 FTE Assistant - | | |
: 1.0 FTE | I |
[ | !
: | | l
| |
) ) | | |
I Office Technician Il Financial Anglyst/ | ! /! |
| 20 FTE IT Specialist | !
! : 1.0 FTE L |l |
| |
\ / / /
N _______ _7 \ N _7 \ N _7
Administrative Services Communications GSA

Figure 8: Potential Long Term Consolidated Administrative Support Structure

It is difficult to predict the level of day-to-day administrative support that would be necessary to support a
consolidated organization. As the organization works towards consolidation, it should evaluate administrative

30 Or\tTE{II O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 41 of 251



workload and determine if staffing levels are appropriate for needs. We do not see any immediate or obvious
opportunities to reduce staff because, in the interim in particular, this workgroup would bear the brunt of
consolidation efforts in combining policies and procedures for finance, Board of Directors procedures, human
resources, and more. Once consolidation is fully implemented several years out, there could potentially be
opportunities to reduce staff depending upon operations and workload at that time.

Initially, both finance operations would be operating independently. Over time there would be some efficiencies by
combining banking, payroll, investing, and accounts payable and receivable operations. Because of the differing
methods of billing customers, with MWD billing customers and sewer levying an annual fee on the property tax bill,
there is not a great deal of opportunity for savings. In the interim period, the workload in administration and finance
are expected to increase as the group begins to take many detailed steps to consolidate, including moving to combined
Board packets and agendas and to a single financial software and chart of accounts.

The new agency would be able to achieve savings estimated between $50,000 and $100,000 per year by eliminating
redundant professional services contracts such as financial auditors or contract attorneys, streamlining from two to
one provider. Over time, there may also be minor materials and supplies savings such as elimination of redundant
telephone licenses/purchases, larger contracts, etc. The magnitude of these savings is estimated to be between $5,000
and $25,000 per year.

There are also likely to be some accompanying one-time additional costs associated with the consolidation effort.
These include direct costs such as legal fees, consultant studies, communications costs, data conversion, etc. Raftelis
estimates these one-time transition costs at roughly $50,000 - $200,000.

It is important to note that in the short term, there would be significant amounts of staff time devoted to implementing
any form of consolidation of agencies. It is estimated that several hundred hours of staff time would be needed in the
administrative and management areas to execute a consolidation, particularly for the General Managers. This could
impact their ability to address other strategic initiatives such as implementing a new recycled water program or
addressing drought related issues.

Another potential barrier would be an unwillingness for staff to change or take on new duties. If both groups were
open to consolidation as an opportunity to provide a higher level of service and improve practices by taking the good
from each District’s current system to create a more refined operation, the administrative function could successfully
consolidate and potentially provide a higher level of service than at present. The magnitude is hard to quantify, but
would likely be incremental. An additional hurdle to progress could be a lack of allocated financial resources for
necessary changes such as potential new software or equipment. MSD is already planning to replace its financial
system as the current version is reaching obsolescence, while MWD'’s Tyler Incode financial system is quite new but
may require additional modules or features for a combined organization. Should the Districts choose to implement
an entirely new financial system, this can cost up to $600,000 or more depending upon modules and level of staff
training included. For purposes of this review, we will assume both entities would use the Tyler system. A few new
annual licenses to add MSD staff could cost under $5,000 per year while additional modules could cost up to $30,000
each as a one-time cost depending upon specific needs and training included.

The primary risk of Consolidating administrative functions is an unplanned and rushed approach. The
administrative function is critical for ensuring legal and audit compliance, staff satisfaction through human resources
and payroll functions, customer service satisfaction, and more. A breakdown in customer billing or financial systems
would be highly problematic, particularly if it were to impact billing and, thus, revenues needed for operations. A
carefully planned and phased approach over time would be the best approach to ensure that operations can continue

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 31
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 42 of 251



as consolidation moves forward. Full implementation of a consolidation of the management and administration
units could take two to three years.

Over time, the consolidated district should undertake a comprehensive analysis of staff workloads, performance,
and service levels to determine the required workload to meet service expectations and the associated correct number
of staff positions.

Treatment and Field Operations

MWD and MSD provide related but separate services to their respective service areas. They are similar in terms of
the type of work done by employees, but the work is not identical. Both organizations operate treatment plants,
perform maintenance on horizontal infrastructure, and maintain equipment, grounds, and facilities. They also have
administrative and support people that ensure non-core operations activities are addressed. The following section
examines the treatment and field operations staffing in each district and potential consolidation opportunities.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

At MSD, treatment and field operations staff are broken up into two divisions, Wastewater Treatment and
Collections, with the head of each reporting to the General Manager. The Collections Superintendent is in charge of
the wastewater collection system as well as facilities and equipment maintenance staff. The Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator runs the day-to-day operations of the plant. The Laboratory and Pretreatment
Manager, who ensures that MSD complies with Federal and State environmental and water quality regulations,
reports directly to the General Manager but also works closely with the Treatment Plant Superintendent and other
operations staff. Figure 10 shows the organizational structure for the current 14 FTE operations staff in MSD.

Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0 FTE
I
Laboratory & Collections Treatr_nent Supt./
Pretreatment . Chief Plant
Superintendent
Manager 10 FTE Operator
1.0 FTE : 1.0 FTE
I L 1
Lead Collection Chief Maintenance
Systems Operator Mechanic
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
[ [
. Facilities Wastewater
Collections .
Maintenance Treatment Plant
Operator S
4.0 FTE Technician Operator
' 1.0 FTE 40FTE

Figure 9: Current MSD Operations Structure

The wastewater treatment plant owned and operated by MSD has a rated capacity of 1.5 MGD but currently is
operating at approximately 0.5 MGD for average dry weather flow. The treatment team is comprised of four

32 Or\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 43 of 251



Operators and a Treatment Plant Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator. The Treatment Plant Superintendent/Chief
Plant Operator acts as the District’s Legally Responsible Official, responsible for operating the plant and reporting
discharge in compliance with the terms set forth in the District’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
permit. Treatment plant staff support operations and maintenance of the facility.

The Collections System Superintendent, acts as the District’s Legally Responsible Official for the collection system,
ensuring operation and maintenance practices minimize spills and reporting is in accordance with the State Water
Resources Control Board’s Sanitary Sewer System General Order. The Collection System Superintendent oversees
five collection operators and two maintenance personnel. The Five collection system maintenance FTEs are
responsible for maintaining MSD’s wastewater collection system, which encompasses 73 miles of gravity main, 2.2
miles of force main, and five pump stations.?® In addition, staff respond to sewer main breaks, leaks, and sanitary
sewer overflows (SSOs) when they occur. In addition, they perform Preventative Maintenance on lateral
infrastructure including flushing and televising sewer mains.

A Chief Maintenance Mechanic and a Facilities Maintenance Technician perform other maintenance for the MSD.
According to the job description for the Chief Maintenance Mechanic this includes Preventative Maintenance and
repair of equipment at the Wastewater Treatment Plant and pumping stations as well as maintenance of MSD
vehicles and portable equipment. The Facilities Maintenance Technician is responsible for grounds maintenance in
addition to support for fleet, equipment, and facilities maintenance.

At MWD, there are 17 FTE operations staff divided into two divisions, each overseen by a Superintendent position
that reports to the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager. In addition to the Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager position, the General Manager also supervises the Groundskeeper/Conservation
Coordinator, who works closely with Operations staff on conservation efforts. The following figure shows the current
organizational structure for the MWD operations staff.

26 Montecito Sanitary District, About the District,

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 33
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 44 of 251



Water District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0FTE

Asst. General

Manager /
Engineering Mgr.
1.0 FTE
I
I 1
Distribution Treatmept & Grou ndskee.per /
) Production Conservation
H| Superintendent . )
10FTE Superintendent Coordinator
’ 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment
H Operator Operator Chief Operator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
[
Distribution Control §ystem Water Treatment
Technician /
H Operator Operator Plant Operator
6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 20FTE

Fleet Technician /
Distribution
Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 10: Current MWD Operations Structure

The Distribution Division is responsible for 114 miles of water mains, nine pump stations, 10 reservoirs, 2,800
isolation values, 1,000 fire hydrants and 52 pressure resulting stations.?’” This work is led by a Distribution
Superintendent. There are seven operator FTEs that support the maintenance, repair, and installation/replacement
of the water distribution systems. In addition to reactive and Preventative Maintenance on the distribution system,
the Division is also responsible for fleet maintenance and grounds maintenance. One FTE, a Fleet Technician,
supports fleet maintenance work for the MWD.

The Treatment and Production Division is responsible for two surface water treatment plants, 12 groundwater wells
some with localized water treatment. MWD deliveries on average between approximately 1.5 to 4.5 MGD of
drinking water to customers depending on the time of year. The Division has two Operator FTEs and a Chief
Operator to operate and maintain the two water treatment plants. The Control System Technician is responsible for
maintenance and repair of technology and monitoring equipment used by the District, as well as being a Treatment
Operation FTE. The Dam Caretaker is responsible for facility maintenance and grounds maintenance at the Juncal
Dam, which includes living onsite at the facility at Jameson Lake.

27 Montecito Water District, Service and Facilities,

34 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
or'ﬁemto Eanl aryEIfﬁstrlc{3

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 45 of 251



CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS - INTERIM

Because consolidation of the two agencies would not change the nature of utility operations, we do not project any
changes to Operations staff. Figure 12 below illustrates a potential consolidated structure for Operations in the
interim period. This includes reclassifying the second General Manager and the current Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager as Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and Assistant General Manager for
Water, respectively. The Groundskeeper/Conservation Coordinator would no longer report to the General Manager
but to the Assistant General Manager — Water. This organizational arrangement would provide adequate
administrative support for the consolidation, two Assistant General Managers to oversee daily operations, and allow
the General Manager to focus on inter-governmental partnerships and financial oversight. This increases Operations
staff from 31 to 32 by moving the former MSD General Manager into Operations as Assistant General Manager for
Wastewater.

Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0 FTE
[ 1
Ass;\jt:]:; Cf: rjeral Assistant General
Waste\?vater Manager - Water
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
L 1
Laboratory & - Treatment Supt./ Distribution Treatment & \Water Conservation
Pretreatment ) Chief Plant | i Production e
Superintendent Superintendent - Specialist
Manager 10 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE Superintendent 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE : 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE .
Lead Collections Chief Maintenance Wastewater Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment
System Operator Mechanic Treatment Plant H Operator Operator Chief Operator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
) ’ 4.0 FTE T
l l C | S
Collections Fadilties Distribution e ysiem Water Treatment
Operator Maintenance H Operator o ——— Plant Operator
P Technician 6.0 FTE P 2.0FTE
40FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Fleet Technician /
- Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 11: Interim Treatment and Operations Structure

Because utility operations would continue as they do currently, consolidation would not result in specific operational
efficiencies.

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, operations staff could work toward a structure with three divisions reporting to the
General Manager: Water Operations, Wastewater Operations, and Maintenance. A proposed long-term structure
for operations is shown in Figure 13 with changes made to positions to align titles and clarify roles.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 35
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 46 of 251



Board of Directors

1.0

General Manager

FTE

Chief Maintenance Ass:at::; Cierneral Assistant General
Mechanic ger - Manager - Water
1.0 FTE Wastewater 1.0 FTE
) 1.0FTE
T |
[ l 1 [ | |
Facilities Laboratory & Collecti Treatment Supt./ Distribution TFr’ea(tjmstpt& Water Conservation
Maintenance Pretreatment s orec |ord1$ ¢ Chief Plant —| Superintendent s o ut 'Zn ¢ Specialist
Technician Manager quBnlfrnE en Operator 1.0 FTE qugnF:_nE en 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE : 1.0 FTE :
istributi i Dam Caretaker /
Control System Lead Collections Wastewater Distribution Chief Onarator
Technician Treatment Plant - Operator p
System Operator 1.0 FTE
Operator 1.0 FTE .
: 40FTE
| i M Control System
Collections | | D|Ostr|but|on Technician /
perator 0 t
Operator 6.0 FTE perator
40FTE ’ 1.0FTE
Fleet Technician/ Water Treatment
Distribution Chief Operator
Operator 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE
I
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
20FTE

Figure 12: Long Term Operations Structure

Should the District choose to enhance levels of service for maintenance of fleet and facilities, staff that perform
grounds, facilities, vehicle, and equipment maintenance could be consolidated in a new Maintenance Division,
reporting to the Chief Maintenance Mechanic position. This allows the two Assistant General Managers to focus on
the treatment and distribution/collection, as well as engineering needs for those utilities. The new Maintenance
Division would be responsible for operational support functions including maintenance at facilities, treatment plants,
and properties and work with the existing split Fleet Technician/Operator position within Operations. One
additional Control System Technician position should be considered as well, in order to provide dedicated staff
capacity for control systems maintenance. This increases Operations FTEs from 32 to 34 with the addition of the
Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and a new Control System Technician position. An additional Control
System Technician position would cost $103,657 which equates to approximately $134,754 with benefits. Over time
it would be important to monitor the workload of this Division to ensure they have the appropriate staff to support
the combined utility.

ecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 47 of 251

36 Or\tTECI oW ATEEBR ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
on nitary Distric



Engineering and Capital Improvement

Engineering services for MWD and MSD are provided by a mix of dedicated staffing resources and management
with specific engineering certification and training. Consultant engineers are used to augment in-house staff when
specialized system knowledge is required. MSD contracts for all construction inspection. Both organizations are
responsible for developing and implementing a capital improvement plan (CIP) that invests in the utility to ensure
the appropriate water resources for the service area, rehabilitates and repairs current infrastructure, and takes
advantage of the latest industry trends in technology and treatment.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

MWD has two Assistant Engineers that are focused on various engineering related tasks including design and
construction phase work for capital improvement projects. Outside engineering and environmental consultants are
used as needed for specialty design and construction related services. These Assistant Engineers are also involved in
the monitoring of construction and consultant contracts and help to prepare requests for proposals and process bid
solicitations. Additionally, the Assistant Engineers attend to public requests for services including construction plan
reviews, new water service requests, water leak investigations, etc. Approximately 80% of engineering design is
performed in-house such as for pipeline replacements, with the remaining 20% outsourced for specialties like
reservoirs or SCADA design. Figure 14 shows the current structure for the three FTE engineering staff in MWD.

Water District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Asst. General
Manager /
Engineering Mgr.
1.0 FTE

Assistant Engineer
20FTE

Figure 13: Current MWD Engineering Structure

The Assistant Engineers report to the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager, a licensed professional
engineer who provides the administrative direction and oversight for engineering functions as well as supervising
operations functions. The Assistant Engineers are encouraged to acquire a professional engineering license but it is
not required of the position.

At MSD there is one employee dedicated to engineering, who reports to the General Manager. The Engineering
Manager manages and performs technical engineering work including planning, design, and construction of projects
with the significant assistance of outside consultants. They also review and prepare plans, specifications for requests
for proposals, and manage contracts. The General Manager estimates that approximately 50% of engineering
workload is not in MSD’s control but the result of Caltrans and County projects. The following figure shows the
current structure for MSD engineering staff.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 37
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 48 of 251



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Engineering
Manager
1.0 FTE

Figure 14: Current MSD Engineering Structure

Engineering staffing across MWD and MSD consists of 3.00 dedicated engineering FTEs, supplemented by a portion
of the MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager and MSD General Manager positions. It would be
important to ensure that the engineering function has enough capacity to manage the capital plans for both the water
utility and wastewater utility as well as support asset management needs with operations staff.

CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING - INTERIM

In the short-term interim period, all engineering staff should be retained but restructured to align their work and
begin consolidation of the workgroups. Because licensing and qualifications for each engineering staff incumbent
varies, and because the knowledge of both water and wastewater staff would be necessary for any management
position, we recommend an interim structure having all three engineering staff under the direct supervision of the
General Manager. In this manner, the General Manager can mediate any disagreements among staff and provide
direction for the unit as a whole.

Figure 16 shows the potential interim structure for Engineering; because the experience and technical knowledge of
incumbents in the Engineering Manager and Assistant Engineer positions is unknown, all three positions are added
at the same job classification level, reporting to the General Manager. In the long term, management will need to
determine who is best qualified to lead the unit.

Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Engineering Assistant Engineers
Manager 20FTE
1.0 FTE '

Figure 15: Potential Interim Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 49 of 251

38 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
M ni aryElfﬁstrlcP



Over time the two engineering workgroups can align their work plans and capital investment, and managers can
determine the best use of 3.0 FTE engineering capacity to address both water and wastewater needs.

Engineering staff should review the current CIPs for MWD and MSD, capital needs for both organizations, and any
planned rehabilitation or replacement projects. It may be important to keep the CIP for water and wastewater utilities
separate due to the distinct funding sources and separate accounting structure. The nature of projects varies, with
renewal and replacement of water and sewer infrastructure handled differently; while water involves dig and replace,
sewer renewal at this time is largely trenchless lining projects (which do not require digging up pipes). Additionally,
the age of water and wastewater assets typically drive capital replacement/renewal schedules and therefore,
significant planning and coordination of future capital projects will be needed to geographically group capital projects
in order to realize synergies in the capital program.

However, aligning this work to ensure there is appropriate capacity to manage projects and ensure continued
operations would be important. The two groups could utilize best practices to enhance asset management and find
synergies with procurement, contracting, and GIS. As part of a consolidated budgeting and financial reporting
process, the combined organization should also present a combined CIP to the Boards of Directors even if funding
remains separate. In order to align all capital planning and engineering work into one workgroup and continue
separate enterprise funds, a cost allocation plan would be needed to estimate the cost of personnel assigned to water
and wastewater projects or tasks.

CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, the engineering staffing and structure should not change significantly unless a new
service like recycled water is added. Working under the direction of the General Manager, the engineering staff
would need to work with oversight from the two Assistant General Managers to align the types of projects designed
in-house using District staff versus what should be contracted. In addition, the organization would need to create the
appropriate level of expertise and continuity of knowledge. It would be important to maintain an expertise in both
water and wastewater specialties within the Engineering workgroup.

The organization should retain the Engineering Manager title as a position to manage and lead the engineering
workgroup across all utility functions, and who should report directly to the General Manager. While MSD has an
existing Engineering Manager position and incumbent in the position, all three current engineers from both MWD
and MSD could be evaluated for the potential to serve as Engineering Manager over the entire unit. This would build
a career ladder for staff and promote retention. Figure 17 represents the potential long term consolidated structure
for engineering.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 39
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 50 of 251



Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0FTE

Engineering
Manager
1.0 FTE

Assistant Engineer
20FTE

Figure 16: Potential Long Term Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure

The potential for collective savings in engineering is limited. It is necessary to have appropriate levels of staff in to
support both water and wastewater expertise as well as to recruit staff with the necessary training and certification,
and to ensure staff historical knowledge of infrastructure and ensure in-house staff continuity. Both districts have
growing capital project needs which increases the workload of the Engineering workgroup. Given future planned
capital improvement project needs, it would be difficult to keep the costs of contracting below the cost of an in-house
staff member.

The potential for service level enhancements in engineering is also somewhat limited. By consolidating engineering
staff, there is some potential for additional backup and cross-training compared to operating separate engineering
functions.

The foreseeable hurdles to progress include change management, collective bargaining, updated rate studies,
recruitment, and retention. Any amount of organizational change can be difficult on employees and these changes
could have an impact on staff. It would be important for the leadership of MWD and MSD to communicate honestly,
frequently, and in a variety of ways to ensure all staff understand planned changes and how it would impact them.
The project team has worked with clients across the country who are having difficulty hiring and retaining
engineering staff. The skillsets needed by utilities are in high demand and recruiting for qualified engineers can take
time. Insufficient expertise or project management capacity could delay the implementation of the consolidated
organization’s capital plan.

The potential staffing and structural changes to engineering are intended to align resources and create capacity by
providing additional backup and skillset compared to the current, separate approach by MWD and MSD. As the
organization works toward long term consolidation, it would be important to engage with staff and communicate
frequently to help with retention. It may also be appropriate to evaluate compensation for engineering staff to ensure
pay ranges are in line with the market. In addition, implementing the capital program would require project
management capacity and any turnover or vacancies would delay that implementation.

40 Or\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 51 of 251



Impact of Potential Consolidation on Organizational Structure
and Staffing

The summary of the organization structure and staffing level impacts of consolidation for the three areas is
summarized organization-wide below for both the interim and long term scenarios.

CONSOLIDATED AGENCY - INTERIM

Should the districts pursue a consolidation/reorganization and LAFCO approve it, the new Board of Directors
would need to immediately appoint a General Manager of the consolidated organization who will be responsible for
organizing the staff. This decision would need to be carefully considered by the new Board of Directors, as this role
could be filled from the existing staffs or recruited from outside the organization. The proposed interim
organizational structure reclassifies the existing MWD General Manager position to the General Manager role, and
the MSD General Manager and MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager positions could be
reclassified as Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and Assistant General Manager for Water, respectively.
All these positions play critical roles to implement all of the many steps required for consolidation/reorganization.

The administrative support staff for the two organizations could be restructured to report to the MWD Business
Manager, retitled as Administrative Services Manager in the long term. This workgroup would be responsible for all
financial, customer service, billing, human resources, and administrative support functions. The MSD District
Administrator would be responsible for finance and accounting duties with support from the MSD Accounting &
Administrative Assistant and the MWD Financial Analyst/IT Specialist. This structure would retain all current
administrative staff to support the interim period workload that would result from consolidation efforts, such as
aligning financial practices, policies and financial management systems, updating human resources policies, and
supporting the General Manager and Board of Directors. Staffing in both districts is currently lean and both General
Managers noted having existing unmet needs due to a lack of staffing, particularly in the areas of human resources,
conservation, and recycled water.

The three Engineering positions would report to the General Manager. Based on historic workloads, the current
three FTEs should be sufficient capacity for the combined organization but adjustments to job requirements and
credentialing needs may be necessary over time.

This proposed interim structure retains all current employees at MWD and MSD and continues most of their current
job responsibilities. This should provide additional administrative and management capacity to allow the combined
organization to work toward a long term structure. This interim structure does not represent short-term savings on
personnel. Potential opportunities for efficiencies with specialized administrative, finance, and maintenance staff
may be present in the long-term consolidated structure and could be more fully understood during the interim period.
The interim consolidated structure is necessary to begin melding staff together as the organizations work through the
steps to complete consolidation.

Figure 5 below represents a conceptual interim organizational structure should the districts combine. Positions from
MSD are shaded in orange and positions from MWD are shaded in blue; combined units including both MSD and
MWD staff are not shaded (white).

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 41
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 52 of 251



21N}oNJ)S pajepljosuo) Wiidju| [enuajod : /| ainbi4

3140}
Joyesado
uonnquisiq
/ uerluyos | 1894

S1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3L1LVM OLIOILNONW

. g 3140°) .
31401 ald0% hwmw_moaw 31409 Uoombe 314 0%
jetedo — 1oluyos |
—  sleioads || JoyesadQ jueld — Jojesado
/1sAjeuy [eloueuld juswyesal| Jajepn / UEIDIULPDSL uonnausia SRPETEICIRY Suono’ 0D
: : wajsAg |04ju0D salioey i
[ | [
21402 ey 31401 31401 o ETEL R 31401 31401
AT G B TR Joyesndo IO | Jojesado q AT JoyesadQ Olueyosiy JojesedQ weshs
Il UBIOIUYISL S0BO HeqisiuwpyY Jusuneal] Joje J JovjEjeIe)) weg 4a4D uonnqusid JuE|d Jusw)eal | ouBUBUEH JOIUD SUoI8|(0D pesT
» Bununoooy
! 1]
[ [ I
5 . . 3140} 3140} 3140} . 3140}
314 0°) 3140} 31401 juspusiuledng juspusuiedng [ Jojesado 3140° sebeuepy
ueloIuYoS | Jojesisiulupy isijenads juspusjulladng
Q010 IS Jousig UoleAIas U0 Jaje uononpold uonnquisia Jueld JoD SU01399][0D jusugeafald
: o : R Juswieal| /1dng juswieas | : » Aiojesoge]
3140} 3140} 3140°) 31404
3140°) 191 M\ 192130 jsijepads J91ema)sepn 314 0¢€
1oBeuely ssauisng — D "18SY uoljew.ou| o1jgnd 13)EMpUNOID - ND 1ssY Jeis Buussuibuz

(44

ETER
JUB)SISSY
$32IN0say uewnH
| SAeLISIUIWPY

3140}
Jabeuepy [e1sus

si0p811q J0 pieog

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 53 of 251



Placements were made in general work unit structure but additional changes might be required in specific cases. The
second General Manager position is reclassified to become an Assistant General Manager — Wastewater so as to
manage all wastewater and engineering functions. The three Engineering staff (one in MSD and two in MWD)
would be combined into one unit and report to the General Manager, who is a licensed engineer and can provide
management guidance. The current MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering would be reclassified as
Assistant General Manager — Water and oversee treatment and distribution. The potential impacts of a
reorganization on engineering, administrative, and operations staff are discussed in more detail later in this report
and can be assessed over time post-consolidation as needed.

This interim structure includes 46 FTEs and retains all positions currently funded by both districts but changes
reporting relationships to align similar staff. At an organization-wide level, the interim consolidated structure keeps
the same reporting relationships for most staff, especially in operations.

CONSOLIDATED AGENCY - LONG TERM

The structure above may not be ideal for a long term, combined utility. The project team further refined the potential
structure and reviewed the appropriate staffing, managerial support, and roles necessary for a fully consolidated
organization. The potential long-term consolidated structure creates seven functions reporting to the General
Manager including Maintenance, Wastewater, Water, Engineering, Business Operations, Public Information Officer
and Groundwater Specialist.

One proposed long-term organizational structure is provided below in Figure 18 below with potential staffing options
shaded in gray and potential additional new staff positions to enhance levels of service shaded with a diagonal
pattern.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 43
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 54 of 251



SL1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3LVM OLIOILNONW VP

ainjonujg euoneziuebiQ wad | -6uo |enyuajod :g| ainbi4

314 0°4
ueloIuyYos |
waysAg [04ju0)

31407C
JoyesadQ jueld
Juswyeal] Joyep
[
31404
JoyeradQ JOIUD
Juswyeal] Joyep
) 314074 . 31404 31407
—, cm_owc._m_w%.rmmo_to cm_\m_::om._. — ‘_mn_m_.mu‘__monw 1eBeuepy . 1oe18d0
101 ! wo)sAg [0Jjuo
S| o] uonNaUISIQ juswiealiald @ qe uo1399]|0D
31404 _ 31407
e)SISSY 3140 31401 31401 Jojesedo 3140}
— uelouyoa | — JoyeladQ waisAg
SAlELSIUIPY 0910 JOILOS Jayejaied weqg Jojelsdo jue|d jusuieal| UoIB|I0] pes
® Buijunoooy ; ’ J81y uonnguisig 1a)emalse | sl L
I [ [
- 31404 .
. . 31401 . 314074
31404 314074 314071 JuspusuLiedng 31401 Jojesado || Jospadng
Jojesisiuiwpy isieads crenad N, — juspusjuladng Jueld JoIyo N
ousia $80IN0S8Y UewnH 1sijeleds fonpoid uonnquisiq /3dng juswieas | WBISAS uohosliod

uoleAIBSUOD) Joje |

® Juswieal|

31401
ueloluyoe |
aoueuB)UBI

senoed

31401
Jabeuely saoInIeS
aAljeJisiulwpy

314074
Joyep — Jabeuepy
|eJaua9) jue)sissy

314074
I9)ema)sepn
— Jabeuepy
[eJaua9) jue)sissy

31407C
J99ulBuT JuB)SISSY

314071
olue YO
leoueUBIUIBI JOIUD

3140°4
Jabeuepy
Buuasuibug

31401
1300

uoljewloyu| oljgnd

31401
jsijernasds
13)empunols)

31401
JuE}SIssy

SAnessIuWpPY

31401
Jabeuely [e1eusn

s10j08lI( JO pieog

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 55 of 251



There is a potential to eliminate the second General Manager position (potentially the Assistant General Manager
for Wastewater), with Wastewater Supervisors reporting directly to the General Manager. This would reflect the
level of current wastewater operations staffing in which the MSD General Manager is not a part. The result would
be a lean organization with too large a span of control for the new General Manager and is not recommended.
Elimination of this position could save the District approximately $234,000 (salary plus an estimated 30% benefits).

The Maintenance Division would be responsible for facilities maintenance and grounds maintenance at all MSD and
MWD facilities, as well as fleet and equipment maintenance for all assets, supported by one supervisor and one
technician. They would be assisted by the existing Fleet Technician/Operator position reporting to the Distribution
Superintendent. The potential addition of a new Control System Technician position would cost an estimated
$134,754 with benefits.

The Wastewater Operations Division would be responsible for wastewater treatment, wastewater collection, and
laboratory operations. The Wastewater Division would include Laboratory/Pretreatment. This Division would
include an Assistant General Manager—Wastewater supported by 14 total FTEs. There may be an opportunity for
the wastewater lab to provide lab services for water operations in the future but in order to do so, it may be necessary
to add an FTE(s) considering lab services for water operations are currently outsourced. At many organizations, lab
functions are combined. This may result in savings on outsourced samples, and the additional FTE could provide
for succession planning and operational redundancy.

The Water Operations Division would be responsible for water production, treatment, distribution, and management
of a water source. This structure focuses all staff on water utility operations by moving primary responsibility for fleet
maintenance and facilities maintenance to the Maintenance Division, assisted by the Fleet Technician/Distribution
Operator. The Water Operations Division is led by the Assistant General Manager — Water, who is supported by 16
total FTEs. The workgroup includes the Dam Caretaker, who lives and works at the Juncal Dam located in the Santa
Ynez Mountains about 1.5 hours of drive time from the current MWD main office. This group also includes the full-
time Water Conservation Specialist position, which would report to the Assistant General Manager — Water. The
Water Conservation Specialist manages MWD'’s water conservation program including rebates and provides hands-
on customer service, helping to identify leaks and inform/encourage customers to reduce water use.

The Business Operations Division could be retitled as Administrative Services and be responsible for all
administrative support functions including Billing and Customer Service, Finance and Accounting, and Human
Resources. The Administrative Services Manager would also be responsible for the administrative support necessary
for Board of Directors meetings and other administrative needs for management, including information technology
support. Notably, this structure creates a full time Human Resources Specialist to dedicate toward human resources
tasks and responsibilities, rather than relying on several positions that do those tasks on a part-time basis. The
Administrative Services Manager would be supported by seven FTEs.

The Public Information function is supported by one FTE and is responsible for external communications and
educational campaigns for customers and the community. This position would report directly to the General
Manager to ensure involvement with key District initiatives and issues.

The Groundwater Specialist, who is responsible for assisting the General Manager and other staff with GSA-related
business and its related requirements, would report directly to the General Manager, illustrating the importance of
the GSA as a separate entity.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 45
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 56 of 251



The Engineering Division is responsible for capital planning and investment for all water and wastewater facilities
and infrastructure. This would require working with contractors, managing projects, reviewing plans, and performing
design work as needed. Additionally, this division provides customer service related to new utility services,
development plan review, system leaks and other tasks. This function is supported by three FTEs which would, in
the long-term structure, include an Engineering Manager position to supervise the remaining two engineers and work
with upper management. While this division would report directly to the General Manager (a licensed engineer), it
would also work under the shared direction of the two Assistant General Managers.

In summary, the short-term and long-term consolidation scenarios proposed here represent the potential elimination
of a single position, the second General Manager, at a net potential savings of approximately $234,000 (salary and
benefits). If, however, the position is retained as recommended and reclassified as an Assistant General Manager for
Wastewater at a level equivalent to the existing MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager position
at approximately $244,125 per year, it would result in a cost increase of approximately $10,125 per year. Two
optional additional positions, a Human Resources Specialist and Control System Technician are included at a
combined cost of $215,545 per year.

Note that the potential structure and positions laid out in this section are designed to provide costs savings, where
determined feasible over the long-term under a consolidated model. Given current lean staffing levels in both
organizations, it should again be stressed that the elimination of any FTEs is not recommended; the consideration
of reclassification has potential. Administrative and managerial staff positions in a larger organization may require
higher compensation levels commensurate with the duties, which can be assessed in a few years post-consolidation.
Additional functions such as recycled water services may require the addition of more positions.

46 Ol\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 57 of 251



Financial Position

Below is a summary of the primary financial topics related to a potential consolidation of the two districts. In each
section, we discuss the current situation for the MWD, MSD, and impacts should the two be consolidated.

Bookkeeping

MWD books have two enterprise funds, one for water and one for the GSA, and MSD has one enterprise fund for
wastewater. An enterprise fund is defined by the Governmental Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB), who set the guidelines for governmental accounting standards,
as a separate accounting and financial reporting mechanism for municipal services for which a fee is charged in
exchange for goods or services (akin to a business). Because utilities charge rates to ratepayers for their services,
utilities operate as enterprise funds.

Consolidating MWD and MSD books would require three enterprise funds, one for water operations, one for
wastewater and one for the GSA. In essence, the current accounting structures could continue as-is but brought
together in a single set of books with three enterprise funds. In this way, charges for water services would remain
separate for use to cover the costs of water service provision and charges for sewer service would remain separate for
use to cover those associated costs. The purpose is to ensure that users are paying rates to cover the services provided
and the consolidated district complies with all accounting standards and California laws. Should recycled water
become a service of the new district, a potential fourth enterprise fund could be set up to track related revenues and
expenditures.

The most difficult aspect of consolidating finances into one utility would be to merge into a single chart of accounts
to govern coding of financial transactions. The consolidated utility would require three enterprise funds with fund
numbers (so that water and sewer transactions can be properly allocated), and a full chart of accounts with codes for
all necessary transactions. At first, the two charts of accounts could be merged, and duplicative entries removed. The
financial staff in the two utilities would need to meet and agree upon a new chart of accounts for implementation
over time and make the associated changes to setup in their respective financial software systems. Alternatively, the
consolidated utility could add a new field to identify transactions as either water or sanitary and continue to use the
existing charts of accounts. Ideally, the chart of accounts would be fully merged and streamlined. The effort to create
a unified chart of accounts and implement it into the systems could take six to 12 months.

Financial staff would need to examine and determine which financial software system is most beneficial for use in
the consolidated utility. Currently, MWD uses ERP Pro 10 financial software from Tyler Technologies, which was
recently upgraded, and MSD is using MAS90 by Sage. MSD staff are already evaluating the Sage system for upgrade
and/or replacement. With a new system While in the interim period the likelihood is that both systems would be
needed to run concurrently, in the longer-term a determination would need to be made whether one of the current
systems or an entirely new system would best meet the agency’s needs. An evaluation of the pros and cons of current
and other potential systems should occur, a selection made, data transferred, and staff trained. This could be a two
to three year process from start to finish which is why having concurrent systems running in the meantime is
necessary. The consolidated utility might retain one of the two current systems and simply add licenses for new staff,
or may choose to go out to identify an entirely new solution. Costs of this could range from $10,000 for a few new
licenses to $600,000 for a new ERP system, including vendor training and consulting. Any system would require the
implementation of multiple modules including fund accounting, purchasing/contracting, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable at a minimum. Other modules such as capital projects and payroll can be evaluated.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 47
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 58 of 251



Finally, a consolidated entity would need to perform an allocation of staff across its enterprise funds to ensure ample
justification and separate finances for each. To ensure compliance with California’s Proposition 218 that requires
property related fees and charges cannot exceed the cost of providing the service, and also for best accounting
principles, the consolidated entity would want to allocate costs separately to each enterprise fund. For example, the
salary of a shared finance staff member, performing work for both utilities, would need to be partially allocated to
water and partially to sanitary sewer. The same allocation would need to be made for other shared positions such as
the General Manager, Business Manager and PIO.

Revenues and Expenses

Revenues for each agency are unlikely to be greatly affected by a consolidation and would remain largely unchanged.

As shown in Table 8, MWD has FY2022 projected actuals of $26.5 million, which is over the $24.1 million budgeted,
due to water sales exceeding budget. The three largest revenue sources are water sales (70.2% of revenues), water
service charges (17.6%), and Groundwater Sustainability Authority (GSA) revenues (5.3%). The following table
shows a breakdown of MWD revenues since FY2020.

Table 8: MWD Revenues FY2020-FY2022

MWD Revenues 20 A UE:ﬁgiztid Ei;c:;;
Actuals Actuals Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Water Sales $9,317,500 $19,065,915  $18,542,822 99.0%
Water Service Charges $4,276,307 $4,486,101 $4,627,950 8.2%
Water Surcharges $5,753,179 $306,330 $307,458 -94.7%
Other Operating Revenues $135,111 $334,142 $445,719 229.9%
Subtotal -Operating $19,482,097 $24,192,488  $23,923,949 22.8%
Capital Cost Recovery Fees $0 $0 $455,018 100.0%
Rental Revenue $42,785 $43,905 $0 -100.0%
Investment Earnings $192,392 $31,515 $13,332 -93.1%
Grant Funding $0 $286,330 $409,820 100.0%
Other Non-Operating Revenues $209,752 $347,972 $312,504 49.0%
Subtotal — Non-Operating $444,929 $709,722 $1,190,674 167.6%
Groundwater Sustainability Agency $0 $1,002,486 $1,398,217 100.0%
TOTAL REVENUES $19,927,026 $25,904,696  $26,512,840 33.1%

In its most recent rate study, the MWD changed its methodology, resulting in an increase in Water Sales revenues
and decrease in Water Surcharges, with the prior Water Shortage Emergency Surcharge eliminated. The increase in
total Operating Revenues from $19.5 million in FY2020 to $24.2 million in FY2021 is a combination of the rate
increase as well as significant water sales above budget due to ongoing drought conditions. In FY2021, the GSA
began receiving revenues though a property fee assessed through the Santa Barbara County tax roll. These revenues
are for a specific and segregated purpose, however, and should not be included in consideration of general operations.

As shown in Table 9, MSD has FY22 budgeted revenues of $7.0 million, of which 94.3% is operating. Sewer service
charges contributed between 87.6% and 94.3% of total revenues since FY2020. The balance includes investment

48 OI\{TEFI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 59 of 251



earnings (loss) and property tax revenue. While revenues show a decrease of 5.3% from FY2020 to FY2022, this is
the result of conservative budgeting practices, with FY2022 revenues budgeted, not actual. Unaudited actual
revenues as of November 2022 totaled $7,474,860, an increase of 1.1% over FY2020. The District saw a decrease in
Commercial Sewer Service Charge as a result of less water usage after the Debris Flow, which resulted in many
businesses experiencing far less customers or ceasing operations altogether. Since water usage data lags a year for
current year revenues there is an anticipated uptick in revenue beginning FY2023-24.

Table 9: MSD Revenues FY2020 — FY2022

MSD Revenues P e UE:ﬁgiztid Zﬁ;c:;:
Actual Actual Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Sewer service charges $6,256,696 $6,533,184 $6,543,285 4.58%
Connection fees $119,564 $203,860 $191,597 60.25%
Other $100,843 $104,248 $75,538 -25.09%
Operating Revenue $6,477,103 $6,841,292 $6,810,420 5.15%
Property Tax $603,497 $633,568 $676,670 12.12%
Investment Income (loss) $309,612 ($14,911) $0 -100.00%
Non-Operating Revenue $913,109 $618,657 $676,670 -25.89%
TOTAL MSD REVENUES $7,390,212 $7,459,949 $7,487,090 1.31%

MSD adopted the Teeter Plan in the California Revenue and Tax Code with the County of Santa Barbara, which
guarantees 99.6% of secured property tax apportionment and 95% of unsecured. The remaining 5% is placed in a
Tax Loss Reserve Fund used to offset County tax sale losses. The MSD is assured of receiving 100% of its sewer
service charges each fiscal year. This mechanism would need to continue in a combined entity unless a different
mechanism such as basing wastewater billing on water consumption were employed. This would be a significant
change. Table 9 shows a breakdown of MSD revenues since FY2020. It should be noted that the MSD received over
$1.3 million in grant revenues in FY2018 to offset prior disaster costs, a large one-year anomaly.

Any increases to sewer service charges would come from a rate increase or increase in number of connections. Sewer
connection fees are set per MSD Board resolution and reimburse existing customers for past investment in collection
and capacity of the system. The MSD connection fee is $8,400 per equivalent residential unit. Other Services includes
miscellaneous revenue sources such as engineering review and inspections, plan check, and processing agreements.

MSD receives one-half of 1% of total property tax revenue collected by the County of Santa Barbara which increases
or decreases based upon assessed value of property within the District. Because its tax rate was below 12.5 cents per
$100 in assessed value in 1978, the MSD is exempt from Proposition 13 appropriation limits. Because the boundaries
of MWD and MSD are different, a consolidated district would need to carefully track property tax revenues and
expenses to ensure they are allocated only within the appropriate geographic areas. These revenues would not be
available on parcels outside of MSD’s boundaries unless a change is approved by LAFCO.

If the two districts were combined, revenues would total $33.5 million including $1.4 million of GSA revenues based
on FY2022 projected actuals. The majority of revenues are fairly stable, with water sales having the greatest
variability based upon usage and environmental factors such as drought impacts.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 49
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 60 of 251



MWD had a positive operating income (the difference between operating revenues and expenses) before depreciation
of $3.9 million in FY2020 and $8.5 million in FY2021. The increase in FY2021 was due to an increase in water sales
and FEMA funding and legal settlements from prior emergencies. MSD similarly had a positive operating income
before depreciation of $644,379 in FY2020 and $944,195 in FY2021.

Net position for both, inclusive of depreciation, non-operating revenues and expenses, and capital contributions, was
also positive, with MWD showing a positive change of $11.3 million in FY2020 and $8.7 million in FY2021. MSD
showed a positive change of $1.5 million in FY2020 and $851,568 in FY2021. In summary, both are contributing
positively to their bottom lines and adding to reserves.

Table 10 below shows MWD expenses from FY2020 to FY2022 based upon information from the annual audits and
other financial reports.

Table 10: MWD Expenses FY2020 to FY2022

FY2020 FY2021 Uﬁzﬁgﬁi g gﬁ;c:;;
Actuals Projected Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Cachuma Ops & Maint Board $666,821 $708,492 $762,259 14.31%
Cachuma Cons & Release Board $183,348 $159,960 $127,044 -30.71%
US Bureau of Reclamation $243,495 $259,495 $89,133 -63.39%
Cater WTP O&M $914,418 $1,070,577 $1,152,423 26.03%
Cater WTP Capital $262,896 $198,189 $147,616 -43.85%
Central Coast Water Auth — Fixed $2,334,847 $2,302,008 $1,899,198 -18.66%
DWR - Fixed $3,568,581 $3,107,780 $2,344,746 -34.29%
State Water Project (SWP) - Variable (DWR) $95,843 $32,605 $17,143 -82.11%
Supplemental Water Purchase $0 $0 $1,021,020 100.00%
JPA Operating Expense $6,128,291 $7,839,106 $7,560,582 23.37%
Jameson $200,710 $200,710 $315,660 57.27%
Transmission & Distribution $1,651,408 $1,651,408 $1,666,451 0.91%
Treatment $1,323,015 $1,323,015 $1,386,986 4.84%
Direct Expense $3,175,133 $3,175,133 $3,369,097 6.11%
Engineering $541,781 $894,046 $707,573 30.60%
Customer Service $416,408 $412,002 $409,344 -1.70%
Public Info/Conservation $132,789 $121,743 $179,073 34.86%

onteci
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 61 of 251

50 (o] TE?I oW ATEEBR ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
o Sanitary Distric



Percent

FY2022

FY2020 FY2021 Unaudited Change
Actuals Projected Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Fleet $220,158 $226,855 $246,205 11.83%
Administration $1,918,026 $2,174,539 $1,722,732 -10.18%
Semitropic Mgmt./ Maintenance/ Banking Fees $22,854 $22,411 $27,003 18.15%
MWD 218 Payment to GSA $422,200 $1,003,072 $235,925 -44.12%
Recycled Water Development $7,561 ($21,549) $397,452 5156.61%
Legal — All $152,992 $233,191 $336,009 119.63%
2020 WSA w/ Santa Barbara (Desal) $0 $0 $2,526,261 100.00%
Extraordinary $0 $118,527 $199,447 100.00%
Depreciation $1,224,820 $1,070,814 $1,156,535 -5.58%

Operating Expenses $14,363,013 $17,269,890 $19,073,238 32.79%

2004 DWR Ortega Loan $590,400 $23,556 -100.00%
2010 Bond Interest Expense $690,462 $130,426 $0 -100.00%
AMI Meter Financing $163,993 $0 $0 -100.00%
Cater DWR Loan $231,648 $231,648 $231,647 0.00%
Cater Ozone $276,323 $276,323 $276,902 0.21%
2020 Bond Interest Expense $0 $160,222 $495,200 100.00%
2020 Bond Principal $160,000 0.00%
—-—--
Capital Expenses $5,651,777 $3,831,281 $5,029,021 -11.02%

TOTAL EXPENSES $21,967,616 $22,083,346 $25,106,008 14.83%

Table 11 below shows MSD expenditures from FY2020 to FY2022.

. . s SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 51
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 62 of 251



Table 11: MSD Expenditures FY2020 to FY2022

Percent
FY2020 FY2021 raoz2 Change
Actuals Actuals (unaudited) FY2020 to

FY2022
Salaries & Benefits $2,995,138 $2,932,359 $2,614,724 -12.70%
Insurance $67,965 $66,844 $103,557 52.40%
Maintenance & Repairs $138,627 $183,068 $256,297 84.90%
Goods & Supplies $84,252 $87,107 $89,444 6.20%
Professional Services $131,273 $298,690 $197,618 50.50%
Administrative Costs $166,181 $132,478 $100,527 -39.50%
Plant & Lab Operating Costs $508,683 $508,027 $462,308 -9.10%
Safety, Training, and Travel $24,274 $12,617 $14,624 -39.80%
Utilities $203,618 $228,227 $223,421 9.70%
gebt Service Payment/ Interest $0 ($82,288) $138,850 100.00%

xpense

Total Operating Expenses $4,320,011 $4,367,129 $4,201,370 -2.75%
Covid-19 Expenses $135,604 $140,104 $0 -100.00%
MSD Debt Service Payment $327,300 $303,100 $277,700 -15.20%
MSD Bond Principal Payment $605,000 $635,000 $655,000 8.30%
Total Non-Operating Expenses $1,067,904 $1,078,204 $932,700 -12.70%
Capital Expenses $787,184 $984,707 $1,811,463 100.00%

TOTAL EXPENSES $6,175,099 $6,430,040 $6,945,533 12.50%

Based upon FY2022 financials, the districts would have combined expenses, including capital and debt service, of
approximately $32 million per year. This amount is below the approximate $34 million in revenues noted earlier.

Total MWD Operating Expenses were 75% of the total in FY2022. Excluding the JPA, which is a separate entity,
and depreciation, MWD Operating Expenses are 44% of total expenses. MSD Operating Expenses in FY2022 were
41.2% of the total. A large portion of expenditures is comprised of non-operating costs such as capital projects. We
assume for the purpose of this review that capital projects would remain the same as those already in their respective
capital improvement plans, as each district would need the same or similar investment in future infrastructure.
Currently, MSD and MWD each have capital spending budgets averaging between $2 and $5 million per year.

There may be some minor overlap in administrative costs like office supplies and other areas under a consolidated
utility. In the interim period (two to five years) there would likely be an increase in expenses as the consolidated
utility implements a single financial software and other systems, contracts for various studies such as a classification
and compensation review, and other costs of consolidation such as rebranding, new uniforms, website development,

onteci
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 63 of 251

52 (o] TE?I oW AT%} ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
o Sanitary Distric



and more. Over time, these costs may return to baseline (pre-consolidation) as the newly consolidated entity moves
forward, and could decline slightly in relative terms because of minor economies of scale.

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and benefits would be of particular interest for a potential consolidation. This section compares salary ranges
and benefits offerings between the two agencies and review how they might be impacted by consolidation.

GOVERNING BOARD COMPENSATION

Compensation for the Board of Directors of each agency was reviewed with the knowledge that any consolidated
entity would likely merge boards and require new compensation policies for the Directors.

Per MWD’s Directors’ Benefits, Compensation, and Expense Reimbursement policy dated August 21, 2007, Directors are
compensated at a day rate for attendance at MWD and other authorized meetings, and is limited to one meeting per
day and no more than 10 meetings per month. By policy, Directors are not to receive medical, dental, vision, or
retirement benefits unless elected prior to January 1, 1995.

Per MSD'’s Ordinance 20, adopted in October 2022, Board members are paid “$231.00 per day for each day of
attendance at a regular or special meeting of the Board, a meeting of a standing or ad hoc committee of the Board,
or for each day’s service rendered as a Director by request of the Board, not exceeding a total of six days in any
calendar month.” In addition, per diems are provided for attendance at conferences or seminars and reimburses costs
of travel, lodging, and meals. No mention of other benefits are included in the Manual, and it is assumed that Board
members are not eligible.

Both Boards have a day-rate pay mechanism to include meetings and committees, and neither are offered other
benefits such as medical, dental, or retirement. While the day rate of reimbursement may be different, it would be
fairly straightforward to agree upon one policy to govern a combined Board of Directors as the differences are minor
and cost impacts minimal.

Consolidation would result in the elimination of compensation for five Board members. While compensation varies
depending on attendance, a rough estimate based upon FY2020 average annual compensation of $7,000 each yields
a total estimated savings of $35,000.

STAFF COMPENSATION

In 2020, MWD performed an employee compensation comparison to provide information and recommendations to
assist in ensuring its ability to attract and retain qualified staff and ensure staff are compensated fairly and
commensurate with job duties and responsibilities. This study found that MWD'’s salaries were broadly in line with
surveyed peers and the 2019 American Water Works Association (AW WA) salary survey, based upon the high cost
of living in Santa Barbara County.

MWD has a Bi-Weekly Salary Range and Position Control Schedule with five steps. Employees may move to the
next steps based upon performance, conducted annually on or around their anniversary date. Increases are
recommended by their supervisor and must be approved by the General Manager. Any increase above one step
requires approval by the Board of Directors. In addition to the salary ranges, MWD offers a longevity pay program
that adds 2.5% after 8, 14, 20, and 26 continuous years of service as an incentive to retain staff. The Board considers

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 53
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 64 of 251



a Cost of Living Adjustment annually for all employee with the exception of the General Manager and adjustments
to the salary schedule is updated accordingly.

MSD has a five-step salary table for operations and administrative staff with increases that are available to staff each
year based upon merit; in this way, MSD staff receive increases through a combination of performance and time on
the job. Compensation for collection and treatment operators at the MSD are directly connected to their certification
levels as issued by the California Water Environment Association or State Water Resources Control Board,
respectively. They are evaluated annually on or around their anniversary date. This salary table is considered for
adjustment annually based on a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA). The table also provides hourly minimum and
maximum rates for the District Administrator, Engineering Manager, Collection System Superintendent, Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator, and Lab and Pretreatment Manager positions. The General Manager’s
compensation is established through a contract.

For both entities, the approved FY2023 salary ranges were reviewed. MWD’s salary ranges were provided with bi-
weekly pay minimums and maximums, which were multiplied by 26 to arrive at an annualized amount. The MSD
salary ranges were provided with hourly minimum and maximums for each classification, which were multiplied by
2,080 hours to arrive at an annualized amount. By converting both salary range tables to annual amounts and adding
a midpoint for each range, it is possible to quickly sort and analyze the results to determine whether there is similarity
in pay for positions with similar job duties and responsibilities, where the biggest differences might be, and steps that
would need to be taken to consolidate pay across a unified single agency. The results, sorted from smallest to largest
midpoint salary, are shown in Appendix C. It should be noted that MWD recently adopted an increase to the salary
range maximum for its 20 union represented and 8 non-represented employees, effective June 28, 2022. MSD has
recently adopted its first memorandum of understanding with its union-represented employees, while negotiations
are pending for non-represented employees.

This analysis shows some disparities in pay ranges between the two agencies, as might be expected. For example, a
Distribution Operator I in MWD has a midpoint of $66,602 while a Collections Operator I in MSD has a midpoint
of $66,102 which is 1% less. The Distribution Operator IT in MWD makes $78,803 while the Collections Operator
II in MSD makes $74,069, which is 6% less. There are minor variabilities between the two entities for many similar
positions which could require minor class and compensation adjustments to equalize salaries and to ensure equity
across staff and reduce negative impacts on morale and workplace culture.

The disparities in some positions are more significant. The MSD Collection & Maintenance Supervisor, with a
midpoint at $124,571, is 5.3% below the Treatment & Production Superintendent at MWD. As one example, the
Treatment Chief Operator and Distribution Chief Operator IV in MWD has a midpoint of $108,104 while the Chief
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator in MSD has a midpoint of $139,932, over 29% above MWD.

To consolidate the districts, a comprehensive class and compensation study would need to occur to analyze job
functions and responsibilities and to consider equalizing pay ranges for similar positions were appropriate. This
would result in some cost impacts as those positions paid at the lower level would likely require upward adjustment.
In our experience, having similar positions paid at different rates results in serious morale and retention issues for an
organization. The estimated cost of a parity adjustment across all positions, based upon the current differential
between similar positions and raising the lower paid position to match the higher, is approximately $150,000 but is
obviously variable and dependent upon collective bargaining and internal negotiations. It is important to recognize
that this is not a one-time cost but a permanent increase to the base budget for the combined entity.

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 65 of 251

54 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r'ﬁ ni aryEIfﬁstrlc{3



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

Until recently both MWD and MSD did not have employees represented by collective bargaining agreements
(unions). However, in the last year both organizations have begun the process of recognizing and negotiating their
first union contract. MSD has recently completed the process of negotiating its first agreement with 15 represented
employees; discussions are continuing for non-represented staff. The MWD Board of Directors approved a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 620 at their
regular Board meeting on June 28, 2022.

MWD’s MOU with SEIU discusses benefits, leave, rules of conduct, disciplinary guidelines, and employment
practices. Twenty of the twenty eight full-time employees employed by MWD are members of the union, all of which
are non-exempt members.? The agreement allows for periodic reviews of employee classifications and job duties in
preparation of a compensation study by the MWD as well as the ability for employees to submit a request for review
if they think their position is misclassified. The MOU also details the process for disciplinary action, appeal, and
grievance procedure.

Should the Districts pursue consolidation, partnering with any union(s) representing employees would be important.
Union representatives would be important to include in the decision making process and in discussions about the
implementation of any changes. Their inclusion would be essential both in providing the employee perspective to
MWD and MSD management and elected officials as well as in helping to communicate the reasons for changes to
union-represented employees.

STAFF BENEFITS

A comparison of benefits offered to staff in MWD and MSD shows many points of similarity with some minor
differences. Table 12 below summarizes benefits information provided in the Montecito Water District Employee
Handbook and MOU, both dated June 28, 2022, and Montecito Sanitary District Employee Handbook dated December 1,
2019 with updates from the negotiated February 2023 SEIU Local 620 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

Table 12: Staff Benefits Comparison

Regular Full and Part Time employees working
30 hours/week or more are eligible on 1st day of

Provided to all regular Full Time, Part Time,
and eligible retired employees. New
employees eligible on first of month after their

month after 30 days worked for medical and
dental. Casual, temp, or contract staff not
eligible. If hired prior to 1/1/18, District

el hire date. District pays premium for eligible contributes up to Employee Plus 1 level. If hired
employees and a portion for dependent or after 1/1/18, District contributes up to $1,400 per
family coverage if elected by the employee. represented employee per month, $1,000 per
unrepresented employee. Employee pays any
amount beyond this.
Delta Dental PPO. If hired prior to 1/1/18, District
District pays dental premium for all eligible contributes up to Employee Plus 1 level. If hired
Dental employees. Dependent/spousal coverage is at  after 1/1/18, District contributes up to $1,000 per
employee's cost. employee per month. Employee pays any
amount beyond this.
District pays vision premium for all eligible
Vision employees. Dependent/spousal coverage is at  Not offered

employee's cost.

28 Montecito Water District, Memorandum of Understanding Between MWD and SEIU Local 620, Draft June 28, 2022

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 66 of 251

55



Basic Life and AD&D

Short Term Disability

Long Term Disability

Deferred
Compensation

Retirement

Retiree Health
Coverage

Holidays

Vacation

Sick leave

Longevity Pay

Bereavement Leave

ontecito Sa

District pays premium for $50K for all eligible
active employees while employed at the
District. Dependent/spousal coverage is at
employee's cost.

District pays premium for employee.

District pays premium for employee.

Voluntary IRS 457 plan available to
employees, eligible on first day of
employment. District makes no contribution or
match.

CalPERS defined benefit plan. All Classic
members enrolled on or before 12/31/12 in 2%
at 55 plan and District pays a portion of
employee's contribution. If enrolled on or after
7/1/12, District pays employer's portion only
and employees pay their portion. PEPRA
employees enrolled on or after 1/1/13
participate in the 2% at 62 plan and pay their
own portion.

Provided if hired on or before 6/30/13, at/after
age 60, and completed 12 years of service
with District. District will pay premium for a
designated Medicare supplement for
employee only (if of Medicare-eligible age) or
amount up to one-party coverage on District's
current HMO plan if under Medicare age. No
coverage offered for employees hired after
7/1/13.

8 holidays plus four personal leave days

Full-time employees accrue time each pay
period based on length of service to District,
earning from 12 to 27 days per year. Part-time
employees working at least 20 hours/week
earn vacation on a pro-rata basis. An
employee may cash out up to a maximum of
120 hours once per calendar year, provided
they have no less than 80 hours remaining
following cash out.

All employees eligible. Full Time earn up to 96
hours per year. Part Time accrue at pro-rata
rate based upon number of hours worked.
Temporary staff accrue at rate of one hour for
every 30 hours worked. Upon departure, staff
who have worked six continuous years of
service are compensated for unused sick
leave from 50-100%

Increase of 2.5% based on performance
evaluation after 8, 14, 20 and 26 years of
continuous service with District

Up to three days for immediate family.

56 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r% ni z:’nry"clfs-\:strlc{3

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 67 of 251

District pays 1.5 times salary, up to $50K

District pays premium for all Full Time
employees.

District pays premium for all Full Time
employees

Voluntary plan, two separate IRS 457 plans
available. Employee eligible to enroll upon date
of hire and may change contribution amounts of
percentage at end of any pay period. District
makes no contribution or match.

CalPERS defined benefit plan. If hired prior to
1/1/13 or reciprocal, based on 2% at age 55
highest single year plan. If Classic hired prior to
1/1/18, District pays both District and employee
monthly contribution. For Classic hired on or
after 1/1/18, employee required to pay employee
portion through payroll deduction. Employees
hired after 12/31/12 are PEPRA plan based on
2% at age 62, final three year formula plan. The
District does not pay employee contribution.

Provided if hired prior to 7/1/10, 55+ years old at
retirement, who have worked at least 10
consecutive years with District are eligible.
District will pay premium for up to "Employee +
1" level until employee reaches age 65. No
coverage offered for employees hired after
6/30/10.

10 holidays plus four personal leave days. Part
Time employees eligible on pro-rata basis.

Full-time accrue vacation per bi-weekly pay
period from hire date to anniversary of
succeeding year based on length of service to
District. GM discretion on prior years of service.
Full and Part Time employees may begin taking
paid vacation after accruing vacation benefits.
Employees can earn 80-200 hours per year
depending on years of service.

All employees eligible. Full Time accrue up to 96
hours/year from date of hire. Part Time accrue
pro-rated to number of regularly scheduled
hours. Sick leave not accrued when employee
on leave. Upon departure, staff reimbursed for
unused sick leave from 50-100% depending
upon years of service.

Regular employees who have been at top step
of classification for one year or more are eligible
to be considered for incentive awards earned by
exceptional performance.

Up to three days for immediate family.



In general, benefits are fairly comparable. Both districts offer general medical, dental, and retirement offerings plus
vacation, sick, and holiday time. Both offer some form of retiree health care for eligible employees. Both offer
retirement through CalPERS, the public retirement system, which makes consolidation easier in that employees
would not have to convert to a new retirement system. Both offer most benefits on a pro-rata basis for part-time staff.

Minor differences exist with regard to eligibility requirements for retirement, vision insurance (offered by MWD but
not MSD) and longevity pay. A consolidated utility would need to redefine eligibility for all benefit types and
determine a single consistent offering to staff. Cost impacts of these changes is roughly estimated at $50,000 to work
through parity issues and would continue each year thereafter as an addition to the consolidated entity’s base budget.

Investments

Also important to financial condition and operations is investment of available cash. Most public organizations
utilize investments to provide interest income as an additional non-operating revenue sources. According to the
annual audited financials for period ending June 30, 2021, MWD held the following investments in accordance with
its Investment Policy (Resolution 2233) dated June 28, 2022. All investments have a maturity of 12 months or less,
providing reasonable liquidity and the ability to draw upon funds if needed.

Table 13: MWD Investment Portfolio

Cosscrpion T o

Central Coast Water Authority Investment Pool $1,495,584
Semitropic Stored Water Recovery Units $1,924,510
Money-Market Mutual Funds (Schwab) $5,676,938
ARB Money Market $7,451,833
TOTAL $16,548,865

The MWD received $32,242 in interest revenues in FY2021 and $13,332 in FY2022. Average total annual investment
earnings since FY2018 have been $145,246 per year, for an average return of 1.6% based upon the FY2021 portfolio
of $9.1 million. Investment income rose in FY2019 and FY 2020, dropping significantly during FY2021 and FY2022
as a result of economic conditions. At the time of this review, the District also held over $6.5 million in a checking
account, some of which may be invested in the future.

In addition, the MWD has liquid cash in check and money market accounts. The City of Santa Barbara holds over
$777,000 of MWD funds as debt service coverage and reserve for the Water Supply Agreement.

Though by budget the MSD is only one fourth of the size of MWD, the MSD has almost the same amount of invested
cash assets. The MSD has distributed its investable monies in two vehicles: 1) the Santa Barbara County Investment
Pool, and 2) the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California controlled investment pool.
Funds are readily available from either pool. As of June 30, 2021, MSD held the following investments.

Table 14: MSD Investment Portfolio

T T

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $2,016,534
Santa Barbara County Investment Pool $14,626,965
TOTAL $16,643,499

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 57
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 68 of 251



The MSD investment policy, Resolution No. 2013-883, states that it shall be its policy to invest funds, with maximum
security through diversification and prudence, in a manner that would provide the highest investment return while
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity and conforming to all statutes governing investment of public
funds.

MSD received $31,515 in interest revenues in FY2021. Average annual investment earnings since FY2018 is
$193,756 per year, for an average return of 1.2% based upon the FY2021 portfolio of $16.6 million. Investment
income rose in FY2019 and FY 2020, dropping significantly during FY2021 as a result of economic conditions.

According to the annual audit, MSD investments lost $14,911 in FY 2021. The MSD has adopted a more
conservative investing approach than MWD, with 100% of its assets put into municipal investment pools. MWD
has over 62% of its assets in money market mutual funds.

Information on individual rates of return for specific investment vehicles was not available for this review. If
consolidated, the new district would need to review which investment vehicles have performed well, are easiest to
administer, and provide the most security and return at the lowest cost. The consolidated district could transfer funds
between them accordingly as part of active treasury management to maximize interest earnings, but be careful not
to improperly mix enterprise funds. Over time, the consolidated district can eliminate specific investment vehicles
deemed to be underperforming in comparison to others. Some investment vehicles may offer enhanced interest rates
for larger deposits, which may be possible in a consolidated district. Since predicting interest returns is highly
speculative and dependent upon market conditions, and because the amount is not likely to be material, no change
is predicted as a result of consolidation.

Debt and Debt Service

At the time of this review, MWD had three outstanding debts. The largest is the 2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds,
used to refund two prior debts, the DWR-Ortega Loan and 2010A Refunding Revenue Certificates of Participation,
taking advantage of favorable rates with a savings valued at over $3.3 million. The 2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds
have variable rates from 4-5% and will mature through July 1, 2029. The total outstanding balance of principal and
interest as of June 30, 2021, was $13,938,700. Annual debt service payments average $1.64 million beginning in
FY23.

MWD participated in two debt financings as part of a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the City of Santa Barbara.
MWD receives a portion of its water supplies from or through the Cachuma Project, and these supplies are treated
by the City of Santa Barbara’s Cater Water Treatment Plant. MWD has a JPA with the City of Santa Barbara as of
November 1, 2003, to participate in a California Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) financing of $19.2
million to fund general plant improvements. A second JPA with the City, also entered into on November 1, 2003,
and for a DWSRF financing, was for ozone treatment improvements at the plant. The following table summarizes
MWD outstanding debt obligations.

Table 15: MWD Debt Obligations

Balance June TS
Title Annual Debt Payoff Year
30, 2021 .
Service

2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds $13,938,700 $1.640,000 FY2030
Crater DWR Loan (JPA) $3,782,400 $235,000 FY2026
Crater Ozone Loan (JPA) $4,300,000 $275,000 FY2035

58 OI\{TEFI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 69 of 251



In addition to this direct debt, MWD also pays annual debt service to the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA),
a JPA within Santa Barbara County, toward its State Water Project debt. While not on the District’s books, it is a
required annual debt service payment. In FY2022 unaudited actual expense was $4,243,945.

At the time of this review, MSD had one active debt, revenue bonds used in 2017 to refund prior 2007 Certificates
of Participation in order to take advantage of favorable interest rates. According to the ACFR, the total issue amount
was $10,020,000 with a principal and interest balance of $9,194,600 as of June 30, 2021. Debt service has a variable
rate with annual debt service averaging approximately $915,000 per fiscal year. If taken to full term, this debt will be
retired in 2031. The following table summarizes MSD outstanding debt obligations.

Table 16: MSD Debt Obligations

. Balance June Average Annual
2017 Sewer Refunding Revenue $9.194,600 $915,000 FY2031
Bonds T ’

A consolidated debt service schedule for both MWD and MSD for the next 10 years is provided in the following
table. As can be seen, debt service totals just over $3 million per year through FY2026, dropping to $2.83 million
through FY2030 and then dropping again to $1.2 million in FY2031.

Table 17: Consolidated MWD and MSD Debt Obligations

Loan Title FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031

2020A
Refunding
Revenue
Bonds
Cater DWR
Loan (JPA)
Cater Ozone
Loan (JPA)
2017 Sewer
Refunding
Revenue
Bonds

';::‘allitliebt $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $1,190,000

Given that both entities have incorporated these obligations and the annual debt service payments into their budgets
already, we do not see any impact on a consolidated utility. There may be opportunity to further reduce costs by
further consolidating and refunding the debts, depending upon interest rates at the time and the ability to allocate
costs between enterprise funds.

$1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 =

$235,000 $235,000 $235,000 $235,000 $235,000 - - - - -

$275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000

$915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000 $915,000

Working Capital and Reserves

Working capital (reserves) for utilities are the accumulated difference over time between revenues and expenditures.
When a utility’s revenues exceed its expenditures, the difference is added to its working capital which builds over
time with a goal of having funds available to help manage risk. Conversely, should a utility expend more than its
revenues, this overspend in a single year is drawn from the accumulations of working capital from prior positive
years. Having funds available to mitigate risk is critical for utilities due to the uncertainty that can impact them, such
as unforeseen breaks in extremely high cost capital assets, lower than budgeted usage, extreme weather events, and

. . — SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 59
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 70 of 251



source supply and energy costs that are not in the utility’s control, among other factors. The level of working capital
can be measured as the available buffer or margin for an enterprise fund.

According to its Reserve Policy adopted via Resolution 2237 dated June 28, 2022, MWD has established five
unrestricted Board Committed reserves, as shown in the following table. Committed reserves, as defined by GASB
54, is a classification including amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes determined by a formal action
of the government’s highest decision-making authority (in this case, the MWD Board). These reserves can only be
used for these purposes and can only be repurposed if the Board approves such an action.

Table 18: MWD FY2022 Committed Reserves

June 28, 2022
Reserve Category Description Balance
unaudited

Approximately three months of total operating
Operations Reserve expenditures. Can be used as an alternate short- $3,400,000
term or immediate-purpose funding source.
To provide protection for losses in the event of
hydrological, meteorological, or man-made
emergency in which MWD infrastructure is severely

Emergencies damaged. Can be used as gap funding to cover time $500,000
from loss until insurance payout, as well as
deductible.

Unplanned Capital Provides cash necessary to construct, procure, or

Projects repair new/existing infrastructure that wasn’t planned $500,000
at budget adoption.
Established in FY21 to fund pay-go capital expense

Water Supply associated with t_he Santa Barbara Desalinat!on

Agreement Plant. As a condition, MWD must fund a portion of $600,000
maintenance costs; this reserve to be funded
annually.

Supplemental Water \Il:’vrac:\éirdes cash for the acquisition of supplemental $3.,000,000

Unlike MWD, MSD has no committed or restricted reserve types but instead has four designated reserves as shown
in the following table. Per GASB 54, designated reserves are included as unrestricted reserves, which are set at levels
established by either formal or informal policies of the utility and can either be committed for specific uses (as with
MSD) or available for a variety of uses. Their use is subject to Board approval.

Table 19: MSD FY2021 Designated Reserves

Roservs Category

Funds set aside in the County Retirement Benefits

Designated for Fund that pays for the post-retirement benefits
Retirement Benefits available to a finite number of employees (those $184,072
Obligation employed prior to July 1, 2010, and who retire from

the District).

Funds set aside in the County Capital Infrastructure
Designated for Capital Fund to fund the District’'s Capital Improvement
Replacement Program. The amount typically contributed is equal
to the prior year’s audited depreciation expense.
Funds set aside in the State LAIF Investment Fund
to be utilized when unforeseen project/operational
needs arise but for which there is no budget in the $2,016,534
normal Operations & Maintenance and Capital
Improvement Program funds.

$7,622,671

Designated for
Reserves

60 (o] TE?I oW AT%;? ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 71 of 251



Rosorvs Category

Funds set aside in the MBT Recycled Water
Checking Account specifically for the purpose of
Designated for studying the feasibility of recycled water. The District $1.096.679
Recycled Water received a small grant to start the project and funded ’ ’
the fund with two years of its typical %z of 1% of
property tax revenues.

In summary, the MSD reserves are unrestricted and available for any use by Board vote; MWD reserves are
committed to more specific categories of use. In both cases, reserves can be changed by action of the respective Board.

GFOA recommends that local governments take numerous local factors into account in establishing the level of
working capital in a formalized reserve policy, including:

e Strength of collection practices

e Historical consumption of inventories and prepaids

e Transfers out (if applicable)

e (Cash cycles

e  Customer concentration

e Demand for service

e Control over rates and revenues

e Asset age and condition

e Volatility of expenses

e Control over expenses

e Management plans for working capital (restrictions, designations)

e Debt position

GFOA recommends a target level of working capital in enterprise funds to be between 45 and 90 days of annual
operating expenses. This is typically for unrestricted working capital that can be used for any operational purpose.
Based upon combined Operating Expenses of $23.3 million in FY22, the consolidated utility would require between
$2.9 million (45 days) and $5.7 million (90 days) as an Operating Reserve. The combined current MWD Operating
Reserve and MSD Designated for Reserves amount is $5.4 million, which is slightly below 90 days of operating
reserves. When the Districts are combined, the unified board should revisit reserve level policies to assess whether
they are appropriate or could be adjusted. However, it’s important to note, that in order to maintain compliance
with Proposition 218, enterprise fund reserves cannot be commingled or combined, and each separate fund should
have a specific reserve target based upon the nature of the utility, potential variability due to drought or natural
disasters, and other conditions.

. . — SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 61
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 72 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

62 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 73 of 251



Operations and Efficiencies

This section will review the potential impacts of consolidation on operations and identify potential efficiencies that
could result from consolidation.

Economies of Scale

As noted earlier in this report, a combined utility can present efficiencies in terms of administrative and engineering
staffing. Generally, fewer management and administrative support staff are necessary in combined utilities.
According to the 2020 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Utility Benchmarking survey, the median
combined utility has 43.5% of overall staffing used for management, engineering, and customer service positions
compared to 49.1% for water only utilities.?® As noted earlier in the staffing section, combining district administrative
groups would result in additional staff to focus on each business area; for example, while Human Resources may be
the focus of one person half-time now, the combined agency would have a single employee fully devoted to nothing
but Human Resources.

Operational economies of scale are harder to envision but there is potential in areas such as fleet and facility
maintenance due to the addition of more vehicles and more facilities over which costs and staff time can be spread.
There is some potential savings through joint contracting on some chemicals, materials, or parts. Operations staff
may see some savings through sharing of resources and learning of best practices between MWD and MSD staff.

Because there would be few changes to current operating methods and organizational structure in the short-term,
cost savings as a result of operational efficiencies are limited and would depend greatly on the interactivity between
MWD and MSD operations staff. There is greater potential for savings due to economies of scale in the
administrative and engineering functions.

Provision of Recycled Water

One operational area that combined utilities can readily collaborate on is using water resources wisely, which
includes conservation, water reclamation, and water reuse. This is advocated in the industry as part of a “One Water”
approach where water resources are managed through the entire water cycle, from sourcing to reclamation to
recycling. Reclaimed water is non-potable but can be used to augment water supplies for irrigation, industrial,
ecological, aquifer recharge (limited), and municipal uses.3°

In areas prone to drought or with restricted water supplies, like California, the use of reclaimed water can increase
water supply as long it is done in a regulatory compliant and environmentally sound way that is protective of
downstream users. In some cases, water reuse is also a possibility. Water reuse involves additional treatment of
treated wastewater, brackish, or saline supplies (ocean water) to at least drinking water standards. Utilities with
scarce water supplies often consider a combination of conservation, water reclamation, and water reuse that is
appropriate for their circumstance. Because of the long-term drought in California and groundwater depletion
throughout the State, most water experts expect the State will broaden the allowed use of recycled water over the
next few years. The State will likely consider curtailing ocean discharge from sanitation districts in the near future.

2 American Water Works Association (AWWA), 2020 AWWA Utility Benchmarking, Page 31.
%0 American Water Works Association (AWWA), Reclaimed Water for Public Water Supply Purposes,

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 63
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 74 of 251



The two Districts are partnering on an Enhanced Recycled Water Feasibility Study and on this assessment of the
feasibility of Special District consolidation. The Recycled Water study focuses on potable reuse options and evaluates
the potential for greater collaboration with other agencies in the region, including the Carpinteria Valley Water and
Carpinteria Sanitary Districts, as well as the City of Santa Barbara.

As noted earlier in this report, one of the benefits of consolidation is to have a single governing board to oversee
projects like recycled water, which intersects with both water and wastewater operations. While the two separate
districts can certainly collaborate as they do now, a single Board of Directors would ensure a unified approach in the
long term.

Facilities
This section reviews administrative and other general facilities for potential consolidation opportunities. Our

assumption is that operational facilities, such as treatment plants, pipelines, and pump stations, would be largely
unaffected by consolidation and continue as-is to ensure ongoing water and sewer operations to customers.

MWD FACILITIES

The main office for the MWD is located at 583 San Ysidro Road, on a major arterial in Montecito. According to the
Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Office, it is a 3.03-acre site with residential properties to the east, commercial
properties to the west and south, and government (Montecito Fire District) and residential uses to the north. A
satellite image of the site is provided in the following figure.

The site encompasses several buildings, including:

64 OB{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 75 of 251



e Administrative Office Building that includes offices for the General Manager, Assistant General Manager/
Engineering Manager, Administrative/HR Assistant, Public Information Officer, 2 Assistant Engineers,
Business Manager, Financial Analyst/IT Specialist, Senior Office Technician, two Office Technician II, and
a GSA Groundwater Specialist, as well as a Board meeting room

e Modular building with office space for the Distribution Superintendent and Water Conservation Specialist

e A residential unit for one employee who also serves as site caretaker after business hours

e Shop offices for Distribution employees, including restrooms, a break room, and equipment storage

e Storage buildings for files, meters, valves, and more

e Repair facilities for vehicles and minor equipment

e A large storage area for sand, gravel, large pipes, and more

e A pumping station and emergency generator

e A groundwater well and associated appurtenances

The Administration building is approx. 100 years old and appears to be well maintained but at maximum capacity
for staff of 12. If administrative staff were added to the site from MSD, a small addition to the building or additional
modular facilities would likely be required. There is adequate room on the site for another minor structure or an
addition to the Administration building and some increase to parking. There may be other code or zoning
requirements in effect that could impact site expansion which would need to be investigated.

The Board meeting room is small and, while sufficiently sized to accommodate the Board’s routine business, cannot
handle significant numbers of public such as when considering a water rate increases. In this case, MWD staff secure
the use of other locations for larger crowds, such as nearby schools or churches.

MSD FACILITIES

The main offices for the MSD are located at 1042 Monte Cristo and 910 Channel Drive in Montecito (this single site
spans both addresses). This is a quiet and exclusive property; according to the Santa Barbara Assessor’s Office, the
site is approximately 6.3 acres, adjacent to residential properties to the south, parking for the Music Academy of the
West on the east, Southern Pacific Railroad track and Highway 101 on the north, and the Santa Barbara Cemetery
on the west. A satellite image of the site is provided in the following figure.

. . s SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 65
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 76 of 251



Figure 20: Aerial Photo of MSD Administrative Office

The site includes the following:
e Administrative offices for the MSD for the following:
- Board meeting room
- General Manager
- District Administrator
- Reception area and office for Accounting/ Admin Assistant
- Engineering Manager
e All treatment facilities necessary for conventional secondary treatment and disinfection
e Equipment for a small, recycled water demonstration project
e Drying beds for use in emergencies
¢ A modular office for Lab and Pretreatment Manager
e An office for Chief Treatment Plant Operator
e Modular restrooms
e Large locker facilities for collection and treatment plant employees
e Maintenance shop and Garage facilities for maintaining equipment such as the District’s vacuum truck,
CCTV van, lift station pump and other mechanical equipment

All administrative and operational staff for the MSD are based at this location. The site is well maintained with space
for future growth, including possible expansion of the existing treatment plant, as well as addition of new recycled
water facilities. In 2020, prior management was planning to construct new offices, a community meeting room and
a small residential housing/caretaker unit on site; however, in 2020, the MSD Board of Directors chose not to
implement this plan.

The administrative office area is adequate, but at maximum capacity for staff, with no room for additional staff unless
additional offices are added. Recent improvements have been made to the Board room which is nearly equivalent
size to the MWD Board meeting room. As with MWD, it is small and sufficiently sized to accommodate the Board’s
routine business, but cannot handle significant numbers of public and, in these cases, another location must be
utilized.

CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES

Upon initial review, the pros and cons of each site are summarized in the following table.

66 Or\iTECI oW ATEEBR ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 77 of 251



Table 20: Pros and Cons of MWD and MSD Facilities

o Aesthetically pleasing site near

commercial area and residences

Caretaker residence onsite

Office for Water Conservation Specialist

MWD: Vehicle/equipment repair facility

583 San Ysidro Road Oﬁlce§, restrooms, and break room for

operations staff

Materials storage area

e Adequate room available for additional
administrative office space

e No room within existing admin
building for additional 4 staff without
minor modification
Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

e 100 years old

e Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

e No room within existing
administrative building for additional

e More industrial site with less impact on 12 staff without significant
neighbors (including freeway and modification to the existing building
cemetery) e No offices or break rooms for

e Past plans for expansion already operations staff

MSD: complete but w?ll require reworking e No caretaker unit onsite
1042 Monte Cristo Lane * Updated and slightly larger Board room *  Board meeting room of insufficient

e Sewer treatment facilities onsite size on infrequent occasions

o Offices for Lab/Pretreatment Manager e The vacant space on MSD property
and Chief Treatment Plant Operator is reserved for both replacement of
onsite the existing treatment process as

e Locker facilities for operations staff well as a potential recycled water

facility.

The high cost of local real estate in the area makes purchasing a new site impractical and, given the existing assets in
place, expansion and consolidation is the more prudent approach. Either site, if expanded, could be used to house
the consolidated administration and management functions, which would provide the benefit of a single, centrally
located site for customer contacts. Both Districts are currently lacking sufficient administrative space. Based upon
this initial review, the MWD site is more suitable to accommodate a combined management and administrative staff
as it has sufficient available land space, is more centrally located, and because moving in the MSD administrative
staff of four is far fewer than moving 12 from MWD. The existing materials storage space and vehicle/equipment
repair facilities at MWD could remain on the site and used for the benefit of a consolidated entity.

Relocating the four MSD administrative staff to the MWD site is preferred form a cost and staffing perspective. The
former MSD Board Room and office spaces could be reconfigured to incorporate plans for additional offices,
restrooms, breakrooms, and lockers for staff. Some staff now based at MWD might be moved to MSD and vice
versa. While the size of the MWD Board meeting room is insufficient to meet the needs of every meeting, offsite
meetings with high public interest can be scheduled in local community facilities.

An expansion and renovation plan would likely take 1-2 years in order to prepare architectural drawings and plans
to remodel one or both sites and to provide funding for the project, and then another year or more to construct. By
utilizing a combination of the existing sites in the most cost-effective way, the consolidated district should have
sufficient space for management and administrative staff and improved facilities for operations staff. A very
conservative cost estimate would be between $50,000 and $250,000 to provide minimal renovations to existing spaces
and purchase some modular trailers to put onsite if needed. One-time relocation and moving costs are estimated to
be between $5,000 and $30,000.

In the interim, management and administrative staff would remain in their existing facilities but should make a
concerted effort to meet regularly at a single location in order to begin to know each other, clarify roles, and share

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 67
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 78 of 251



information. As an alternative, certain groups could move and consolidate, allowing functions like customer service
and engineering to be unified. By remaining physically separated, it would be difficult to truly feel like a consolidated
utility, and every effort should be made to break through this barrier until physical co-location is possible.

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 79 of 251

68 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r% ni aryElfﬁstrlcP



The Feasibility of
Consolidation

Based upon an analysis of the impacts of potential consolidation on governance and staffing, financial position, and
efficiencies and operations, it seems that consolidation offers modest potential benefits but at a cost.

Interim Consolidation

Due to the distinct services and regulatory environments for water and wastewater operations, the opportunities for
consolidation among operations staff are limited. Generally, operators in each type of utility require different
certifications and training. Consolidation presents an opportunity to align maintenance staff that support these
operators and, as the organization works toward consolidation, align policies and procedures where appropriate.
Some dual-certifications (water and wastewater) may also be possible in the future. This may become helpful if a
recycled water facility is constructed.

In the interim period, reporting relationships for frontline operations staff could remain relatively unchanged.
Alignment should begin at the management and supervisor levels, and the General Manager should be responsible
for organizing the consolidated staff. In the interim period, MWD and MSD could align operations staff under two
Assistant General Managers who can assist with day-to-day operations for water and wastewater, manage policies,
and align service level expectations. These positions would report to the General Manager. It would be helpful to
have both current General Manager positions available for the interim period to apply their knowledge of the water
and wastewater specialties. In the potential organizational structure shown below, the MSD General Manager
position is reclassified as the Assistant General Manager for Wastewater, but the Board should decide who would
become the General Manager of the consolidated entity.

The organizational structure for water operations could remain unchanged, with the MWD Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager serving as the Assistant General Manager for Water and supervising both
distribution and water treatment & production superintendents and managing the associated CIP and related
engineering.

The organizational structure for wastewater operations could also remain unchanged, with the reclassified General
Manager position serving as the Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and supervising both the Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Operator and Collections Superintendent.

Figure 21 shows a potential interim consolidated structure with MSD positions shaded in orange and MWD
positions shaded in blue.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 69
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 80 of 251



ainjonu}g Aouaby wiiaju] [eijuajod : Lz 2inbi4

SL1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3L1LVM OLIOILNONW

3140
JoyesadQ jueld
juswpeal] Jalep
[
. 3140}
WO JoyesadQ
Joyerado eyo |k -
juswpeal] Jayep uonnqusia
/ Uerdluyos] 189|4
. 31401 .
. 31401 . 314 0%
3140°) Joyesado 1 314 ﬁmo UeloluyosL Jojesado
1sieroads 1 / ueloa | Jojesado — oueusjUe| SUETEI
/3shjeuy [eroueury woysAs [04uoD) uonnquisig
| |
3140} . . 314 0% 3140} 31401
a140z JUeISISSY | i iotesed SR Iojesod Weisks
|l UBPIUYID] 3OO BAljeJISIuIWPY | jEje1En Weq JaIyD UoRNqUISIa jue|d Juswjeas | Soueusjuley J9Iyd Suod3d||0] pesT
® Bununoooy T T
[ ——— _ _
- 3140} . 3140}
. . . 31401 . 31401
314071 31401 31407} JuspusuLadng 3140°L JoyesadQ TEENENIEANS Jabeuepy
ueouUYoa | JojeJjsiuiwpy isiiernads uoPNPoIy juspusjuedng  |— jueld jeyd SVEIREED) juswyeaqald
920 IS jouIsIg uoljeAIasuoQ J8je 1 JUBWIEal | uoiinquisig /1dng juswieas | : » Aiojeioge]
- 3140} .
31407} 314 0°€
3140°} 1818\ ‘_Em\sm.gmm>> 1els Buussuibug
labeueyy ssauisng - N "Issy -INO 1SSV
3140} 31401
190140 Jsiepads
uoljew.oju| oland 18)EMPUN0ID

3140}
juejsissy 31401

$80IN0S8Y UeWNnH
| SAJEISIUILIPY

Jabeuepy [e1sus

si008117 J0 pieog

oL

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 81 of 251



This potential structure maintains current staffing and preserves many current reporting relationships. However,
should the organization move toward long term consolidation it will be important for the staff responsible for grounds
maintenance, fleet maintenance, and facilities maintenance to coordinate and align their work. This includes the
Chief Maintenance Mechanic, Facilities Maintenance Technician, Groundskeeper, Fleet Technician, Dam
Caretaker, and Control System Technician. Even though they are not aligned structurally in the interim period they
need to work together to ensure they can support the needs of the combined utility.

Long Term Consolidation

Over the first three to five years, operations staff could work toward a structure with three divisions reporting to the
General Manager: Water Operations, Wastewater Operations, and Maintenance. While other options are available,
a proposed long-term structure for operations is shown in the following figure with changes made to positions to
align titles and clarify roles.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 71
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 82 of 251



314 07%¢

I UBIUYdd | 0O

31404
Je)sissy
SAljedisiulwpy
%» Bununoooy

31401
— ueloOIUYoS |
2010 Jolueg

S1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3LVM OLIOILNOWN <L

ainjonng Aouaby wua] HuoT [enpuajod :ze ainbi4

31407C
JoyesadQ jueld
Juswyeal] Joyep\

314074
JoyeradQ JoIUD
Juswjyeal] Joyep

31404
ueoluyoa ]
waysAg [04u0)

31401
ieyejeIe) Weq

J140°4
ueloIuyYos |
wa)ysAg [04juo)

31401
JojeuisIulWpY
ousia

31401

1 siepeds
$82IN0S9y uewnH

314071
Isljeads
uoleAIBSUOD Joje )

31407
juspusjuiledng
uolnonpold
R Juswieal]

. 31401 3140
31409 1abeuepy JoyesadQ
Jojessdo uswie el e uonoasjio

womnauS Juowjealjold B qe 108100
_ 31407
31401 Joyesadp 3140
JoyeladQ waisAg
Jojesedo Jueld juswieal | uono9|j0) pes
Jo1yD uolnguisig Jsjemalse 1800 pEen
_ _ |
3140 :
31401 Jojesedo Loww,w_qu”m
juepusjuiiedng Jueid JoIyo WalsAg UoNoa|I0
uonnquisia /1dns uswieal | oS voRIeo

31401
ueloluyoe |
aoueuB)UBI

senoed

31401
Jabeuely saoInIesg
aAljeJjsiuiwpy

31407
Joyep — Jabeuepy
|eJaua9) jue)sissy

31404
I9)ema)sepn
— Jabeuepy
[eJaua9) jue)sissy

31407C
199u1BuT JUB)SISSY

314071
olueyYOBN
looueUBIUIB JOIUD

3140°4
Jabeuep
Buuasuibug

31401

19040
uoljewloyu| oljgnd

31401
jsijernads
13)empunols)

31401
jue)sissy
aAneUSIUIWPY

3140°)

Jabeuely [e1auen

sJojall( 4o pieog

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 83 of 251



‘While the option exists to eliminate the second General Manager position, for reasons noted above, we recommend
reclassifying the position to Assistant General Manager for Wastewater. The MWD Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager position would similarly be converted to an Assistant General Manager for Water,
responsible for the water distribution and treatment. It is recommended that the Assistant General Manager title
remain in use in order to support succession planning for the agency.

Staff that perform grounds, facilities, vehicle, and equipment maintenance are restructured to report to the Chief
Maintenance Mechanic, and the position could later be retitled to a Maintenance Supervisor or similar position. This
allows the two Assistant General Managers to focus on the needs for those utilities. The Maintenance Division would
be responsible for all operational support functions including maintenance at all facilities, plants, and properties.
Over time it would be important to monitor the workload of this Division to ensure they have the appropriate staff
to support the combined utility.

Table 21 below summarizes the pros and cons of potential consolidation of the two districts:

Table 21: Pros and Cons of Consolidation

e Costs of remodeling and physical co-location

o Better integrated water policies and approach e Cost of new shared systems such as financial

e Unified governing board management software

e Some savings through potential elimination of one o  Staff time to review policies and procedures and to
position merge operations (especially administrative)

o Greater staff specialization e Impacts on staff morale and retention

e Some economies of scale through shared contracting,
shared resources (tools, chemicals), and coordination

Diverts staff capacity from other initiatives
Perceived or real loss of local control and dilution of
services

The primary benefit of consolidation is not financial. Potential cost savings are relatively minimal compared to the
combined $32 million budgets of the two organizations. Instead, the primary benefit is a single Board making
determinations on water policies, especially if the decision is made to go forward with a recycled water program.
This is especially important in how costs are allocated to ratepayers. Under the current governance structure, or even
if a new joint powers arrangement is utilized, there will be an inherent conflict between how to allocate costs and
responsibilities. A single unified board would eliminate this potential for conflict.

It is important to note that consolidation is a time-intensive effort requiring large amounts of general manager and
administrative staff capacity for two to three years. During this interim period, it will be critical to make sure that
resources dedicated to ensuring a smooth transition do not detract from other important priorities for the new district.
This would include advancing recycled water projects and acquiring state and federal grants funds that have been
included in recent federal legislation.

Potential for Collective Savings

Both in the short term and the long term, the potential for savings from consolidation/reorganization are limited.
Due to the distinct regulatory environment and operating needs, water and wastewater operations are generally
separate functions even in combined utilities. However, there is opportunity to align service levels, policies, and
management structures. Over time there is also potential for cross training and investment in additional licensing or

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 73
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 84 of 251



certification to allow operators to backup one another and assist with large projects or in the event of an emergency,
but this would likely also require additional incentives such as those non-required certifications that could benefit the
district in emergencies.

As the organization aligns administrative functions like purchasing and materials management, there may also be a
potential savings in pursuing larger contracts compared to what MWD or MSD could pursue alone. While water
and wastewater operations are quite different, there may be the potential for the combined utility to pursue larger
contracts for some chemicals, materials, or parts compared, which could reduce the overall cost paid by MWD and
MSD separately. Similarly, by pooling tools, equipment, and vehicles the combined organization can maximize the
utilization of these items, potentially reducing the need for duplicative equipment. The accredited MSD laboratory
could possibly assist in processing water samples to reduce costs and delays of contracting these out, but these savings
would be offset by the cost of an additional FTE, and equipment/supplies needed to perform the work. MSD’s
SCADA system, the software that provides live data on plant operations and can alarm staff when there are issues,
could potentially be improved through collaboration with MWD’s in-house controls specialists.

There would be potential for service level enhancements by allowing operational staff to specialize and focus upon
their specific area of expertise. For example, rather than requiring the Distribution Supervisor to also oversee fleet
maintenance needs for the organization (though a small percentage of overall job duties), the position could now
focus 100% on water system maintenance and repair. This specialization should improve service levels over time,
compared to operations staff that were responsible for multiple maintenance or operating areas. This is similar to
administrative staff currently performing multiple roles such as human resources and information technology and
now being able to specialize and focus on one.

Based upon this study, the net financial impact of consolidation over the next 10 years (long term) is a savings
between $370,000 and $655,640. This assumes the immediate implementation of salary savings by eliminating the
former MSD General Manager position, eliminating pay for five Board members, professional services and materials
and supplies savings, and additional interest income. This also includes one-time consolidation costs of potential
facility renovation and/or expansion, transition costs, new financial software, and the ongoing cost of providing
parity across staff salary and benefits, as well as adding two new positions, a Human Resource Specialist and a
Control System Technician, to enhance service levels and are recommended. The largest cost driver is the cost of
salary and benefits parity and whether or not the second General Manager position is eliminated and the two new
positions added, as well as costs of any renovation work to facilities. Actual net impacts would vary depending upon
the actions taken by the districts and combined utility, if approved.

74 Ol\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 85 of 251



Table 22: Net Savings (Costs) of Consolidation over 10 Years

Over 10 Year Horizon
Description Type Low High Low High
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Elimination of second General Manager

position Ongoing $0 $234,000 $0  $2,340,000
Add Human Resources Specialist (years 3-10) Ongoing $0 ($80,791) $0 ($646,328)
Add Control System Technician (years 3-10) Ongoing $0  ($134,754) $0 ($1,078,032)
Eliminate pay for five Board members Ongoing $35,000 $35,000 $350,000 $350,000
Professional services savings Ongoing $50,000 $150,000 $500,000 $1,500,000
Annual materials and supplies savings Ongoing $5,000 $25,000 $50,000 $250,000
¢:':rig‘;'_‘1a('))i"te’e5t income (Implemented Ongoing $5,000  $10,000 $25,000 $50,000
$:::s°;_%‘;;’idi“9 VB [P0 7 (T EElize Ongoing ($25,000)  ($150,000)  ($200,000) ($1,200,000)
$:::s°;_%‘;"idi"9 benefits parity (Implemented ;. ($25,000)  ($50,000)  ($200,000)  ($400,000)
Financial software/ IT costs e ($5,000)  ($30,000)  ($50,000)  ($30,000)
Office remodeling/ expansion costs One-Time ($50,000)  ($250,000) ($50,000) ($250,000)
Relocation costs One-Time ($5,000) ($30,000) ($5,000) ($30,000)
Consolidation studies and legal costs One-Time ($50,000)  ($200,000) ($50,000) ($200,000)

NET SAVINGS (COSTS) OF CONSOLIDATION ($65,000) | ($471,545) |  $370,000 $655,640

Hurdles to Progress

The potential hurdles to progress include change management, collective bargaining, communication, and training.
Any amount of organizational change can be difficult on employees. It would be important for the leadership of
MWD and MSD to communicate honestly, frequently, and in a variety of ways to ensure all staff understand planned
changes and how it would impact them.

To support ongoing operations, it would be important for the Maintenance Division, Water Operations Division,
and Wastewater Operations Division to communicate regularly and align their work. This would be a new practice
for the staff in all three workgroups and a change in how facilities, grounds, and equipment maintenance was done
previously. To ensure excellent service to customers, the communication between maintenance staff and treatment
staff would be particularly important.

Risks

The potential structural changes to treatment and field operations functions are intended to limit risk by limiting the
disruption to the core functions of the utilities. There is still the potential for risk, particularly in facilities and
equipment maintenance support, aligning policies and procedures, and retaining talented staff. The most significant
change for treatment and field operations is to the grounds, equipment, and facilities maintenance functions.
Previously, in MWD, these tasks were under the direct supervision of plant or distribution supervisors. This creates

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 75
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 86 of 251



natural alignment in work planning but separating these functions into their own Division would require proactive
coordination. The potential structure is similar to how MSD operates currently, so should have limited impact on
wastewater operations.

Another potential risk is aligning policies and procedures among operating areas; this is particularly important for
the safety of frontline staff. All staff need to have a clear understanding of the proper protocols for different tasks and
especially tasks that are dangerous. In the interim period it would be important for supervisory staff to align their
policies and procedures and ensure staff are trained on the updated protocols.

Lastly, the potential loss of talented staff is a very real risk for the organization. Organizational change creates
uncertainty, which can lead employees to look for new jobs. Utility Operators in particular are in high demand across
the country and may be able to easily find employment at nearby utilities. A reduction in potential career ladders
and promotional opportunities can also result in the loss of staff who must go elsewhere to move up in their careers.
Proactive communication and clear planning can help address the uncertainty associated with change, but other
retention strategies may be necessary to ensure the combined organization has appropriate staffing through the
transition.

Data Gaps

This assessment was limited to the data provided by MWD and MSD as well as publicly available information and
best practices from industry resources like AWWA. Interviews with staff and observation of staff were not part of
this study. In some cases, information for the same fiscal years was unavailable for both entities. As part of
implementation, it would be important to engage with staff to understand nuances, communicate plans, and ask for
feedback.

Should the two districts choose to consolidate, it would require a thoughtful, deliberate, and phased process to ensure
concerns of all stakeholders — Board, staff, and public — are addressed. A proposed timeline showing steps toward
immediate consolidation is provided in Table 23 below.

ontecito Sa
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 87 of 251

76 ONTECITO WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
r% ni aryEIfﬁstrlc{3



Table 23: Phased Consolidation Plan

Cost/
Description Resources Estimated Timeline
Needed

Undertake public outreach campaign to educate Staff time

Montecito stakeholders about study and reasons the newspa ér ads
districts are evaluating consolidation. pap
Governing Boards review study and vote upon whether

January 2023 - June 2023

2 or not to move forward with consolidation. Staff Time April = June 2023

3 LAFCO application and CEQA review process $25K (consultant)  July 2023 — March 2024
If approved, establish staff work teams to work on key
issue areas of A) Human Resources including staffing,
salaries, and benefits, B) Information Technology, C) Staff Time and/or _

4 Facilities, and D) Finance. Work teams to present Consultant Cost Wl - December 2024
recommendations to GMs and Boards on how to operate
following consolidation.

5 Implement_ work team outcomes in preparation for official ~ Staff Time June 2024 — July 2025
consolidation Consultant Costs

6 Utilities officially begin consolidation operations at start of None July 1, 2025

new fiscal year

Figure 23 below shows the same Phased Consolidation Plan in graphic form as a Gantt chart. This timeline presumes
ongoing public outreach throughout the process and an approximate nine-month review time for LAFCO. It also
presumes that California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review would result in an exemption or negative
declaration; a full environmental impact review would require additional time.

| 2023 | 2024 2025
JAN APR JUL OoCT DEC JAN APR JUL DEC JAN APR JUL oCT DEC

Step 1: Public Outreach Campaign

Step 2: Governing Board Review
and Vote

Step 3: LAFCO application and
CEQA review process

Step 4: If Approved, Establish Joint _
Staff Work Teams on HR, IT,

Facilities, and Finance

Step 5: Implement Work Team
Outcomes

Step 6: Official Start of Consolidated
District

Figure 23: Phased Consolidation Plan in Graphic Form

. . — SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 77
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 88 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

78 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 89 of 251



Conclusion

The proposed consolidation or reorganization of MWD and MSD is feasible and can be achieved, resulting in one
organization managing potable water and wastewater services for the community. This organizational approach is
not unique, and there are many examples of consolidated operations in California, both as special districts and within
municipal organizations.

The Montecito Water District (MWD) and the Montecito Sanitary District (MSD) have expressed interest in
evaluating consolidation for several reasons. First, there is a collaborative desire by both organizations and their
elected Boards of Directors to optimize the use of resources for the betterment of the community. Second, there is
interest in providing customers with the best level of service in the most cost-effective manner. Third, the State of
California has encouraged reviews of special districts in California to ensure constituents are getting the best service
at the lowest practical cost and evaluating consolidation aligns with this statewide initiative.

This review shows that, while consolidation could legally and functionally occur, it would provide limited benefits
in terms of cost savings and improved levels of service to customers. There are benefits and drawbacks to
consolidation of the two districts. The greatest benefit to consolidation would be the ability to implement activities
of joint interest such as recycled water more easily with the approval of a single governing body. By combining the
two separate districts, the new district can cohesively address local recycled water needs within a single agency with
unified policy direction on important considerations such as how to allocate project costs and develop appropriate
rate structures. While these programs can also be implemented through other mechanisms such as forming a JPA,
utilizing a single organization to move forward on these endeavors ensures a unified approach and helps to avoid
potential future organizational conflicts that can arise due to conflicting missions and priorities, and as Boards and
district management changes over time. Other potential benefits of consolidation include the ability to have greater
levels of specialization among staff who now must wear multiple hats and some economies of scale through shared
contracting, resources, and coordination.

Potential drawbacks to consolidation include the costs of aligning staff salaries and benefits, physical moves and co-
location, and new shared software and other office needs. Significant staff time would be dedicated to managing the
efforts needed to merge the two districts and it is unclear how other time-sensitive projects could also be
accomplished. Administrative facilities would need to be combined and perhaps expanded, resulting in additional
costs. Existing staff could be disenfranchised and morale negatively impacted; in any significant restructuring, it is
expected some subset of staff could choose to move elsewhere rather than deal with the uncertainty of major change.
The combined entity could lose some talent in a job market where competition for skilled utility operators is stiff.
This risk must be purposefully acknowledged and planned for due to its potential to delay or eliminate many of the
potential benefits that might be achieved by consolidation.

It is recommended that consolidation, if desired, be implemented in a phased manner. The first phase, the interim
period of 3-5 years, would simply merge the two organizations without any significant changes in staffing and largely
maintain status quo activities. The Santa Barbara County LAFCO would work with the districts to either merge
MSD into MWD, or create a new Community Services District. There are pros and cons to each approach. During
this interim transition period financial, governance, and other areas would need to be aligned to develop a deeper
understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of various options. Decisions could then be made about long-term
staffing, combined facilities, and streamlining policies and procedures to assure the best chance for success.

. . L SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 79
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 90 of 251



In conclusion, consolidation presents possible benefits to both utilities, but they must be considered within the
context of the drawbacks that may occur. If a complete consolidation is not possible or not desired, other alternatives,
such as the creation of a JPA or simple contractual agreements on key issues, are a possible alternative approach.
‘While the past relationship between MWD and MSD has not always been collegial, both districts are under newer
management and boards and are now working together on common interests. This gives both utilities an opportunity
to successfully consider and move toward the best outcomes for their customers.

80 Or\iTECI O WAT ANP SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito Sanitary Distric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 91 of 251



APPENDIX A:

Current MWD & MSD Positions

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 92 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

82 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 93 of 251



€8

AdNLS NOILVAITOSNOD ANV NOILYYIO4GVT1T10D 1IO1¥1SsIa 1vIOadSs

SoUBLBIUIEN S81}I|10B} UONNQUISIP PUB JudW}eal}
wm;___u.umu_ Jarem 1o} (YayDs) uonisinboy ejeq pue [oiuo) Aiosialedng
0’} ON \Ewewmmz._. pue ‘(s,adA) w,m>_5 Aousnbai sjqeueA (S.N1d) sHun
JOIM |leulwla] ayoway (S,071d) sto||01uo) 21607 ajqewwelboid
Buipnjour ‘quswdinba uoneuswnisul 9jUCJ08[S pue dnewnaud
‘[eoL109]8 JO 8ouBUBjUIEW pue Jiedal ‘uone|e)sul ‘uonesadQ
SONSS| $92IN0SaJ UBwWNY
S0INIOS 10 Juswabeuew pue ‘uonouny Buljiq pue 82IAISS JOWOISND
Jowoisny ay} Jo ybisiano ‘1obpng [enuue [jelano ay; Jo Juswabeuel
0’ SOA .wmm::owww_ suonouny Juswabeuew ao1y0 [eJausb pue ‘sadinosal
cm&ﬂuhmﬂﬂwﬂm uewny ‘ABojouyds} uoiewojul ‘Buunodoe pue Jobpng
T o Buipnjoul Jou3sIq 8y} Jo suonelado pue SalliAlO. SAjeISIUILPE
3y} smainal pue sebeuew ‘sjoallp ‘saziueblio ‘sueld
yels
uonnquisig  Juswabeuew pue si0}oalI JO pieog 8y} 0} uoenjeas welboud
Ja1e A pue aouepinb Aoijod Buipiroid ul sabeuely [eiauas) ay) SsisISSY
o'l SO ‘Juswieal |
Ja1e A Sal)IAI}OE puE suolouUNy JOLISI] ||e 0} pajelal sainp Jejiwis
‘Buusauibug  yum uebeuel) |elauss) ay) sisisse pue juswuedsq Buussulbug
‘uoiessIuIWpY B} JO SaIJIAIIOB pUB SUOIoUNy |[B o} JYBISISA0 pue uondalp
aAleJsiulwpe sapinold pue sabeuew ‘sazjuebio ‘sueld
spiezey umouy JO aseqelep aAlsuayaldwod e Buluiejuiew
Buipnjoul weibo.d |01jU0D UOIFIBUUOI-SSOID BY} SISISIUIWLPY
sjesodo.d
0¢ ON Buriesuibug 10} sjsanbau Jo uoneledald ay} ul S}SISSE pue S}OBJJU0D
90IAJBS JUB)NSUOD PUEB UOI}ONIISU0D SIo)uow pue sasedald
sy09foud Buussuibua
Jo saseyd uoionJjsuod pue ‘ubisap ‘Buiuueld ayy ul sejedionlied
swaj)sAs uonewloul [suuosiad pue ‘suone|al Joge| ‘suone|al
aakojdws ‘syjouaqg pue uonesuadwod ‘Buluiel) ‘uswinIdSl
[uuosiad yym Bupsisse Jue)sISSe Sa2In0sal uewny e se sy
o'l ON wmogcﬂoﬁmwm SUOIN|OS8J PUB ‘S8JUBUIPIO ‘SUOIJOE
‘UonENSIILIPY sajnuiw ‘sepuabe pieog 1oL3siq Jo uonesedald ayy Ul SISISSY
[ouuosiad juswabeuew pue ‘si0joalig
10 pieog ‘1abeue|y |eJauas) sy} 0} Joddns |ele)ei0as pue
SAIJBJISIUIWPE 92110 [EUSPLUOD pue X3|dwo9 ‘palIeA SOpPIAOIH
ETE Kiosintadng E suoljoun4 [euassy

JojesadQ / uelluyoa |
Swa)sAS |05ju0)

Jobeuey ssauisng

labeuep
Buniesuibuz / Jabeuepy
[BJBUSL) JUEB)SISSY

Jgsulbug ue)sIssy

JUBJSISSY S80IN0SaY
uewnH / 8AljEASIUILPY

a}1L uonisod

suolnisod dSIN pue AMIN uoljewioju] [uuos.iad pajielaq ¢ alqeL

aMn

aMiN

aMmin

aMin

aMn

uoneziuebio

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 94 of 251



0l ON
0L SOA
09 ON
0L SOA
0l ON

aouBUBUIB

Ajjiqisuodsal Jo eale paubisse 0} aAlje|al

S)SB) [BOIUYD9] JO AJolieA B swiopad pue (SWoajsAs SnoleA Jo
sjuswalinbal ay} ui yeys sulel) ‘SwalsAs pajejal pue ‘|eloueuly
‘Bunyunoooe Jo AjalieA e jo uonejuswsaldwi pue Juswdopasp

ABojouyos | ay) Buipoddns yiom sisAjeue Jejs aaisuayaidwod swiouad
uolnewou|
‘aoueul ‘s}asse paxij pue ‘Alojuaaul ‘Bununoooe

109(0ud ‘jjolAed ‘e|qeAladal SJUNOIIR ‘SUOIJOD|0D YSeD

‘ag|qefed syunoooe ‘1abpa| |elouab ayy 0} pajejas asoyy Buipnjoul
‘spodal |eloueul) aaisuayaldwod Jo AjaLien e saledald ‘saniAijoe
aAielisiuiwpe pue Buiunoooe [eoueuly xa|dwod swiouad
aouewiouad

29/ojdwa Jo malnal pue ‘sBunasw Alajes Bunonpuod
‘sgafojdwa uonnguisip Jalem Jo Buluiely |0uod AlojuaAul

uonnquIsIq ‘Buidesy| pl1odal ‘Buiuueld 108foid wisy-uoys pue -buoT

11EM suonouny buidasy spunolb

pue ‘edueusjuleW 193)} ‘WSISAS UOINQUISIP JBJEM S JOLISIg
B} JO SaI}IAIIOB pUB SUOIoUNy |[B Joj JYBISISan0 pue uondalp
aAneljsiulwpe sapinoid pue sebeuew ‘sazjueblo ‘sue|d
swa)sAs auljadid |esaje| pue ulew uonnqulsip Jayem a|gejod
10 yJom Jiedas pue aoueusiulew xajdwod 0} auinol swiopad
uonnqliasig
191 wswdinba pue sapjjioe} paje|al pue swalsAs uonnNqulsip
J9)em Jou3sIq JO uole|elsul pue ‘aiedas ‘@dueusiuiew
ay) buipinoid oy ajqisuodsal maid e ul sajedioiied
sumopyealq saijjioe} pue ‘ebesn juswdinba pue ‘}003s
Buljjos ‘spiodal [eusiew pue awiy Buipnjoul spodal saiedald

‘swelboud pue syosfoid psiejal pue ‘suoielado ‘@aueusiuiew
waysAs uonnquisip paubisse Joj indui [ea1uyos} sapinoid

uonngusia pue ‘SI0}UOW ‘S8]BUIPI00D ‘LIE]S Paubisse o 3Iom ay) s1oaliq

181

Juawdinba pue sapijioe;

paje|a.l pue walsAs uoiNquisIp Jajem Jouisiq 4O uone|eisul

pue ‘aiedal ‘@oueusluiew ay} buipiroid Joy s|qisuodsal malo e
JO YJom 8y} ul sajedioed pue ‘sjoallp ‘S99sI9A0 ‘sulel) ‘spesn
sjuswanosdwi

Buipsefal suoiepuswWWOoal SO)eW pue spasu Jedal

sonioey pue adueuajulew Joj spunolb Bunoadsul isanjioe; weq sjoded

/luswieal ]

P juswdinba pue ‘sbuipjing ‘spunolb ‘swalsAs ‘salijioey

pajejal pue weq [eounp ay} Buipnjoul ‘einjonuseljul JoLisIq 4o
uonelado pue ‘Jredas ‘eouBUSIUIBW ‘UOIJEDLHIPOW ‘UOIIONIISUOD
SalyIjI0e} pajejal Jayjo pue sjueld juswieal)

ay) Jo deaydn sy} ui dJom aoueuSUIEW X3]dWOD SWIOMDd

S1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3L1LVM OLIOILNONW

Isijerpadg

LI /3sAjeuy |eoueul amw
Juspusjuuadng

uoynqusiq amin

JojesadQ uonnquisig amw
Jojesadp

JoIyD uoBNqUIsIa 2]

| JojesadQ/iayelaie) weq amin

a|}11 uonsod uoneziuebio

ve

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 95 of 251



S8 AdNLS NOILVAITOSNOD ANV NOILVYIO4GVTT10D 1IO1¥1SsIa 1vIOadsS

AN Ylm pa)eIoosSSe 82IAISS JaWO0)SNd 108.Ip SSPIACId

‘s80IAIBS

80IAIB
INBS JoJem J0j SJUNODO. JBWO)SND SUlBJUIBW PUB SBYSI|qe)ST

02 ON Jawoisn)
» Buing

Il UBIOIUYOS | 81O amin
‘sjiejep [euoneltado pue ‘sainpasoid ‘sajoljod syl Jo abpajmouy
1IN} Buninbal ‘welboud Jo/pue Juswpedap paubisse ue 1o} sainp
uoddns a21)J0 pue aAieSIuIWpPE JO AJaLIEA SPIM B SWIO0USd
s109(oid Aouaby 10} @ouel|dWwOo9 [BJUSWUOIIAUS SaINSU]
‘AousBy oy} Joy syoesyuod pue sjesodoud 1oy sjsenbal siojuow
pue saledald ‘paJinbal se syse)} Joyjo pue ‘SJoeju09 ‘Sa0I0AUl
‘sy@bpnq Buipnjoui sjosfoid Aouaby s10alIp pue seasianQ

aoueldwo) Buiepow Jayempunolb pue ‘buloyuow

0l ON [eJUBWIUOIIAUT uiseq ‘Buusiaw ||om ‘Buiojiuow |9A8] Jayem ‘Buriojuow 1sl[eroadg Jajempunols) ami
‘Busaulbug Ajjenb Jsyempunosb 0y pajwi) jou Jng Buipnjoul sjosfoud pue
swelbolid Aouaby jo sjoadse |eoiuyoa) sapinb pue seasianQ

(vS9) Aousby Aljigeurelsng Jajempunols) uiseg Jajempunols)
OHOBJUO BU3 Jo} (dSD) ueld ANjiqeulelsng Jayempunolo
ay} Jo uonejuswa|dwi pue juswdo|aAsp 8y} YlIIM SIsISSY

sjabpnq weiboid jo uonesnsiuiwpe ay} ul bupsisse pue ‘olgnd
ay) 0} uoiewuojul bunuasaid pue Huuedaid ‘uoneAlasuod
uoleAIaSUOD paAoidul J0} SUOBPUSWIWOII YlIM Siawoisnd Buipinoid 1sijeloads
Ja1e A pue sawoy bunoadsul buipnjour ‘sjosfoid pue sweiboid UOI}BAIBSUOD) JB}EAN ammw
UONBAIBSUOD Jajem s Joulsig Yy} Bunuswajdwi pue Buijeuipioo)

0l ON

sdnoub ajeaud pue
o1ignd snouea pue saouabe Alojeinbal pue [eluswuianobiayul
yym sdiysuonejal bupjiom anesadood sia)so

‘siawo)sno

o1 soA BB supy 1011181 0} S82IAISS JO uoisinoid saeyljioe) pue sebeinoouD JoBEUBY [BIOUSS) aAMIN

‘iejs Juswabeuew pue sJ03oalIq JO
pJeog ay} 0} uonenjeas weiboud pue aouepinb Aoijod sapinold

{SaI}IAI}OB pue suolouny Joulsiq ||e 10} Wybisiano
pue uonoalIp dAljessiulWpe sapirold pue ‘saziueblo ‘sue|d
uoinquisig Jauuew jusiold pue ajes
J81ep\\ e ul Bupesado ase juswdinba usAup-1amod J8ylo pue ‘saoyxoeq JojesadQ uonnquisig
‘aoueusuIB| ‘s)0Nn.J} ‘sa|Iqowolne Jo13sIg Jey} 8INSus 0} JaPJo Ul SaiNp / UBIdlUYd9 | 199|4 amw
19914 Jiedal paj|s pue pajs-lwas swiopad pue ‘sadinias ‘siieday

314 EE suoljoun4 [enuassy ajlL uonisod uoneziuebiQ

0l ON

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 96 of 251



0¢

0l

0l

0l

0l

ENE

oN Juswyeal |
SEITY

- Juswijeal |
SEICTY

sox swyeal |
SEIETY

90INIBS

ON JBWwolIsnN) B

Buig ‘eoueuiq

ON SsuojEedIUNWWOYD

8y} Jo deaxdn 8y} ul YJom soueUSIUIEW XB]dWOD SWiopad

‘so)is

[lom wajsAs pue ‘suonels dwnd ‘siioalasal ‘syueld Juswiealdy
Ja)em a2euns () om} sjouisig 8y} suieluiew pue sajeladQ
sumopyealq saljljioe) pue ‘abesn juswdinba pue ‘)201s
Buijjos ‘spiooal [elsiew pue awiy Buipnjoul sodal sasedald

‘swelboud pue syosfoid pajejal pue ‘suoielado ‘@oueusiuiew
jueld juswiyeal Jayem paubisse Joj Jndul [eaiuyosa) sapinoid
pue ‘siojluow ‘sajeulplood ‘Jejs paubisse Jo YJom 8y} sjoalig

‘juswdinba pue sapiioe) paje|jal pue Juswieal) Jajem s JoLsIq
ay} Jo uonelado pue ‘liedas ‘@oueusiuiew ayy buipinoid 1oy
9|gIsuodsal MaId B JO YIOM BU} SMBIABI PUE ‘S}oBlIP ‘S83SIaNQD

aouewuouad

aafojdwa Buimainal pue ‘sbunssw Ayajes Bunonpuod
‘soaAo|dwa juswiealy Jajem Jo Buluiel) ‘|ouoo AlojusAul
‘Buidaay piooal ‘Buiuueld 108loid wisl-uoys pue -6uoT]

salls |[om Jayempunolb pue ‘suoneys dwnd

‘silonlasal ‘sjue|d Juswieal) Jajem aoeuns (g) om] s 1ouisig
8y} JO SaljIAlOE pue SuoiouNy |[e Joy Jybisiano pue uonoalip
aAnesjsiulwpe sapirodd pue sebeuew ‘saziuebio ‘sue|d
suodal pue spiodal [joiAed jo AlalieA e saynqulsip pue
‘surejuiew ‘saledald ‘suoneiado |joiAed pazijesjuad suiejuie|

‘uonew.oyul buipinoud

pue sjuie|dwod o} Buipuodsal ‘ed1A18s 10} s}sanbal ‘syjuswAied
AJIIN Y)Im pajeIdosSe 99IAISS JBWOISNI J08JIp Sapinoid (wea)
Hoddns 921440 991AI9S JBWOISNI BY} JO PEd| By} Se suoloun4

‘sasAjeue pue suodal [ejoueul jo uoneledald sy}

Ul S]SISSE pue SpJ02al PUe SJUNOJJE [BIOUBUL JOLISI SUIBJUIBIA

‘suonjouny |joiAed pue ‘eoiAles Jawo}sno ‘Buiunoooe
[elauab a8y} 0} pajejal sannp JNoIIP pue xa|dwoo swiousd

sjeusjew

paje|al Jayjo pue ‘Juajuod a}Isgam ‘elpaul ‘SUoiedIuNWWOoD
Buipnjoul Juajuod |eulbuo Jo JuswdojaAap ay} 10} djqisuodsay

SaAl_NIUI pUB SBIIAIOR YOBSIINO pue ‘suohe|al

Aunwwos ‘Buneyew ‘uonew.loul o1jgnd ‘sSuolE2IUNWIWOD

10 A1alien e uj sejedionied pue ‘sajeulpiood ‘sueld
uoljewuoyul buipiroid

pue sjuiejdwod 0} Buipuodsal ‘ao1Al1as 10} sjsanbal ‘sjuswAed

suonoung [eluassy

S1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3L1LVM OLIOILNOWN 98

JojesadQ
Jue|d Juswieal] Jalepn amn
JojesadQ JaIyD juswieal | amin
juspuajuadng
uoloNpolId % Juswieal| amin
UBIOIUYDa] 991 JOIUSS amin
J92IJO uoiewlopu] dlgnd amn

9311 uonisod

uoneziuebiQ

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 97 of 251



L8

AdNLS NOILVAITOSNOD ANV NOILYYIO4GVT1T10D 1IO1¥1SsIa 1vIOadSs

0l

0l

0l

0l

0's

0l

0l

0l

ENE

SOA

ON

ON

SOA

ON

SOA

SOA

ON

uoneJsiuiupy

soueuSjUIB
spunoi
‘@oueUB)UIBIN
1994
‘@oueUB)UIBIN
sanijioe

Buriesuibug

uolesiuwpy

uonos|jon
Jajemalsepn

uoo8||0D
131BMB]SEAN

aoueUBUIBI
109]4
‘aoueuslUIB
sanijioe

aoueulH
‘uonensIuIwupyY

pue saijloyine Aiojniels ayy INo ALed o) pJeog syl YIM SHIOAN
dSIA @Y} JO [e1010 JuswabeuBW pue BAIINDSXS JOIYD SB SOAISS

suonels

W17 pue ‘Wwa)sAS uonos|0 8y} ‘Jue|d Juswiesl ] Jojemalsep
sy} Buipnjour sepijioe4 pue juswdinbg ‘s8oIys A ‘spunolo
pue sBuip|ing jousIq Joj Hoddns soueuUsjuleW SBPIACIH

S]oeJuUOD pue ‘suoneoyioads ‘suejd aledald pue mainay

s109(oud Juswanoidwi pue uoneljigeyal

pue ‘19)em pajokoal ‘sassaooid jueld juswiiesl) J9)emal}sem
‘suoniels Y| ‘sauladid Buipnjoul pialy Jayemaisem ayj Ul
s108fo.d Jo uononJisuod pue ‘ubisap ‘Buluue|d ‘uonebisaaul ay}
BuiAjoAul YoM |Boluyoa) pue Buussulbus wiopad pue abeuepy
1921)J0 Juswabeuew s pue

aouelnsul ‘Jaoyjo buluien yels pue Ayajes juiol ‘quswabeuew
ABojouyosa] uonew.ou] ‘1ojessiullpy JjoJAed pue ‘Jabeuej
$S92JN0SaY UBWNH ‘9ouBuUl{ ¥ JUBJUNOJDY ‘pJeod 8y} JO YI3[D
uoleJ}|iju| pue MOojju| 8ZIWIUIW

0} pue ‘s||ids abemas Juaralid 0} A|}0a.l100 paulejuiew aie
S8|0yuBW puUB Saul| UoI}9||02 ‘suone)s Y| ay} e jey) Buunsug
uoneJ}jyu| @ Mojju| aziwiuiw o} pue sjjids abemas juanaid

0] A[}08.100 paulejulew dJe SS|0YUBW PUE Saul| UOI}08)||0D
‘suoness Y| quawdinba Jajemalsem ay; |je jey) buunsug

‘wo)shAs

Uo1309||09 J9}JeMB)}SEM BU} JO suoljesado pue aoueusjuliew
‘s901M8Ss 8y} Buijeuiplood pue Buluueld ‘Buisiniadng
uawdinba ajgeliod pue ‘sgjoiya ‘yuswdinbg Aousbiswg
oulsIa (1B pue ‘play sy) ul suone)s Buidwing wejsAs
SU0I}99||0D BNl ‘JuB|d Juswieal] Jajep) S1SBAA dU) Je Juswdinba
|l jo Juswaoe|dal pue Jiedal ‘Bujooyss|qnod} ‘edueusiuiew
aAljuanald Buipnjoul ‘edueuajulew |e Joj a|qisuodsay
a|geAed sjunodoe 1o} sao10Aul Buuedaud

pue aseqgejep S|9 ay3 ojul Aijus ejep ‘uonoelsiul Jowoisno
J8Junod juol} ‘syuswaalbe piepuels pue 8ouspuodsaliod

Jo uonelsedald ‘sjjea Buiwooui jo Bulpuey juspuadapuy

‘sjuswAed jo Buissasoid

pue uoneledaid jwiad ‘mairal pue Buyosayo ueld ‘@oinles
JaWwo)sNd Sk ||om se sainp poddns aAjjelSIuIWPE pue [esus|)
juswdinba usAlp

Jamod Aaeay 03 yb| pue sjoo} Jemod pue |enuew Jo A1dLeA e
sajelado pue sasn ‘saniioe} pajejal Jayjo pue sjue(d Juswiea)

suonoung [eluassy

Josuibug
Joulsiq/iebeuepy jelauan

ueioluyos |
soueuUajUIE| S8ljIoe

Jabeuey Buliesulbug

JojelsIuILpY 101SIq

JojesadQ suonos|0n

Juspusjuuadng
walsAg suonoa|0n

oluByOBN
aouBUBUIBI JBIYD

JUB)SISSY BAljEJISIUIWPY
9 BuizuNoooy

9311 uonisod

asn

asin

dasw

asin

asn

asin

asin

asin

uoneziuebiQ

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 98 of 251



0y

0¢

0l

ENE

ON

ON

ON

sjuswalinbai Aouabe
Buireinbai [B20] pue ‘B)E]lS ‘|Blapay |le yim aoueldwod ainsus

juswieal |
0} sainpadoud ulejuiew pue dojaAap 0} Jebeuey asueusjule|

19)eMalSep
® suonesadQ sy} pue siojesado Jojuas ypum Ajasojo
sylom pue suoljelado Ayjioe) Juswieal | J8}emMalSep) SUIBJUIBIN
"sjuswalinbal
Aouabe
juswijeal] Bunenbai 00| pue ‘ale}s ‘|esapay || Yyim aoueldwod ainsus

19)eMa)Sepn 0} sainpaso.d ulejuiew pue dojaasp o} Jabeuely aoueuajuIR
9 suonjesadQ ay} pue siojesado Joluas yum Aj@solo

syJom pue suonelado Ajjioe) Juswieal | 19}ema)sep) Sulejule|y

uolewsojul Jayjo pue suodal 838|dwod pue

a]eindoe yym Jabeue|y aoueusjuiely ¥ suonetadQ ay}l apinoid

saloljod

pue sainpadsolid Bunelsado piepuess 1oLsIg Yim aoueldwod

aoueldwo) ainsus o} suofelado Alojeloge| Buisiaiadns ‘uonjelipalode pue
[eJuSWUOIIAUT uoleol1ad Alojelioge| Joj sjuswalinbal welboid uole}ipalody
Alojesoge] [ejuswiuolIAUT BY} }98w 0} swelboid asueinssy

Aenp pue jonuo) Alenp s, Aojeloqe] sy buisialedng

sjuswalinbai Aouabe

Bunenbal [eo0] pue ‘aels ‘|elapay |le yim aoueljdwod buunsug
Jels j1ou3sig sebeuew

pue ‘swelboid pue saloljod s,pieog sy} Jo uoneyuswaldwi
$99SJ9A0 ‘suoljesado ssauisnq ||e Joj a|gisuodsay

“uolssiw s,10L1sIq 8y
spuedxa Jo saulal ‘sajepdn }I se Jouysig 8y} Jo sanijigisuodsal
uonoun4 suoioun4 [euassy

S1OIY1SIa AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3L1LVM OLIOILNONW

(Lionnmn)
JojesadQ ue|d

juswijeal] Jajemalsep)

JojesadQ jue|d
$81yD puspusjuledng
juswieal| Jo}emalSepn

Jabeuey juswieaaid
% Alojesoge]

a|}1L uonisod

asin

dasw

asin

uoneziuebip

88

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 99 of 251



APPENDIX B:

Map of MWD & MSD Boundaries

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 100 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

90 OI\{TE?I O WAT AND SANITARY DISTRICTS
ontecito sanitary Istric

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 101 of 251



16 AQNLS NOILVAITOSNOD ANV NOILVHOEGVT10D LOI¥1SIa TvIO3adS

sapepunog Al |

sauped w1 )

dnumoy puw supuey [

e 5 Sy e s

iy s g duny

DI0Z/9/S '10-01 04V VORPRSULY FIBA RIS ‘¥T VORDY I5¥1 T10T/ L/E 249405

piti o S TIVO5 WD “IT6L/L/ 11 662 LT $abrd 'L WOOG FNUIW SOE SsAIRANG jO pirog AWnoD) 3yl JO UoRNOSHI AQ pakuog
V10T §0 RGOI0 Ul sokang Anod) 3 0 O A Aq papduio)

PHSIQ 193 03D Uo

MSENS VMV

WIS =

dep Arepunog gpmiN 72 94nbi4

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Montecito Sanitary District
Page 102 of 251



SL1OIYLSIA AYVLIINVS ANV ¥3LVM OLIDILNON

"Bunuid papis-omy ajeyjioe} o} yue|q Ya| Ajjeuonusiul abed siy L

c6

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 103 of 251



Figure 25: MSD Boundary Map

l--o——.'

:

/ pof Btwowgy e,
i 4 O
- L/

District

on 117
P

)

11944 by Board of Supervisors Resclution 7557,

Late Action: 24, Calvin Annes., LAFCO 14-06 2/2/2015. Sphere: 11/04/2010 amended 11/06/2014. 0

Compiled by the Office of the County

ea.

Montecito Sanita
Formed 7/21

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 104 of 251

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 93



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 105 of 251

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

94



APPENDIX C:

Salary Ranges

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 106 of 251



The table below shows minimum, midpoint, and maximum salaries at the time of this report, in increasing order of
the midpoint. Those MSD classifications noted with an asterisk were in process of being re-evaluated for potential
pay adjustments at the time of this writing.

Position Title/Job CI ificati Annualized Salaries
osition Title/Jo assification gency mmm

Collections Operator in Training (OIT) 51,584 57,148 62,712
Operations Operator in Training (OIT) MSD 56,534 62,618 68,702
Dam Caretaker MWD 55,139 64,559 73,980
Distribution Operator | MWD 56,884 66,602 76,320
Office Technician Il MWD 57,597 67,437 77,277
Collections | MSD 62,962 69,742 76,523
Operator | MSD 63,877 70,762 77,646
Operator I MSD 70,387 77,990 85,592
Collections Il MSD 70,554 78,146 85,738
Facilities Maintenance MSD 70,554 78,146 85,738
Distribution Operator Il MWD 67,304 78,803 90,301
Administrative Assistant/Office Technician MWD 69,868 80,661 91,455
Water Conservation Specialist MWD 69,003 80,791 92,580
Mechanic/Distribution Operator | MWD 70,744 82,830 94,917
Public Information Officer MWD 73,898 85,313 96,729
Operator lli MSD 77,646 86,018 94,390
Distribution Operator Ill MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Senior Office Technician/Staff Accountant MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Treatment Plant Operator MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Collections Il MSD 79,082 87,610 96,138
Engineering Assistant MWD 76,712 89,818 102,924
Operator IV MSD 85,613 94,827 104,042
Collections IV MSD 87,152 96,554 105,955
Accounting/Admin. Assistant MSD 90,813 100,589 110,365
Control System Technician/Treatment Operator MWD 88,532 103,657 118,783
Chief Maintenance Mechanic MSD 98,904 109,564 120,224
Distribution Chief Operator IV MWD 93,638 109,636 125,634
Treatment Chief Operator MWD 93,638 109,636 125,634
Collections Supervisor MSD 100,901 111,769 122,637
Lab & Pretreatment Manager* MSD 97,094 112,081 127,067
Financial Analyst/IT Specialist MWD 96,001 112,403 128,804
Operator V MSD 104,437 115,679 126,922
Distribution Superintendent MWD 113,588 131,136 148,683
Treatment & Production Superintendent MWD 113,588 131,136 148,683
Groundwater Specialist MWD 117,183 135,285 153,388
District Administrator® MSD 118,248 136,510 154,773
Operations Manager* MSD 119,371 137,800 156,229
96 ONTECITO aArI/EEﬁS,tAnr\éP SANITARY DISTRICTS

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 107 of 251



Position Title/Job Classification

Chief Plant Operator* 126,318
Engineering Manager* MSD 123,510
Collections & Maintenance Superintendent* MSD 130,187

Business Manager & Assistant Secretary
Engineering Manager

MWD 128,662
MWD 134,398

Assistant General Manager/ Engineering Manager MWD 162,662

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 108 of 251

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

139,932
142,584
144,217
148,539
155,160
187,790

Annuallzed Salaries

153,546
161,658
158,246
168,415
175,922
212,919

97



Montecito Water and Sanitary Districts

Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study

May 2, 2023
?J‘()NTECITO
- ol
l«*c«
= RAFTELIS ATen BISTR!

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 109 of 251




Agenda

Project Overview
Review Findings and Observations
Next Steps

Image courtesy of Nick Schou,

The Montecito Journal

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 110 of 251



Project Overview

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 111 of 251




* Independent and unbiased
evaluation of potential
consolidation of the two
districts

* |dentification of costs and
benefits of potential
consolidation

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 112 of 251



Project Activities

* Plan and hold project kick-off meeting
BEGIN AND « Interview some Directors and key staff to gain their perspectives
MANAGE » Document/data request and collection
ENGAGEMENT * Onsite visit to physical sites

» Review State law and LAFCO policies affecting special districts

* Review staffing and service levels for each district and impacts of

ANALYZE consolidation
OPERATIONS * Review organizational structures and staffing

* Review operational efficiency and identify potential changes with
consolidation

DRAFT « Draft report to include findings and analysis
» Present report to Joint Committee
REPORT * Revise report based upon feedback

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 113 of 251



Findings and Observations:
Governance and Staffing

®




Governance
(Boards of Directors)

« Two potential options for consolidation:

1. Dissolve MSD and have MWD assume
responsibilities

2. Dissolve both agencies and create new
Community Services District

» Both options would ultimately result in a five-member
board of directors

» Single agency creates unified policy direction on
major policy initiatives such as robust recycled water
program

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 115 of 251



Staffing

* Current MWD Staffing is 28 FTEs
« Current MSD staffing is 18 FTEs

* Proposed consolidated organization is 45
or 46 FTEs (interim)

* Potential to eliminate one position, the
second General Manager position, for
savings of $234,000 per year

* Not recommended; retain as second
Assistant General Manager over
Wastewater (more detail to come)

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 116 of 251



Management and
Administration

« Second General Manager position could
be eliminated but this is not recommended
due to lean staffing levels; retain and
reclassify as Assistant General Manager
over Wastewater

« Some overlap in duties between
administrative staff if combined as-is

-« Several positions wearing “multiple hats”
now (e.g., Financial Analyst/IT Specialist)
and not specialized; workload sufficient to
keep all staff and clarify roles

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 117 of 251



Management and
Administration:
Potential Interim
Structure

* Continue combined Administrative/Human
Resources Assistant and Financial
Analyst/IT Specialist positions

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 118 of 251

e

Board of Directors

General Manager

Administrative /
Human Resources

1.0 FTE

Assistant
1.0 FTE

_|[Business Manager

1.0 FTE

District
Administrator
1.0 FTE

Accounting &
Administrative
Assistant
1.0 FTE

Financial Analyst/
IT Specialist
1.0FTE

Sr. Office
Technician
1.0FTE

| |Office Technician Il

2.0FTE

~—_—— e —_ —— =

Finance, Billing, Customer

Service & IT

DEEREN

Public Information
Officer
1.0 FTE

Groundwater
Specialist (GSA)
1.0FTE

—_——_ - — -

Communications

~ e e e

—_————ee e ——



Management and
Administration:
Potential Long-
Term Structure

+ Change title of Business Officer to
Administrative Services Manager

* Add one HR specialist position

* Unsplit former Administrative
Assistant/HR Specialist position to
full Administrative Assistant

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 119 of 251

Board of Directors

Administrative
Services Manager
1.0 FTE

Human Resources District
Specialist Administrator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
[
Sr. Office Accounting &
. Administrative
Technician .
1.0 FTE Assistant
' 1.0 FTE

Office Technician Il
2.0FTE

Financial Analyst/
IT Specialist
1.0 FTE

Administrative Services

Administrative
General Manager .
1.0FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
s < — \\ s 44—~
N
h
Public Information : I Groundwater
Officer | Specialist (GSA)
1.0 FTE (! 1.0 FTE
b
h
h
h
h
h
h
h
h
h
h
|
// \ 7
________________
Communications GSA



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 120 of 251

Treatment and
Field Operations

+ Consolidation would not change nature of
utility operations; no changes projected for
operations staff

« Could potentially eliminate second GM
position; recommend retaining as AGM for
Wastewater, frees up GM capacity for
enterprise-wide issues and external
outreach

« Some additional maintenance capacity will
be required in the long-term



Treatment and Field Operations

Potential Interim Structure

Have two Assistant
General Manager
positions (Water,
Wastewater) reporting to
General Manager

Retains knowledge of
MSD GM position over
Wastewater

Ensures reasonable
span of control for GM

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 121 of 251

Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

ASSI;::; (i?r]eral Assistant General
Wastegvater Manager - Water
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
L 1
Laboratory & Collections Treatment Supt./ Distribution Treatment & Groundskeeper /
Pretreatment ) Chief Plant — i Production Conservation
Superintendent Superintendent
Manager 1.0 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE Superintendent Coordinator
1.0 FTE d 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Lead Collections Chief Maintenance Wastewater Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment
System Operator Mechanic Treatment Plant B Operator Operator — Chief Operator
1.0 FTE 1.0FTE Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
4.0 FTE |
: I C I S
Sl Facilities Distribution $2t;nicg’:;e/’" Water Treatment
Operator blaishance H  Operator s Plant Operator
P Technician 6.0 FTE P 2.0FTE
40FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE

Fleet Technician /
Operator
1.0 FTE




Adds one Control
System Technician to
Maintenance Division

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 122 of 251

Treatment and Field Operations
Potential Long-Term Structure

Board of Directors

1.0FTE

General Manager

Chief Maintenance]

Assistant General

Assistant General

\Water Conservation
Specialist
1.0 FTE

Mechanic Manager - Manager - Water
1.0 FTE Wastewater 1.0 FTE
: 1.0 FTE
T
I
[ | | ' ——
Fadilties Laboratory & Collecti Treatment Supt./ Distribution F:ea;m:;m
Maintenance Pretreatment s © ei |ogs t Chief Plant —| Superintendent s rori:t rl]zn nt
Technician Manager uprnFﬁ'nE en Operator 1.0FTE up1eo F?I'E ©
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE . 1.0 FTE .
Control System Lead Collections Wastewater Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker /
ici Treatment Plant - Operator Operator
Technician System Operator 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Operator 1.0FTE :
. 4.0 FTE
l Control System
Distribution .
Collections | | Operator Technician /
Operator 6.0 FTE Operator
4.0FTE ’ 1.0 FTE

Fleet Technician/

Water Treatment

Distribution Chief Operator
Operator 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE
I
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
20FTE




Engineering and
Capital Improvement

 Currently provided by mix of in-house and
contracted capacity

* Three total dedicated FTEs

* In interim, retain all and have them report
to General Manager or one of the AGMs

* In long-term, retain Engineering Manager
position to supervise others and reduce
GM span of control

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 123 of 251



Engineering and Capital Improvement
Potential Interim Structure

« Keep existing staff and have
all report to the General
Manager or one of the two
AGMs in Interim

* Need to retain both water
and wastewater expertise

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 124 of 251

Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Engineering
Manager
1.0 FTE

Assistant Engineers
20FTE




Engineering and Capital Improvement
Potential Long-Term Structure

Board of Directors

« Create Engineering
Manager position reporting |

tO the GM Or One Of the General Manager
. 1.0 FTE
two AGMs to supervise the
unit
Engineering
Manager
1.0 FTE

Assistant Engineer
2.0FTE

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 125 of 251



Interim
Structure

Board of Directors|

General Manager

Administrative /
Human Resources

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 126 of 251

Fleet Technician /
Distribution
Operator

1.0FTE

Business Manageri
1.0 FTE

Sr. Office

Technician
1.0 FTE

| |Office Technician Il

20FTE

1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
Engineering Staff Asst. GM - Groundwater Public Information Asst. GM —
3.0FTE Wastewater Specialist Officer Water
1.0 FTE 1.0FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0FTE
Laboratory & Collections Treatment Supt./ Treatment & Groundskeeper / District
Pretreatment N Chief Plant Distribution Production Conservation L
Superintendent . . L Administrator
Manager 10FTE Operator m| Superintendent Superintendent Specialist 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE ’ 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE ’
[ 1 1 | |
Lead Collections Chief Maintenance Treatment Plant - ) Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment Aol &
. Distribution Chief N Administrative
System Operator Mechanic Operator 1 Operator Operator ——| Chief Operator Assistant
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 4.0FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0FTE 1.0FTE 1.0FTE
[ [ [
. Facilities Control System . .
Collections T Ce . Distribution Tochniciany/ Water Treatment Financial A_nglyst/
Operator . 1 Plant Operator IT Specialist
Technician Operator Operator 20FTE 1.0 FTE
4.0FTE TR 6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE ‘ ]




LO ng-Term Board of Directors

Structure
General Manager .
10 FTE Assistant
’ 1.0FTE
Groundwater Public Information
Specialist Officer
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
I ]
- Assistant General Administrative
Engineering Chief Maintenance]| Assllatant Comer Manager — Water Services Manager
h anager —
Manager Mechanic 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Rastewaley
. . 1.0 FTE T
T [ 1 1
Treatment & \Water Conservation -
L . Treatment Supt./ Distribution . L Human Resources District
Assistant Engineer Facilties Collection System Chief Plant Superintendent — PrO(.jUC‘tIOn Specialist Specialist T Administrator
20 FTE Maintenance Supervisor 1 Operator 10 FTE Superintendent 1.0 FTE 10FTE 1.0 FTE
. Technician 1.0 FTE 1’30 FTE . 1.0FTE ’ :
1.0 FTE . T
| |
. Wastewater Distribution Chief . ] Accounting &
Control System Lead Collection Treatment Plant Operator Dam Caretaker Senior ance Administrative
e System Operator — Technician = ;
Technician 1.0FTE Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0FTE 10FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE ’ 4.0 FTE ’ 1.0 FTE
|
. Distribution
Collection Lab & Pretreatment| Operator Control System Office Technician Il
Operator — Manager 6.0 FTE — Technician 2.0FTE I
4.0FTE 1.0 FTE : 1.0FTE .
Water Treatment
— Chief Operator
1.0FTE
|
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
2.0FTE

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 127 of 251



Financials

20

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 128 of 251




Bookkeeping

* Three enterprise funds now (Water, GSA, and
Wastewater) would continue, but under one agency

* |If create new program, may require an additional
enterprise fund

« Administrative staff time required to create
consolidated chart of accounts, and business
processes and procedures

* Would need to choose one financial software
system; technology costs estimated between
$10,000 (a few licenses) to $600,000 (new system)

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 129 of 251



Revenues and Expenses

« Combined FY22 Revenues of $34 million
« Combined FY22 Expenses of $32 million

« Some minor cost savings in office supplies and
professional services of $55,000 to $175,000

* In the interim, these are outweighed by
consolidation costs (salaries, legal, software,
studies, etc.) of $55,000 to $230,000

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 130 of 251



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 131 of 251

Salaries and Benefits

Potential savings of approximately $234,000 if
second General Manager position eliminated

Potential savings of approximately $35,000 for
reduction of five Board members (assuming $7,000
average per year)

Staff compensation would require parity adjustment
for similar positions, estimated at $25,000 -
$150,000 per year but highly variable

Any consolidation effort would require partnering
with the labor unions

Staff benefits are fairly comparable already and
would require minor parity adjustment, estimated at
$25,000 - $50,000 per year



Investments

« Qver $25 million in combined
investments used to earn investment
income

+ Both districts investing conservatively
and according to investment policies

* Could pool resources and more
actively invest to achieve gains

* Potential for modest additional interest
income of $5,000 to $10,000 per year

24

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 132 of 251




Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 133 of 251

Debt and Debt Service

- MWD had three outstanding debt issues with $22
million balance as of 6/30/21

« MSD had one outstanding debt with $9.2 million
balance as of 6/30/21

* Consolidated debt schedule shows debt service of
just over $3 million per year until FY2026, dropping
to $2.8 million, and then in FY2030 to $1.2 million

 Since debt service obligations already budgeted for,
assume ability to pay for consolidated agency



Working Capital and Reserves

* Working capital (reserves) is the accumulated difference
over time between revenues and expenditures

- MWD has five unrestricted reserves totaling $8 million, but
four are committed for specific uses

« MSD has four designated reserves totaling $10.9 million,
three are designated for specific uses

* GFOA enterprise fund working capital reserve target
available for any use (operating reserve) is between 45-90
days of annual operating expenses which, for the
consolidated agency, would be $2.9 million (45 days) and
$5.7 million (90 days)

« Combined undesignated/uncommitted reserve level
(operating reserves) is $5.4 million, just under the 90 days

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 134 of 251



Operations
and Efficiencies




28

Economies of Scale

 Since utility operations will not change
significantly, little potential for significant
economies of scale

» Already lean staffing in both agencies

* Areas most likely to realize some savings
include administration, fleet and facilities,
and procurement (joint contracting)

» Operations could see some savings
through shared resources and shared best
practices

* New program initiatives like recycled
water will probably require additional
staffing

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 136 of 251




Recycled Water

« Combined utility can readily and easily
collaborate on recycled water / OneWater
initiatives

+ Single Board with unified direction; could be
important in making major policy decisions on
capital improvements and how to allocate
costs to Water and \Wastewater ratepayers

« Districts already partnering on Enhanced
Recycled Water Feasibility Study

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 137 of 251



siie | Pros _ | Cons

Facilities

MWD:
583 San Ysidro Road

MSD:
1042 Monte Cristo Lane

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 138 of 251

Aesthetically pleasing site near
commercial area and residences
Caretaker residence onsite
Office for Water Conservation
Specialist

Vehicle/equipment repair facility
Offices, restrooms, and break room
for operations staff

Materials storage area
Adequate room available for
additional administrative office
space

More industrial site with less impact
on neighbors (including freeway and
cemetery)

Past plans for expansion already
complete but will require reworking
Updated and slightly larger Board
room

Sewer treatment facilities onsite
Offices for Lab/Pretreatment
Manager and Chief Treatment Plant
Operator onsite

Locker facilities for operations staff

No room within existing admin
building for additional 4 staff without
minor modification

Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

100 years old

Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

No room within existing
administrative building for additional
12 staff without significant
modification to the existing building
No offices or break rooms for
operations staff

No caretaker unit onsite

Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

The vacant space on MSD property
is reserved for both replacement of
the existing treatment process as
well as a potential recycled water
facility.




31

Facilities

Recommend keeping and renovating both
administrative facilities

Use current MWD site for combined
administrative staff; use offsite facilities for
large Board meetings (infrequent)

Use current MSD site for operating and
other staff

Renovate MSD to remove Board room and
reconfigure offices

Conservative cost estimate of $50,000 to
$250,000

One-time relocation costs of $5,000 to
$30,000

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 139 of 251




Feasibility of
Consolidation




33

Better integrated water policies and
approach

Unified governing board

Some savings through potential
elimination of one position

Greater staff specialization

Some economies of scale through
shared contracting, shared resources
(tools, chemicals), and coordination

Pros and Cons of Consolidation

Costs of remodeling and physical co-
location

Cost of new shared systems such as
financial management software

Staff time to review policies and
procedures and to merge operations
(especially administrative)

Impacts on staff morale and retention
Diverts staff capacity from other
initiatives

Perceived or real loss of local control
and dilution of services

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 141 of 251



34

Potential for Collective Savings

Elimination of second General Manager position Ongoing
Add Human Resources Specialist (years 3-10) Ongoing
Add Control System Technician (years 3-10) Ongoing
Eliminate pay for five Board members Ongoing
Professional services savings Ongoing
Annual materials and supplies savings Ongoing
Additional interest income (Implemented Years 5-10) Ongoing
Cost of providing salary parity (Implemented Years 3-10)) Ongoing
Cost of providing benefits parity (Implemented Years 3-10) Ongoing
Financial software/ IT costs Ongomg/ One-
Time
Office remodeling/ expansion costs One-Time
Relocation costs One-Time
Consolidation studies and legal costs One-Time

Over 10 Year Horizon
$234,000 $2,340,000
$0 ($80,791) $0 ($646,328)
$0 ($134,754) $0 ($1,078,032)
$35,000 $35,000 $350,000 $350,000
$50,000 $150,000 $500,000 $1,500,000
$5,000 $25,000 $50,000 $250,000
$5,000 $10,000 $25,000 $50,000
($25,000) ($150,000) ($200,000) ($1,200,000)
($25,000) ($50,000) ($200,000) ($400,000)
($5,000) ($30,000) ($50,000) ($30,000)
($50,000) ($250,000) ($50,000) ($250,000)
($5,000) ($30,000) ($5,000) ($30,000)
($50,000) ($200,000) ($50,000) ($200,000)

NET SAVINGS (COSTS) OF CONSOLIDATION ($65,000) ($471,545) $370,000 $655,640

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 142 of 251



To Consolidate or Not?

* Modest cost savings do not, by themselves,

justify consolidation and the resulting upheaval
to the organizations

* If the Districts are committed to pursue large

joint initiatives such as One Water, consolidation
makes sense

+ Asingle Board would probably be more effective
In addressing complex policy issues such as
large capital improvement projects and
allocating costs to ratepayers

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 143 of 251



LAFCO Process

- |If decide to go forward, LAFCO will work
collaboratively with the districts to formalize
applications

 Important to engage stakeholders and
community early in the process

- Potential CEQA implications

« LAFCO will conduct public hearings and protest
hearings

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 144 of 251



Phased Consolidation Plan

Step 1: Public Outreach Campaign

Step 2: Governing Board Review
and Vote

Step 3: LAFCO application and
CEQA review process

Step 4. If Approved, Establish Joint
Staff Work Teams on HR, IT,
Facilities, and Finance

Step 5: Implement Work Team
Outcomes

Step 6. Official Start of Consolidated
District

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 145 of 251

2023 | 2024 |

2025

JAN APR JUL oCcT DEC JAN APR JUL DEC JAN APR

JUL

oCT

DEC



T

Next Steps

Receive feedback from both Districts
Public engagement

Determine whether or not to consolidate
Work with LAFCO if going forward

If not, look at alternatives for continued
cooperation

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 146 of 251



= RAFTELIS

Thank you!

Contact: Rebekka Hosken Contact: Jim Armstrong
818.632.4086 / rhosken@raftelis.com 805.886.9688 / jarmstrong@raftelis.com

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 147 of 251




= RAFTELIS

MEMO

To:  John Weigold, MSD General Manager

From: Rebekka G. Hosken, Senior Manager %y‘/

CC: Nicholas Turner, Jim Armstrong

Date: March 1, 2023

Re: Draft Consolidation Report Estimate of Assistance

Per your request, | have prepared an estimated cost to finish the draft consolidation report through
MWD and MSD Board votes. The table below summarizes one possible scenario using the rates
in the proposed contract amendment sent earlier. We presume cost would be shared between
the two Districts.

ACTIVITY ary  unm ST ToTAL
Incorporate Joint Committee changes to report 2 hour $295 $590
Attendance at one in-person Joint Committee meeting 1 flatrate  $3,200  $3,200
Attendance at four in-person Board Meetings 4 flatrate  $3,200 $12,800
Two days incorporating comments from Board Meetings 16 hour $295  $4,720
Two 30-minute meetings with GMs (remote) for planning 1 hour $295 $295

ESTIMATED TOTAL.: $21,605

Should our presence at meetings be remote (online), the flat rate drops to $1,800 per meeting.

Without knowing the full extent of Board comments (number of hours needed to address) and
number of meetings, this is very much an estimate and will change based upon specific requests
of the Districts.

We thank you for the opportunity to be of assistance. Please let me know if you have any other
questions.

445 S. Figueroa St. Suite 1925
Los Angeles, CA 90071

www.raftelis.com
Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 148 of 251



Montecito Water
and Sanitary
Districts

Special District Collaboration and
Consolidation Study

j { Deleted: 3

Revised Draft Reportv.4/May 2023 L;,{ e

= RAFTELIS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 149 of 251



= RAFTELIS

May 9, 2023 ] [ Deleted: April 19

Mr. Nick Turner, P.E.
General Manager
Montecito Water District
583 San Ysidro Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93108

Mr. John F. Weigold, IV

General Manager/District Engineer
Montecito Sanitary District

1042 Monte Cristo Lane

Santa Barbara, CA 93108

Subject: Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study

Dear Mr. Turner and Mr. Weigold:

‘We are pleased to present this third round revised draft report summarizing our analysis of a potential consolidation
of the Montecito Water District and the Montecito Sanitary Districts and reflective of input received from both

Districts as a result of the Joint Committee meeting on February 24, 2023, and comments provided afterward by
both general managers and by the Montecito Water District Board at its meeting on May 2, 2023.

This report includes a review of how a potential consolidation would impact areas of governance and staffing,
financial position, and operations and efficiencies. Raftelis reviewed the pros and cons of consolidation and
considered the associated costs from an objective perspective.

‘We would be happy to present the report. Thank you for the opportunity to work with the Montecito Water District
and the Montecito Sanitary District.

Sincerely,
Rebekka G. Hosken Jim Armstrong
Project Manager Principal Consultant

445 S Figueroa St Suite 1925, Los Angeles, CA 90071

www.raftelis.com

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 150 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 151 of 251



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .......ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e s s eseses s s s s e ssssssseseesenennssnsnes 1
INTRODUCTION......cceiiiiiiiiiinsrrs s sssss s s smmns s s mmnnnn e 4
BACKGROUND AND METHODOLOGY ......cuoiiiiiciiiiiinsssressesiessinssesnnssssssssssssnns 4
ABOUT THE MONTECITO WATER DISTRICT .....ceemiiiieriieeennrececmnmeeeeeeeeeeees 5
SHIUCTUIE ... 6
£ 1T R SR 8
BUAGEL ...ttt e e ne 8
ABOUT THE MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT ....c.ccvviiiieernmmsteeeeeeeeeeeeeens 8
SHIUCTUIE ...t 10
Staffing....ccoviiiirr e ——————————— 11
BUAQGEL ... s 12
ABOUT CONSOLIDATION ..ottt 13
ALTERNATIVE COOPERATIVE STRUCTURES SHORT OF
CONSOLIDATION......cceeuumrnerrreerrerssasssssssssnssssseeeereessessasssssssssssnssssssssessssaassssns 14
CONSOLIDATION......ccoiiiiiieeirenennmnnnsnsssinsssssssressrressesssnmssssssssssssssssssssssssnnennns 15
GOVERNANCE AND STAFFING........cccccccrrr e 19
GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE..........ccecccceennnnnns 19
LT Y=Y g T T 19
Organization StrUCLUIE ..........ccccceiiiiciiierr s s s ssser e s s ssssnr e e s s s s snr e e s s s s ssnnee e s s s s ssnneeeesnnsannnns 21
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION ......ccciiiiiiiiicccssnnnerereee e e e e ssssssssnnns 23
Services and POSIIONS.........cooi e 23
Consolidated Administration — Interim .........ccccciniiininn 25
Consolidated Administration — LONg TerM.........cccociiiiiiciisreesisssssnreeessssssnsssessssssssneees 28
TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS ... eee e 30
Services and PoOSitioNS........ccceiiiimiini i —————————— 30
Consolidated Treatment and Field Operations - Interim ........cccccoecoeimiiiccceeeniiccceeens 33
Consolidated Treatment and Field OPerations — Long Term.........cccccceviicieennnsssssnnnns 33
ENGINEERING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ......cooviiiiiiiiecccemeeeee e 35
MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 152 of 251



Services and POSItiONS.........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 35

Consolidated Engineering - INterim ........cccoociiiiiieinnis e 36
Consolidated Engineering — Long term .........ccccveiiniiinnnsinnnsnne e 37
IMPACT OF POTENTIAL CONSOLIDATION ON ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND STAFFING ... r e e 39
Consolidated Agency — INterim ........ccccviiiiiiiiiniiiiscere e e annees 39
Consolidated Agency — Long Term......c.cccciriiemiiinennnss e e s ssssne s 41
FINANCIAL POSITION. ...t in e 45
BOOKKEEPING .......ceeeiiieiiiiiiiiccscssssmsseesseee e s s s asensisssssnmnns s s s s s sesnssssnennssnnnnnnnnes 45
REVENUES AND EXPENSES ... s ee e e s s s s sesss s es s smasnssssssssssas 46
SALARIES AND BENEFITS .....coooiiiiiiiiiaiicccsinn e e sssssissnnnnsssssssmnsss e s esssssnssnnas 51
Governing Board Compensation..........cccccviiiiieeiirssisinnressssssnsesssssssssssesssssssnsessssssssnsens 51
Staff ComMPeENSAtioN ........ccciiiiiiiir e 51
Collective Bargaining .......cccocoerrrimernsienssenississ s sssss s s sssss e s ssss sssnees 53
Staff Benefits.......ccocieiiniiic e ——————_— 53
INVESTMENTS ....ooiiiiiiiiisieceiemmssi s s ss s s s s s s s sns e e s e s e e s nmmn s s sssssssssssssssnnssnnnnnn 55
DEBT AND DEBT SERVICE .........iiieeeieecmememe e e e e e 56
WORKING CAPITAL AND RESERVES ... sssmneee e 57
OPERATIONS AND EFFICIENCIES............. e 61
ECONOMIES OF SCALE..........cccoomerrrreeeens s ssssssssssssnr e e e s e e s s s mmmnnnnes 61
PROVISION OF RECYCLED WATER ........ccoii i i s s ssmmmnneeees 61
0o | N | 62
MWD Facilities......cccciiiiminiie i e 62
MSD FacCilities....cc.cccceiiruiriii i ————— 63
Consolidated Facilities..........ccuriimininineini e 64
THE FEASIBILITY OF CONSOLIDATION......ccooiias 67
INTERIM CONSOLIDATION .......ccooiiccccceeeeerrree e e e e s ssssss s ssmnsne e e e s e e nnsnnnnsnnnnn 67
LONG TERM CONSOLIDATION ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiccccsssmseresss s e s s s s s s sssmmmsenssenees 69
POTENTIAL FOR COLLECTIVE SAVINGS .........orrrrrrreeeeesemmmeeeeeeees 7
HURDLES TO PROGRESS ........... e sessssmmssr e s e e s e mmmnnnees 73
MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 153 of 251



[ AN 1N € - o 74
CONCLUSION ....cceeeiiiirieerrrrneseerrrnmssserrnnssssrrnnssssernnnssssersnnssssernnnssnnes 77
List of Tables
Table 1: MWD COre SEIVICES .....cccoccrmmemeriireriiiiiirieiersssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssnsssssssnsmsnseeresennnen 6
Table 2: MWD Authorized Staffing Level, FY2018 to FY2022........c..cccciemiiiicimeennnccccneeeesesnns 8
Table 3: MWD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2022.............cccocvemnneminnnniennnnnnieenns 8
Table 4: MSD COre SEIVICES ....ccccccceeerrrrrrrsnnnnnnnnnrenereeseeeeeeeeeesereesesieesassssssssssassssnnssssnssnssesssseneees

Table 5:
Table 6:
Table 7:
Table 8:
Table 9:

Table 10:
Table 11:
Table 12:
Table 13:
Table 14:
Table 15:
Table 16:
Table 17:
Table 18:
Table 19:
Table 20:
Table 21:
Table 22:
Table 23:
Table 24:

MSD Authorized Staffing Level, 2017 to 2021 .........cccoeermnieeminsnennee i
MSD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2023 ............cccooimimiiiniinnne e
MWD, MSD, and Consolidated Personnel by Function...............

MWD Revenues FY2020-FY2022.........

MSD Revenues FY2020 - FY2022........

MWD Expenses FY2020 to FY2022
MSD Expenditures FY2020 to FY2022
Staff Benefits COMPariSoN .........cccouciiinni i
MWD Investment Portfolio........ccommmmmiiieieieiiiinee e eis s ees s sss s sss s s s smsnnnnnnns
MSD Investment Portfolio...........ccriiimiinniir e s
MWD Debt Obligations........ccccciiiiiiiimieeiiiccnree e ssssssse s e s s ssssnr s s s sss e s e s s s s sssnnnessssnnns
MSD Debt Obligations...........ccccuvmiriiiiemne i
Consolidated MWD and MSD Debt Obligations..........ccocvnimrnemnnennnmnsnnsessennes
MWD FY2022 Committed RESEIVES .......cccccememmmrmmmrrerrreerierr e ess s s s ss s s ssssssss s s sssssnns
MSD FY2021 Designated RESErves ..........ccccvrviemiineminneninsssnnssss e
Pros and Cons of MWD and MSD Facilities
Pros and Cons of Consolidation............ccccceerriierinnennn.
Net Savings (Costs) of Consolidation over 10 Years...
Phased Consolidation Plan..........ccccocemmiiiccceenscccceeees e cccneeeeens
Detailed Personnel Information MWD and MSD Positions

List of Figures

Figure 1:
Figure 2:
Figure 3:
Figure 4:
Figure 5:
Figure 6:
Figure 7:
Figure 8:

MWD Boundaries Map........ccccimmmiiiiisernnissssssesssssssssssssssss s ssssss s ssssssssssssssssssnnes
MWD Organizational Chart, FY2022
MSD Boundary Map.......cccuiicimmmeiiierisssisssssne s sssssssses s s s s sssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssnnnns
MSD Organizational Chart ............ccccciiiiiicirrrir e sr e e nnnnes
Current MWD Administrative Support Structure .........ccccccveeeiniiccieeenncccceeeee e
Current MSD Administrative Support Structure ...
Potential Interim Consolidated Administrative Support Structure.......................
Potential Long Term Consolidated Administrative Support Structure

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 154 of 251



Figure 9: Current MSD Operations Structure..........cccccceiiiiiiiiiinnicserre e e
Figure 10: Current MWD Operations Structure
Figure 11: Interim Treatment and Operations Structure
Figure 12: Long Term Operations Structure ..........cccccvriminninicnnninsse e
Figure 13: Current MWD Engineering Structure ..........cccccoirviminnmnnisnsnssss e ssanes
Figure 14: Current MSD Engineering StruCture ..........ccccccmiriiminsininssnnssssss e ssanes
Figure 15: Potential Interim Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure ................... 36
Figure 16: Potential Long Term Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure............. 38
Figure 17: Potential Interim Consolidated Structure..........c.ccccveiieciiminincccsneenis e sseeees
Figure 18: Potential Long-Term Organizational Structure
Figure 19: Aerial Photo of MWD Administrative Office ................
Figure 20: Aerial Photo of MSD Administrative Office ....
Figure 21: Potential Interim Agency Structure.................
Figure 22: Potential Long Term Agency Structure ..........
Figure 23: Phased Consolidation Plan in Graphic Form..............

Figure 24: MWD Boundary Map......ccceceueeeemmmimmiiinmiinssisnsssssssasassssssssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnss
Figure 25: MSD Boundary Map......cccccuimrsminimmsnminssissssiesssissssssss s sse s sssssssssssssssssssssesas

List of Appendices

APPENDIX A: Current MWD & MSD POSItioNs ........cocoeaeiiiinineeeee e esee e ee e sme e se e 79
APPENDIX B: Map of MWD & MSD Boundaries...........cccerirrmmrinininnnneinisssssnssssssssssssssssssnnns 87
APPENDIX C: Salary RaNges ........c.cccceririuiminiainissieinsnesissssssss s s ssssn s ssssss s sssssssssssssssssn s 93

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 155 of 251



Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 156 of 251



Executive Summary

The Montecito Water District (MWD) and the Montecito Sanitary District (MSD) formed as special districts under
State of California law to provide water and wastewater services, respectively. Each is governed by a five-member
Board of Directors, which appoints a General Manager to manage the operations of each district. Each serves largely
the same service area and customers with the exception of Summerland (MSD) and a few minor boundary
differences. MWD and MSD engaged Raftelis in April 2022 to study the feasibility of consolidating the two districts.

The districts have expressed interest in evaluating consolidation for several reasons. First, there is a desire by both
organizations and their elected Boards of Directors to optimize the use of resources. As drought conditions become

of
at the State level to encourage greater use of treated wastewater and to reduce or eliminate ocean discharge of treatef
)

wastewater. The current evaluation of recycled water options by the districts is an example of the commitment ti
using resources wisely and a proactive response to State initiatives. Second, there is interest in providing customerfs
with the best level of service in the most cost-effective manner. Each district has pursued this on their own, but the
economies of scale of a combined entity may create additional opportunities. Third, the State of California, as stated
in various versions of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act, has encouraged reviews
of special districts in California to ensure the “logical formation and determination of local agency boundaries...”!
in order to ensure constituents are getting the best service at the lowest practical cost. Evaluating consolidation aligns
with this statewide initiative. Consolidation, however, must be weighed against a potential perceived loss of local
control and dilution of services that could result from combining formerly separate organizations. Consolidation
costs and impacts on staff time, focus, and delays for other projects during any transition must also be considered.

A consolidation or reorganization of MWD and MSD is feasible and can be achieved, resulting in one organization
managing potable water and wastewater services for the community. This organizational approach is not unique,
and there are many examples of consolidated operations in California, both as special districts and within municipal
organizations. In fact, the City of Santa Barbara uses this approach in its management of its water resources. While
these programs can also be implemented through other mechanisms such as forming a JPA, utilizing a single
organization to move forward on these endeavors ensures a unified approach and helps to avoid potential future
organizational conflicts that can arise due to conflicting missions and priorities, and as Boards and management
changes over time.

There are benefits and drawbacks to consolidation of the two districts, as shown in the table below and discussed
later in this report.

* Better integrated water policies and approach

o Unified governing board e Costs of remodeling and physical co-location

e Some savings through potential elimination of one e Cost of new shared systems such as financial
position management software

o Greater staff specialization e Staff time to review policies and procedures and to

e Some economies of scale through shared contracting, merge operations (especially administrative)
shared resources (tools, chemicals), and coordination e Impacts on staff morale and retention

o Diverts staff capacity from other initiatives

! California Government Code, Division 3. Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, §56001

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 1

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 157 of 251

- '[ Deleted: the potential in

_ - [ Deleted:




e Perceived or real loss of local control and dilution of
services

The greatest benefit that would accrue from consolidation would be a unified governing body that could ensure
integrated water policies. This would be especially helpful should there be a decision to move forward with a large
recycled water program that would involve significant capital expenditures, changes in water use policies, and
allocation of costs to users through rate increases. Other potential benefits include some limited potential financial
savings, the possibility of having greater staff specialization at the administrative level, and some savings through
shared contracts and software systems.

Potential drawbacks to consolidation include the costs of aligning staff salaries and benefits, physical moves and co-
location, and new shared systems such as financial management software. Significant staff time would be dedicated
to managing the efforts needed to merge the two districts and it is unclear how time-sensitive projects could also be
accomplished. Administrative facilities would need to be combined and perhaps expanded, resulting in additional
costs. Existing staff could be disenfranchised and morale negatively impacted; in any significant restructuring, it is
expected some subset of staff could choose to move elsewhere rather than deal with the uncertainty of major change.
Internal staff outreach would be important during the process, and the legality of offering staff retention agreements
can be explored. The combined entity could lose some talent in a job market where competition for skilled utility
operators is stiff. This risk must be purposefully acknowledged and planned for due to its potential to delay or
eliminate many of the potential benefits that might be achieved by consolidation.

As a percentage of total operating costs, the potential for cost savings is limited and in itself probably does not justify
consolidation. Both Districts are currently managed well and appropriately staffed; if anything, current staffing is
lean and there are already some areas of unmet need due to a lack of staffing, particularly in human resources,
conservation, and recycled water. There would be some one-time costs associated with the transition, but these may
be offset by potential long-term savings. Costs associated with consolidation include preparation of an application to
the Santa Barbara County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), new or expanded software/licensing,
legal fees, potential facility renovations and/or expansions, and the time associated with staff merging the two
organizations. Over the first 10 years, the financial impact of consolidation is a savings between $370,000 and
$655,640, with the biggest variables being the cost of potential salary and benefits parity, retention or elimination of
the second General Manager position as a second Assistant General Manager, and potential addition of two new
positions, a Human Resources Specialist and Control System Technician, as recommended. Costs are also dependent
on the level of any renovations done to facilities; while costs may be contained in the near-term, some expansion to
accommodate staff growth may be necessary over time and such costs have not been included here. A combined
district may experience increased costs in the long term, particularly with implementation of recycled water, which
would require additional FTEs for the treatment, distribution, management and use of this new water source. Other
operational changes associated with expansion of in-house laboratory services and water conservation could improve
service levels but might require increased staffing; this is the case whether or not the two agencies consolidate.

Operational efficiencies resulting from consolidation are primarily limited to the administrative and engineering
functions. Because the primary operations and maintenance activities associated with water and sewer provision
would remain relatively unaffected by consolidation, little impact would occur in the bulk of either district’s treatment
or field operations. Combining the districts could potentially streamline administration and engineering activities

2 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 158 of 251



and may realize some savings in the future if the consolidated entity adopted a leaner staffing arrangement which,
while financially attractive, is not recommended. Should all the current positions be retained in the long term with
some reclassifications, the consolidated district may be able to enhance current service levels by allowing
administrative staff to focus on specific subject areas rather than wearing “multiple hats” as is now done in each
utility individually, and by allowing water and sewer engineering staff to collaborate. While MWD has a
communications specialist on staff, MSD does not and could benefit from access to this expertise. Service levels can
also be improved by adding expertise that was not economical in one utility.

Raftelis suggests that the consolidation, if desired, be implemented in a phased manner. The first phase, the interim
period, would simply merge the two organizations without any significant changes in staffing and largely maintain
status quo activities. The Santa Barbara County LAFCO would work with the districts to either merge MSD into
MWD, a process known as “reorganization” (as defined in Government Code §56073), given that water districts in
California have an existing option to provide wastewater services and MWD is a larger organization, or create a new
Community Services District, which is referred to as “consolidation” (as defined in Government Code §56030).
There are pros and cons to each approach. The interim period is expected to take 3-5 years. During this interim
transition period financial, governance, and other areas would need to be aligned to develop a deeper understanding
of the strengths and weaknesses of various options. Decisions could then be made about long-term staffing, combined
facilities, and streamlining policies and procedures to assure the best chance for success.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 3

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 159 of 251



Introduction
Background and Methodology

The MWD and the MSD, collectively referred to as “districts” were formed as special districts under State of
California law. MWD was formed in 1921 and its mission is to “provide an adequate and reliable supply of high-
quality water to the residents of Montecito and Summerland, at the most reasonable cost.”? MWD is governed by a
five-member Board of Directors who appoint a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the District.
MSD was formed in 1947 and its mission statement is, “a community service commitment to protect public health
and safety and to preserve the natural environment through the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater in
the most cost-effective way possible.”3 MSD is also governed by a five-member Board of Directors, which appoints
a General Manager to manage the operations of the District.

Collaboration with other entities has been a longstanding value at MWD and part of their history dating back to
formation in 1921. The MWD collaborated with the City of Santa Barbara on Jameson Lake in the late 1920s, with
all water purveyors on the south coast for construction and operation of the Cachuma Project in the 1950s, and with
many water purveyors in the County on the State Water Project in the 1990s. In 1995, MWD took over water service
for the community of Summerland when the Summerland Water District was dissolved. The service area was
annexed by MWD. Wastewater services in Summerland are provided by the Summerland Sanitary District. In 2018,
MWD became the agency responsible for managing the area’s groundwater resources and operates the Montecito
Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA).* In 2020, MWD entered into a water supply
agreement with the City of Santa Barbara to share capacity of the City’s desalination plant, which ensures a long
term rainfall independent water supply for the communities of Montecito and Summerland. Currently both districts
are actively collaborating on the evaluation of recycled water services and have hired Carollo Engineers to study the
options.

In April 2022, MWD and MSD collaborated to jointly engage Raftelis to study the potential consolidation of the
two districts with knowledge that State regulatory changes and a push toward a “OneWater” concept (the entire
process from water sourcing to wastewater treatment to recycled use) will require increased collaboration in the
future. The goals of this study included:

e Articulating the pros and cons of consolidation

e Assessing the anticipated costs and cost savings of consolidation

e Assessing and quantifying operational efficiencies of consolidation, if any

e  Evaluating the advantages, disadvantages, opportunities, and limitations of consolidation

e Determining if there is a business case to affirm the two districts can and should consolidate.

In order to do so, Raftelis has simulated the likely steps and results of a consolidation effort in order to determine its
impacts on both current agencies and a new consolidated one. Where possible, estimated costs and potential cost
savings associated with the creation of a single entity are quantified.

The project team reviewed background information and data provided by both districts including services, finances,
organizational charts, staffing history, job responsibilities, and other relevant information. The project team
interviewed the General Managers and several Board of Directors members, as well as the LAFCO in Santa Barbara
County and the districts’ legal firm retained for this evaluation, Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC. The

2 Montecito Water District, Mission & History,
3 Montecito Sewer District, About the District,
4 Montecito Groundwater Basin GSA, Mission & Purpose,

4 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 160 of 251



interviews and review of data helped the project team understand the history and context for the current operations
and structure, and assess the likely benefits and challenges associated with potential consolidation.

About the Montecito Water District

The MWD manages water resources and delivers water to customers in the communities of Montecito and
Summerland with a population served of approximately 11,817.°> The water treatment and distribution system
includes approximately 4,630 service connections, 114 miles of water main, nine pump stations, 12 groundwater
wells, and two water treatment plants. The MWD is also responsible for Juncal Dam, which was built in 1930 and
created Jameson Lake, one of the water sources for MWD.” MWD bills customers monthly for water service based
on metered usage.

The MWD service area is approximately 15.4 square miles in the southeastxion of Santa Barbara County. The
MWD service area encompasses all but a small portion of the MSD’s service area in addition to the community of
Summerland to the southeast and portions of unincorporated Santa Barbara County east of Ladera Lane to the south
of the Los Padres National Forest boundary, as well as a section west of Westmont Road up to the Los Padres
National Forest Boundary. Figure 1 shows a map from the Santa Barbara County Surveyor of MWD’s service area
shaded in blue. A larger version is provided as Appendix B to this r

Figure 1: MWD Boundaries

T -

T

}b ¥
b P&

Montecito Water District Legend
Pages 287.293, 117771921 GRAPHICSCALE —Freeways () Parcels D sphere of nfluence.
p " \ - sect Formaton s oy
Action: 2 LAFCO 1001, 5/6/2010. ° azs as i — mm - Irﬂ“ = -
e —— = Railroads £33 Los Padves National Forest £ Detachment P> -
Miles. ity Boundaries.

5 Montecito Water District, FY2022 Adopted Budget, Page 5

¢ Montecito Water District (MWD), District Facilities Overview, https://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/service-
facilities/

" Montecito Water District (MWD), FY2022 Adopted Budget, Pages 2 and 7.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 5

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 161 of 251



Table 1 below provides an overview of the primary activities of MWD staff, associated with treating and supplying
water. It is not intended to be all-inclusive, but rather a summary of the general activities performed by MWD staff.

Table 1: MWD Core Services

Depar_tmen? .. Program Area Activities and Service Levels
Function/Division

e Manage and direct MWD staff to meet the Board of Director’s goals and
objectives

Ensure compliance with regulatory and reporting requirements
Advertise, recruit, and hire staff

Prepare board packets and agendas

Maintain records

Provide public information to customers and the community
Respond to questions from customers

Provide education for conservation issues, techniques, and strategies
Provide engineering expertise and support to District capital projects
Develop growth and renewal schedules and plans for horizontal and
vertical infrastructure

Develop and monitor an annual budget

Maintain general ledger, A/P, A/R, and purchasing

Provide Payroll

Provide education and outreach on MWD to the public

Assist MWD staff with formatting and content of communications
Develop relationship with local press

Conduct regular proactive maintenance of water mains, valves,
hydrants, and other appurtenances

Respond to water line breaks and leaks

Management/
Administration

Communication

Administration

Engineering

Finance and
Customer Service

Public Information

System Maintenance

Water Distribution / > .
e  Perform flushing of water mains to ensure water quality
Fleet Maintenance e Perform maintenance on District owned vehicles and equipment
e  Operate the Bella Vista and Doulton Water Treatment Plants
e Monitor the Doulton Tunnel, Jameson Lake, groundwater wells, and
Treatment Plant other water sources
Water Treatment Operations e Conduct regular water quality tests to ensure water meets acceptable

drinking standards

Inspect and maintain wellhouses, treatment plants, and pump stations
Inspect and maintain the Juncal Dam

Report inspections to the State of California

Perform routine preventative maintenance

and Production

Dam Maintenance

STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors appoints a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the MWD. The General
Manager also serves as the Board Secretary. The MWD consists of three workgroups all reporting to the General
Manager: water production and treatment, water distribution, and administrative support. Additionally, MWD
General Manager serves as the General Manager for the Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability
Agency (GSA), which consists of a fourth and separate workgroup for groundwater. As of the FY2022 adopted
budget, the MWD has a total of 28 employees. The following figure shows MWD’s organizational structure based
on 2022 staffing levels.

6 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 162 of 251



Water District
Board of Directors
Administrative
Gene‘lmbl }llll_lflgager — Assistant
: 1.0 FTE
T
Public Information Asst. General .
N Manager / Business Manager|
Officer . .
1.0FTE Engineering 1.0FTE
. 1.0 FTE
T
| | I —
. P— Treatment & Sr. Office
Water Convse_rvatlon Dlstpbutlon Production Technician / Staff
Specialist Superintendent : H
10FTE 1.0 FTE Superintendent Accountant
. ) 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
I I
Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker Treatment Chief Engln_eenng Grounc_lw_a(er Office Technician Il
Operator 1.0 FTE 1 Operator Assistant Specialist 2.0 FTE
1.0 FTE . 1.0FTE 2.0FTE 1.0 FTE i
I
Distribution Control _S\:/stem Treatment Plant Financial Analyst /
Technician / -
Operator Operator — Operator — IT Specialist
6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 20FTE 1.0 FTE
Fleet Technician /
Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 2: MWD Organizational Chart, FY2022

The Treatment and Production Department is led by the Treatment & Production Superintendent with oversight and
support from the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager. The Treatment & Production Superintendent
supervises three full time operators along with a Control System Technician/Operator which support the operation
of two treatment plants: the Bella Vista Treatment Plant and the Doulton Treatment Plant, including the operation
of twelve groundwater wells and associated localized treatment systems, and ten water storage reservoirs. The Dam
Caretaker is responsible for maintenance and upkeep of the Juncal Dam which forms Jameson Lake, one of the
primary water sources for the District.

The Distribution Department is led by the Distribution Superintendent with oversight and support from the Assistant
General Manager/Engineering Manager. The Distribution Superintendent supervises a full time Distribution Chief
Operator, six Distribution Operators and a Fleet Technician/Distribution Operator. The seven full time operators
maintain and repair MWD’s water mains, valves, pump stations, hydrants, pressure reducing stations, and other
infrastructure. Fleet maintenance is also part of this workgroup, which is supported by a Fleet
Technician/Distribution Operator who is cross trained to perform some Operator duties.

Administrative support includes a Public Information Officer (PIO) responsible for communications with customers
and the public. A Water Conservation Specialist is responsible for educating the public on water conservation issues.
Clerical, financial, and information technology related tasks are led by a Business Manager and supported by four
full time employees who provide finance and accounting, human resources, and board agenda and packets services
to the District.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 7

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 163 of 251



STAFFING

Between FY2018 and FY2022, MWD staffing has increased by two full time equivalents (FTEs). The additional
positions include an Assistant Engineer, and subsequent to the GSA formation, a Groundwater Specialist. These
positions were needed to improve responsiveness and customer communications, and respond to new groundwater
regulations. The following table shows MWD staffing between FY2018 and FY2022.

Table 2: MWD Authorized Staffing Level, FY2018 to FY20228

Percent Change
FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2018 to
FY2022
26.0 26.0 28.0 28.0 28.0

Full Time o
Equivalents 12%

BUDGET

The MWD adopted budget has increased by approximately 32% between FY2018 and FY2022. This is in part driven
by the cost of a long-term water supply agreement (WSA) with the City of Santa Barbara to receive an allotment of
drinking water from their Charles E. Meyer Desalination Facility.? This agreement provides 1,430 acre-feet of water
annually for 50 years. The following table shows the adopted budget by expenditure category for FY2018 to FY2022.

Table 3: MWD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY202210

Percent

Category FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Change
Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget FY2019 to

FY2023

Operating Expenditures $15,553,982  $15,633,053 $15,721,945 $17,717,256  $19,833,249 27.5%

Depreciation Expense 1,183,710 1,198,312 1,088,741 1,156,535 1,152,000 -2.7%

Non-Operating 3
Expenditures 1,411,401 1,549,850 1,082,134 1,203,196 667,427 -52.7%

Total Expenditures $18,149,093 | $18,381,215 | $17,892,820 | $20,076,987 | $21,652,676 19.3%

About the Montecito Sanitary District

The MSD provides collection, treatment, and disposal of wastewater to residents within the Montecito community
with an approximate population served of approx. 9,000.!"' The wastewater collection system includes five pump
stations, 75.2 miles of sewer main, and a wastewater treatment plant with a rated capacity of 1.5 million gallons per
day (MGD). There has been significant support over recent years by property owners and the Board of Directors
(BoD)to extend the MSD sewer system to allow for septic to sewer conversions. Even with expansion of more
connections, the District’s flows at the treatment plant are at lows not seen for multiple decades.

The MSD is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected to four-year terms. MSD serves 3,185 properties.'?
Billing for wastewater services is done through an annual fee that is levied as part of each parcels’ property tax bill;
this is processed and collected by Santa Barbara County on behalf of the District.

8 Montecito Water District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets, hitps://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/financials
° Montecito Water District, FY2022 Adopted Budget, Page 7

10 Montecito Water District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets, https://www.montecitowater.com/about-the-district/financials/
I Montecito Sanitary District, About the District, https://www.montsan.org/about-the-district
12 Montecito Sanitary District (MSD), About the District, https://www.montsan.org/about-the-district

8 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 164 of 251



The MSD service area covers approximately 9.3 square miles in southeast Santa Barbara County. MSD’s service
area is mostly coterminous with MWD’s boundaries except for the community of Summerland to the southeast and
portions of unincorporated Santa Barbara County east of Ladera Lane and north of the Los Padres National Forest

boundary, as well as a section west of Westmont Road up to the Los Padres National Forest Boundary. Figure B, _ - {Deleted: Figure 3

shows a map from the Santa Barbara County Surveyor of MSD’s service area shaded in pink. A larger version is
provided as Appendix B to this report.

Figure 3: MSD Boundary Map

Montecito Sanitary District
Compiled by the Office of the County Surveydr on 1/17/2017.

Formed 7/21/1944 by Bowd of SupervsorsResolution 7557
Last Action: 24, Calvin Anne. LAFCO 1406, 2272015, Sphere: 1/042010amended 111062014

GRAPHIC SCALE
025 os

Miles

The following table provides an overview of core services provided by MSD. This table is not intended to be all-
inclusive, but rather a summary of the core services provided by MSD staff.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 9

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 165 of 251



Table 4: MSD Core Services

Depar_tmen? . . Program Area Activities and Service Levels
Function/Division

e Manage and direct MSD staff to meet the Board of Directors goals and

objectives

Develop and monitor an annual budget

Ensure compliance with regulatory and reporting requirements

Permit development in accordance with District policies

Provide engineering expertise and support to District capital projects

Develop growth and renewal schedules and plans for horizontal and

vertical infrastructure

e Operate the Wastewater Treatment Plant to meet all regulatory
requirements of the District’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System

Management/

adipStation Administration

Engineering

Treatment Plant

Operations e Monitor the treatment plant effluent into the Pacific Ocean
e Perform maintenance and repairs as needed
Wastewater .
Treatment e Operate District’s recycled water pilot plant
s . Perform routine and proactive facility maintenance
Faciliies Maintenance Complete specialized HVAC, electrical, and plumbing maintenance
e Conduct regular water quality tests to comply with State treatment
Lab and Pretreatment standards
e Manage pretreatment program with applicable customers
e Comply with Waste Discharge Requirements General Order
e  Conduct regular maintenance of sewer mains including televising and
cleaning
Wastewater Collection System e Provide routine inspection and maintenance of lift stations
Collection Maintenance e Oversee lateral inspection program to comply with state requirements
to prevent private sewer lateral discharges (PLSDs)
 Respond to blockages and report sanitary sewer overflows per
regulatory requirements
STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors appoints a General Manager to run the day-to-day operations of the MSD. The MSD consists
of five workgroups all reporting to the General Manager: collections, treatment, engineering, lab and pretreatment,
and administrative support. The MSD has a total of 18 employees. The following figure shows MSD’s organizational
structure based on 2022 staffing levels.

10 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 166 of 251



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0 FTE
I
Laboratory & Engineering Collections Treatment Supt/ District
Pretreatment . Chief Plant L
Manager Manager Superintendent Operator Administrator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
————
Collections Chief Maintenance|
Operator IV Mechanic
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
I I
Collections Facilities Wastewater Accounting &
Maintenance Treatment Plant Administrative
Operator e X
4.0 FTE Technician Operator Assistant
. 1.0 FTE 4.0 FTE 1.0 FTE

Figure 4: MSD Organizational Chart

MSD operations is split into three workgroups: Collections, Treatment Plant, and Maintenance. Collection staff
maintain the wastewater mains and lift stations that collect wastewater from customers to the treatment plant; a total
of six FTEs support this work. Treatment plant staff operate the District’s wastewater treatment plant and perform
maintenance as needed; a total of five FTEs support this work. The Chief Maintenance Mechanic and Facilities
Maintenance Technician, two FTEs, support the Collection and Treatment Superintendents with more complex
maintenance at the treatment plant and lift stations, as well as maintain the facilities.

Engineering support is provided by the Engineering Manager, who provides engineering expertise for planning and
execution of capital projects including new construction, rehabilitation, and replacement.

The Lab and Pretreatment Manager is responsible for conducting testing to support the regulatory monitoring and
process control analysis for the wastewater treatment plant and ensure the MSD is complying with its National
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit requirements and State regulations. This also includes
managing the District’s source control program for Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG).

Administrative support includes a District Administrator and Clerk of the Board as well as an Accounting and
Administrative Assistant. These positions are responsible for clerical, financial, human resources, clerk of the board
duties, permit review and coordination, and information technology related tasks.

STAFFING

Since 2017, staffing for MSD has only increased by one FTE. In 2018 an additional Collection System Operator was
created to support the maintenance needed on the pipelines and lift stations. The following table shows the District’s
authorized staffing level from 2017 to 2021 according to data reported to the California State Controller.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 11

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 167 of 251



Table 5: MSD Authorized Staffing Level, 2017 to 20213

Percent
m 2017 mmmmm Change
Full Time o
Equivalents 17.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 6%

BUDGET

The annual budget for MSD has increased by 24% between FY 2018 and FY2022. In addition, input costs like the
cost of fuel and electricity have risen by 41% over the last five fiscal years. The following table shows the expenditures
by category according to adopted budget documents and annual audited financial statements.

Table 6: MSD Expenditures by Category, FY2019 to FY2023"4

Percent

Catedo FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 022 FY2023 Change
gory Actual Actual Actual (unaudited) Budget FY2019 to

FY2023

Operating Expenditures $5,386,384  $5,832,724 $5,897,097 $4,201,370 $5,160,763 -4.2%
Non-Operating Expenditures 245,318 245,012 866,091 674.780 251,500 2.5%
Capital Contributions'® 6,979,983 42,479 154,807 123,068 4,980,500 -28.7%

Total Expenditures $12,611,685 | $6,120,215 $6,051,904 m $10,392,763 -17.6%

13 California State Controller, Government Compensation in California, Montecito Sanitary District,
https://publicpay.ca.gov/Reports/SpecialDistricts/Special District.aspx?entityid=2017

'4 Montecito Sanitary District, FY2018 to FY2022 Adopted Budgets and FY 18 to FY2021 Annual Financial Reports.

15 FY2018-19 MSD capital contributions included the Miramar Lift Station and Force Main and sewer main extension reimbursements.

12 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 168 of 251



About Consolidation

Any potential consolidation of the Districts would require approval by the Santa Barbara County LAFCO. LAFCOs
were created by the State of California in response to rapid growth experienced in the 20" century and the urban
sprawl that resulted.'® Each LAFCO works with residents, the County, and any cities and special districts in their
region on jurisdictional issues to discourage urban sprawl and encourage the orderly formation of local agencies.!”
A regular part of a LAFCOQO’s duties is to review special districts to ensure services are being provided in a cost
effective and efficient manner. LAFCOs have the authority to approve and manage consolidation efforts.
Applications for consolidation or collaboration need to be submitted to the local LAFCO for review, public
engagement, and approval. LAFCOs are able to work with agencies to provide guidance and temporary rules to
facilitate consolidation. This can include arrangements for transitioning Board of Directors seats and finances
between agencies, or consolidating them in the case of a combination of two or more entities. As part of a
consolidation or collaboration process, local agencies would work closely with their County LAFCO.

Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) are prepared by LAFCOs for a variety of purposes, most often as a precursor to
a review of a sphere of influence. California Government Code Section 56430 states that an MSR should include a
review of seven factors with regard to service provision:

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area

2. Location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to

affected spheres of influence

3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies
Financial ability of agencies to provides services
Status and opportunities for shared facilities
Accountability for community service needs, including structure and operational efficiencies
Matters relating to effective or efficient service delivery as required by policy

NSk

Raftelis has consulted with Santa Barbara County LAFCO and other LAFCO agencies in California on utility
consolidation matters. The Raftelis project team interviewed Santa Barbara County LAFCO staff to discuss and
review consolidation procedures and steps that would be necessary to achieve consolidation, within Santa Barbara
County. Ultimately, a formal application by both agencies would need to be submitted to the Santa Barbara County
LAFCO for review and approval. In addition, before an application is submitted, agencies desiring consolidation
would need to conduct public outreach and meetings with stakeholders.

The Sacramento LAFCO also provided information, which has been included and summarized below:

‘While the terms “merger,” “combination” and “consolidation” are often used colloquially, in the LAFCO context
there are a number of terms that have specific definitions. The words “combination” or “combined” do not have a
legal definition under LAFCO Law. This stands in contrast to the terms “consolidation” (as defined in Government
Code §56030) and “reorganization” (as defined in Government Code §56073),” which have specific meanings.
Technically, consolidation is when two like agencies — two cities or two special districts -- join together into a single
agency. Reorganization is when one agency is dissolved and annexed by the other. The end results are essentially
the same: one agency assumes the rights, responsibilities, assets, and liabilities from others. For the purposes of
simplicity, this study uses the term “consolidation.”

16 Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission, History,
17 Santa Barbara Local Agency Formation Commission,

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 13

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 169 of 251



In a consolidation, all existing agencies are dissolved and a new one is created in their place with a service area that
encompasses the previous districts’ service areas. The new agency is the successor entity. The process is initiated
when both agencies file an application to LAFCO for consolidation. In a reorganization, one or more districts are
dissolved and one agency annexes all or a portion of their former service areas. An existing agency is the successor
entity. The process initiates when one or more districts applies to dissolve, and the remaining district applies to annex
the service area of the dissolved district(s).

Either district, as well as the County which includes both, can initiate these processes by adopting a resolution of
application and going through the “normal” LAFCO process (which, in reality, can vary across counties). There is
also one provision of State Law that may also be applicable: Government Code §56853(a) states that if the combining
agencies adopt substantially similar resolutions of application, LAFCO must either approve or conditionally approve
the proposal (in other words, LAFCO cannot deny the application).
section, Government Code §57077.2 provides that it will be subject to voter approval only if, at a second hearing
called a “protest hearing,” between 25% and 50% of the registered voters protest the change. (See page 18 for a more
detailed explanation of the protest thresholds.)

roves a consolidation under this

Before reviewing consolidation of the two entities, it is helpful to review other alternative cooperative structures short
of full consolidation.

Alternative Cooperative Structures Short of Consolidation

State law also provides for other structures short of consolidation that the districts could utilize to implement
specific projects or programs, such as the creation of a recycled water program. As discussed in a report issued
by the California State Legislature Local Government Committee in 2007, these structures can generally be
described as follows:

Joint Powers Agreement — A joint powers agreement is a formal, legal agreement between two or more public
agencies that share a common power and want to jointly implement programs, build facilities or deliver services.
Under a joint powers agreement, one of the member agencies agrees to be responsible for delivering the program
or constructing facilities. The agreement spells out how the programs will be administered and how the costs
will be allocated to the member agencies. Each joint powers agreement is unique, and can be amended by the
mutual consent of the agencies.

The benefits of a joint powers agreement are as follows:
e Relatively simple to create and operate
e Does not require a separate set of financial statements or independent audit
e One agency provides the staff to implement the programs and projects
e Key components of the financial responsibilities of the parties is spelled out in the joint powers agreement

Negative aspects of a joint powers agreement are as follows:
e One agency administers the terms of the agreement, limiting the involvement of staff from other agencies
e No independent ability to secure long term financing through instruments such as revenue bonds.
e May be difficult to utilize for complex, multi-year projects and programs that have a lot of uncertainty.

18 California State Legislature Local Government Committee, Governments Working Together: A Citizen’s Guide to Joint Power
Agreements, August 2007,

14 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 170 of 251

- [ Commented [RH1]: Revised per request of Holly Whatley

)

Deleted: In addition, this section says that the reorganization
could be ordered without an election unless the conditions under
GC §57081(b) are met. After the approval hearing, a second
hearing (called a Conducting Authority Hearing or a protest
hearing) must be held, but only to determine if the conditions
specified in Government Code §57081(b) exist.




Joint Powers Agencies — A joint powers agency or joint powers authority (JPA) is a new, separate government
agency created by the member agencies, but legally independent from them. Like a joint powers agreement, in
which one agency administers the terms of the agreement, a joint powers agency shares powers common to the
member agencies. The governance structure of the new agency is determined by the agency members and can
vary depending upon the needs of the agencies. Typically, member agencies appoint the individuals who will
sit on the governing board. Members of the governing boards can be staff members, board members, or
separately selected members from the community.

The formation of a joint powers agency is done through the creation of a formal agreement that spells out the
powers of the new agency, financial responsibilities, and the governance structure. Each agency’s governing
body must approve the joint powers agreement. Once the agency is created, a notice must be filed with the
Secretary of State.

Joint powers agencies are legally separate public agencies that can hire staff, obtain financing to build public
facilities, and usually protect member agencies from the agency’s debts or other liabilities. JPAs are frequently
used for financing purposes, since they are able to issue revenue bonds without voter approval.

As a separate agency, the JPA must appoint a treasurer and an auditor. Annual audits must be conducted and
filed with the County Auditor. Additionally, Board of Directors meetings must be conducted in accordance
with the Brown Act.

Benefits of creating a joint powers agency are as follows:
e Can be used to implement very specific projects and programs that benefit a number of agencies
e Separate financing authority to issue bonds and ability to apply for grants
e Separate staff dedicated to authority projects and programs, and independent of the member agencies

Negative aspects include the following:
e Confusing governance structure that is difficult to understand by the public
e Higher costs due to need to create separate administrative structure, maintain separate financial records,
conduct audits, etc.
e Appointed members of the Board of Directors may have conflicting loyalties when disputes arise

Consolidation

Governance is a key component of any effort toward consolidation. Organizationally, there are two avenues to
combine the services of MSD and MWD, consolidation or reorganization. The end result is essentially the same,
with one agency assuming the rights, responsibilities, assets, and liabilities from the current organizations. Below are
more details on the reorganization and consolidation scenarios:

¢ Reorganization: Dissolution of MSD and annexation by MWD — One district is dissolved, and one agency
annexes their former service area. Under California Water Code, water districts can also perform the services
of a wastewater utility, including constructing, operating, and maintaining wastewater collection, treatment,

- [ Deleted: .»°
MWD by adding in MSD staff and operations, and result in dissolving MSD. The MWD Board of Directors .~ { Deleted: Restructuring MWD to
would remain intact at five members and the current MSD Board would be dissolved. : { Deleted: merge

19 State of California, California Water Code, Division 13 California Water Districts, Article 5. Sewers

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 15

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 171 of 251



e Consolidation: Creation of a new Community Services District — All agencies are dissolved and a new
Community Services Agency is created in their place with a service area that encompasses the previous
districts’ service areas. Under California State Code, Community Services Districts can provide several
municipal services including treating and supplying drinking water and collection and treatment of
wastewater.?! A new Community Services District would require dissolving both MWD and MSD. LAFCO
can approve a larger temporary Board of Directors which would include members of both existing Boards
of Directors. The Board of Directors would become smaller over time as member terms expire.

To initiate the process, the Districts would need to submit resolutions of application to LAFCO which should
include: the actions requested from LAFCO, designated contact person(s), map of the service area(s) affected, what
should be done with zones of benefit or benefit assessments, fiscal considerations, governing considerations, and any
other conditions of approval requested of LAFCO. The Districts would work with LAFCO to review the
consolidation plans and engage with the community to review the proposed organizational structure, impact upon
service delivery, and financial implications. LAFCO would also do an environmental assessment of the proposed
consolidation. Based upon our discussions with LAFCO, it is believed that the project would either be Categorical
Exempt or receive a Negative Declaration.

As a part of the consolidation process, State Law requires that LAFCO send formal notices to all landowners and
registered voters within the boundaries the district(s) being considered for dissolution or consolidation. The formal
notice would provide landowners and registered voters an opportunity to object to the proposed organizational
change. After objections are received and tabulated, LAFCO would move forward as follows:

e Ifless than 25% of voters or owners by land value object to change, the dissolution/consolidation
would go forward after approval by LAFCO

o Ifbetween 25-50% of registered voters or owners by land value object to the change, LAFCO would
call an election to approve the dissolution/consolidation

e If more than 50% of registered voters or owners by land value object to the change, the
dissolution/consolidation would not go forward and the status quo situation would remain.

Both of the organizational options eventually result in the same outcome, a consolidated organization with a five
member elected Board of Directors overseeing operations. Creating a new Community Services District does allow
for an interim governing structure that allows members from both Boards of Directors to participate in the transition
process until their terms expire.

MWD and MSD would need to consider potential impacts to the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and
the Summerland Sanitary District (SSD). For example, if a decision is made to create a new Community Services
District, the duties of the GSA would need to be assigned to the new agency. We expect that LAFCO and the State
Department of Water Resources would readily approve the new organization taking over the responsibilities of
managing the GSA.

With respect to the SSD, the new agency — whether consolidated entity or CSD -- would need to either exclude the
SSD from its boundaries for purposes of sanitary services, or develop an appropriate services agreement with SSD to
continue to provide these services. Santa Barbara County LAFCO can assist in this process. For simplicity purposes,

2! State of California, Government Code, Division 3 Community Services Districts, Part 3 Purposes Services and
Facilities, Chapter 1 Authorized Services and Facilities, Section 61100(a) and Section 61100(b),

16 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 172 of 251



the consulting team does not recommend including any consideration of annexing or consolidating with SSD into
the process at this stage.

It would be important for both organizations to communicate regularly about the consolidation process and potential
options being considered. Developing resources like a fact sheet, infographics, or short videos, which can be used in
different communications channels can help proactively address potential questions and drive people to learn more.
It may be appropriate to conduct a survey to gather information and gain insights on the topics that need to be
communicated or methods of communication that would work best. Holding in-person or virtual open houses can
be a good method to humanize the agencies and provide an opportunity for stakeholders to learn more about the
process. In addition, communications around the formation of the Montecito GSA may be helpful in informing
communications for this process.

This report assesses the potential impacts of consolidation by reviewing the likely many changes that would occur
should the two districts consolidate into one. These impacts are evaluated in two scenarios, a short-term, interim
scenario which highlights immediate changes through three years immediately following consolidation, and a long-
term scenario with changes beyond the three years. The next sections will evaluate potential consolidation impacts
in three areas: Governance and Staffing, Financial Position, and Operations.

Should the Districts decide to move forward with consolidation, Raftelis recommends it be accomplished in a phased
approach. This would include an interim phase, of approximately three to five years, and a long term phase, where
full consolidation would be completed.

In the next sections of this report, we discuss the recommended interim and long term organizational structures.
This includes new governance, administrative, and operational structures. From an operational standpoint, there is
little to no impact on day to day operations or in the services provided to customers. In the long term, there will be
some changes to administrative and support functions, as the consolidation is completed. These changes should
provide management with additional “bandwidth” to address future projects such as enhanced recycling programs,
and to improve personnel management and outreach to the community.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 17

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 173 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

18 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 174 of 251



Governance and Staffing

MWD and MSD have separate, although complementary, purposes and missions. Operationally, MSD is focused
on wastewater collection and treatment and MWD is focused on drinking water acquisition, treatment and
distribution. Each organization acts as a separate utility. However, in many communities and jurisdictions water and
wastewater services are provided by a single utility. The benefit of this approach is that it can align CIP planning and
construction, provide some economies of scale for administrative and engineering functions, and provide customers
with a single service provider and bill to pay.

This section will review the potential impacts of consolidation on governance and staffing for each agency.

Governance and Organizational Structure

One key area of consideration is the organizational structure of any consolidated organization and the process to
combine staff of the previously separate organizations. As discussed earlier, the two organizations have separate
operations with little overlap in terms of core water and wastewater activities, but there is opportunity to potentially
improve water resource management, customer service, service levels, and efficiency through creating a combined
utility.

In order to align the two organizations in the least disruptive manner, there would be a need for an interim structure
that aligns similar workgroups and begins melding staff together as the formal steps of consolidation are worked
through. The interim alignment may provide some redundancy and would provide management an opportunity to
assess the actual needs of the newly formed agency before implementing operational changes, for example to reduce,
retain the same or increase staffing. The full efficiency of combining the organization in the interim period may not
be captured initially but it does allow the combined organization to leverage natural staff attrition, allay staff concerns
about job security, and engage in transition activities more effectively.

GOVERNANCE

MWD and MSD are both governed by separate five-member Boards of Directors. Directors are elected at-large from
the District services areas to serve four-year terms with staggered elections occurring every two years in line with the
Statewide General Elections. Prior to the most recent drought, the number of candidates for the elected boards of
both districts was limited, In fact, over several elections cycles from 2008 through 2016, elections were cancelled due
to the lack of competitive contests. However, as drought restrictions were implemented, interest in serving on both
boards increased. As a result, elections to both boards have been more competitive, and interest by community
members in district operations and policies has increased.

Each Board of Directors sets the policy of the organization including approving the annual budget and setting fees
and rates. The Board of Directors for each organization appoints the General Manager to oversee day-to-day
operations while the Board provides policy direction.

If the Districts decide to pursue the creation of a community services district, the Districts will need to work with
LAFCO to determine a transitional arrangement for governance. This might include combining both current Boards
of Directors into one temporarily and reducing the numbers of Directors over time through future election cycles.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 19

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 175 of 251



The consolidated new agency would ultimately have a single five member Board of Directors providing policy
directly over both water and wastewater operations. In the short term, creating a single Board of Directors may mean
additional monthly meetings to cover all topics in a timely manner, but in the long term streamlines governance by
requiring only one agenda, one board packet, and fewer elections, potentially resulting in greater efficiency and some
cost savings for ratepayers.

Creating a new community services district might provide a better transition for the two Boards of Directors to merge
over time because members of both Boards would be involved in decision making in the initial years of the new
organization. However, how this new community district is presented to the community is very important. Because
community service districts can legally provide most municipal services, including public safety and parks and
recreation, there could be the perception in the community that a new community services district is a precursor to
a large organization providing more services, or even possible cityhood. In order to allay these concerns, the Districts
will need to have a strong public outreach campaign to explain that the new District intends to only provide water
and wastewater services.

Probably the most important reason to consider consolidation is that the new governing Board of Directors would
provide unified direction to management concerning overall water supply and treatment policies, including the use
of recycled water. This could be especially important should the districts decide to utilize recycled water as a major
water supply. Specific decisions such as where to locate new facilities and how to allocate costs to ratepayers would
be easier to make with a single Board of Directors.

The concept of OneWater and recycled water is enhanced by having a single vision and policymaking body. A single
policy making body would control all facets of water, from sourcing, treatment of drinking water to treatment of
wastewater and potentially reuse. Because these components naturally inter-relate, having a singular governing body
would enhance planning and coordination. While coordination by separate entities is certainly achievable, it requires
additional work.

One potential negative aspect of this change to a single governing body is the reduction in the number of directly
elected members of the Board of Directors in the community by half which, some could argue, reduces the level of
local governance and stakeholder input. We do not concur with this assessment and have seen many combined water
and wastewater utilities operate well nationwide with no known impacts to local governance or community
participation.

Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)

To comply with the State of California Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, MWD became the Groundwater
Sustainability Agency for the Montecito Groundwater Basin. The Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency was established in 2018 to comply with the State of California Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act, which required all groundwater basins designated as medium or high priority to form local GSAs
to assess conditions in their local groundwater basins and adopt management plans based on those assessments.??
MWD initiated formation of the GSA. The MWD Board of Directors serves as the GSA Board of Directors and
MWD staff serve as GSA staff. Only one employee is dedicated toward GSA work, the Groundwater Specialist, who
assists with the development and implementation of the GSA’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan. The GSA budget
and accounting is separate from the MWD budget.

22 Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency, Mission and Purpose,

20 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 176 of 251



The GSA would be impacted by any organizational or structural change to MWD. As part of any consolidation,
staff would need to contact the State Department of Water Resources to transfer responsibility for the GSA to the
new agency, including a new Community Services District if created?. Notification would not be necessary if the
MWD consolidates with the MSD and preserves current GSA activities. The consultant team believes that both
LAFCO and the State Department of Water Resources would readily approve the inclusion of GSA responsibilities
in the new organization.

Summerland Sanitary District

The boundaries of MWD and MSD are generally aligned except for the area encompassing the community of
Summerland. Summerland receives water services from MWD, but an independent special district provides
wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal services. The SSD operates a treatment plant with a design capacity
of 0.3 MGD, maintains eight miles of sewer main and three pumping stations, and a lab to ensure compliance with
State and Federal laws.?* The SSD has held recent discussions during regular Board of Directors meetings concerning
its future including possible dissolution of the SSD due to infrastructure challenges and financial pressures.?
Conceivably, MSD or the neighboring Carpinteria Sanitary District could absorb SSD if desired by SSD.

The boundary of any new consolidated agency serving MWD customers would encompass the SSD service area
posing an opportunity to adjust services for MWD customers within the SSD Boundaries. This could be addressed
in one of three ways. First, if a new Community Services District is created, it could exclude wastewater services to
the area served by the SSD in the application to LAFCO, specifically noting that sanitary services will be provided
by SSD, not the new Community Services District.

Secondly, if MWD combines with the MSD, the combined agency could work with the SSD to establish an out of
area service agreement that would specify that SSD would continue to provide sanitary services within the existing
boundaries of the SSD.

Thirdly, MWD and MSD could work with SSD to absorb responsibility for wastewater services in that area. This
would result in the dissolution of the SSD and would likely require more time to evaluate the integration of the
current staff, facilities, and finances.

The consultant team recommends that the possible dissolution of SSD and incorporation into a new entity formed
by MWD and MSD be viewed as a follow up potential action and not be included in this analysis unless specifically
requested by LAFCO.

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

The project team reviewed the organizational structure for MWD and MSD as well as position descriptions, job
duties, and expectations for each employee in the two districts. The two operational areas of water operations and
wastewater operations are distinct and have little opportunity for overlap. However, there may be an opportunity to
align administrative, engineering, and maintenance staff where appropriate.

2 California Water Code, Chapter 4, §10723
24 Summerland Sanitary District, Who We Are,
2 Summerland Sanitary District, Agendas and Minutes,

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 21

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 177 of 251



Table 7 shows current MWD and MSD staffing by functional area and the total if all staff were retained under a
consolidated agency.

Table 7: MWD, MSD, and Consolidated Personnel by Function

Function Current MWD Current MSD Consolidated
Staffing Staffing Organization

Administration 2.50 2.50 5.00
Finance 1.25 0.50 1.75
Billing & Customer Service 2.50 0.00 2.50
Human Resources 0.50 0.00 0.50
Information Technology 0.25 0.00 0.25
Communications 1.00 0.00 1.00
Total Administration 800 300 1100
Water Treatment 4.33 0.00 4.33
Water Distribution 8.33 0.00 8.33
Environmental Compliance 1.00 0.00 1.00
Total Water Operations 1368 000 1366
Wastewater Treatment 0.00 4.33 4.33
Wastewater Collection 0.00 5.33 5.33
Environmental Compliance 0.00 1.00 1.00
Total Wastewater Operations 000 1066 1066
Grounds Maintenance 1.00 0.33 1.33
Facilities Maintenance 2.00 2.66 4.66
Fleet Maintenance 1.00 0.34 1.34
Total Maintenance 40 33 733

Engineering 2.34

1.00 3.34
Total All Staff 28.00 18.00 46.00

Generally, fewer management and administrative support staff are necessary in combined utilities. According to the
2020 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Utility Benchmarking survey, the median combined utility has
43.5% of overall staffing used for management, engineering, and customer service positions compared to 49.1% for
water only utilities.?

A detailed assessment of the impacts of potential consolidation on management and administration, treatment and
field operations, and engineering and capital improvements is provided below. For each area, an interim and long
term scenario is provided showing impacts of consolidation on staffing levels and organization structure.

2 American Water Works Association (AWWA), 2020 AWWA Utility Benchmarking, Page 31.

22 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 178 of 251



Management and Administration

MWD and MSD, as standalone special districts, have management and administration staff to operate and provide
valuable enterprise-wide services such as human resources (HR), finance, risk, and information technology that
support the core function of water and sewer operations. This section will review the management and
administration implications of consolidation at each district.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

Within MWD, administrative activities, including general management, finance, HR, communications, and
customer service, are currently provided by 9.0 FTEs: the General Manager, an Administrative/Human Resources
Assistant, the Public Information Officer, the Business Manager, a Finance Analyst/IT Specialist, a Senior Office
Technician, two Office Technician II positions, and the Groundwater Specialist.

Current MWD Administration staffing and reporting relationships are shown in Figure 6 below.

Water District
Board of Directors

Administrative /
General Manager Human Resources
1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
[ 1
Public Information Business Manager Groundwater

Officer M 10FTE 9 Specialist (GSA)

1.0FTE : 1.0 FTE

Financial Analyst/
M IT Specialist
1.0 FTE

Sr. Office
H Technician
1.0FTE

L | Office Technician Il
20FTE

Figure 5: Current MWD Administrative Support Structure

According to the job description, the MWD General Manager is responsible for operations and policy guidance for
the entire utility under approval of the Board of Directors and manages all aspects of operations and staffing, as well
as fostering external relationships with intergovernmental and regulatory agencies and other groups in the
community. The General Manager is directly supported by the Administrative Assistant who provides office

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 23

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 179 of 251



administrative and secretarial support to the General Manager, Board of Directors, and other management
personnel. In addition, the General Manager acts as the Board Secretary and prepares Board agendas, minutes,
actions, ordinances and resolutions, maintains official documents and records, and conducts District elections. The
Administrative Assistant/Human Resources Assistant acts as an HR assistant for recruitments, training,
compensation and benefits, labor relations, and more. The Administrative Assistant is also a point of contact for the
General Manager, Board of Directors, and other departments with the public to resolve issues and provide customer
service.

The MWD Public Information Officer (PIO) plans, coordinates, and participates in a variety of communications,
public information, marketing, community relations and outreach activities and initiatives. The PIO is responsible
for developing original content including communications, media, website content, and other materials, and ensures
positive interactions and collaboration with the Board of Directors, Committees, management and staff,
constituencies, and media outlets. The position serves as a critical resource and liaison for the Emergency Response
Plan, providing public notification responsibilities.

The Business Manager directs and manages the administrative activities and operations of the MWD including
budget and accounting, information technology, human resources, and general office management. The position is
responsible for preparation and management of annual budget, oversight of customer service and billing functions,
and management of human resources issues.

The Business Manager supervises a Finance Analyst/IT Specialist position. This position performs complex
financial accounting and administrative duties, provides budgetary, grant, and work-flow support to projects and
programs, analyzes utility practices and procedures to recommend improvements, and supports development and
implementation of accounting, financial, and related systems, and trains staff on them.

The Business Manager also supervises Senior Office Technician who provides general accounting, customer service,
and payroll functions, maintains financial records, and assists in preparation of financial reports and analyses. The
Senior Office Technician serves as lead of the customer service office support team, provides direct customer service
associated with utility payments, requests for service, maintains centralized payroll functions, and provides
assistance for a wide variety of assignments.

The Business Manager also supervises two Office Technician II personnel, who perform a variety of administrative
and office support duties. The Office Technicians establish and maintain customer service accounts, provide direct
customer service associated with utility payments, requests for service, and respond to complaints and information
requests. They provide assistance for a wide variety of assignments.

The Groundwater Specialist reports to the General Manager, and is responsible for assisting with the implementation
the GSA’s groundwater sustainability plan to comply with State regulations.

At MSD, administrative activities, including general management, finance, human resources, and customer service,
are provided by 3.0 FTEs: the General Manager, the District Administrator/Clerk of the Board, and the
Accounting/Administrative Assistant. MSD Administration staffing and reporting relationships are shown in the
Figure 7 below.

24 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 180 of 251



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

District
Administrator
1.0 FTE

Accounting &
Administrative
Assistant
1.0 FTE

Figure 6: Current MSD Administrative Support Structure

The MSD General Manager serves as the chief executive and management official for the District and reports to the
Board of Directors. The General Manager manages and organizes MSD operation and is supported by a District
Administrator and Accounting and Administrative Assistant, as shown in Figure 7.

The District Administrator serves a variety of roles including Clerk of the Board, HR manager, accountant and
finance manager, payroll administrator, information technology manager, and safety and staff training officer.

The District Administrator supervises an Accounting/Administrative Assistant whose role is to provide general
clerical and administrative support as well as customer service, plan checking and review, permit preparation, GIS
data entry, accounts payable invoicing, and payment processing.

CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATION — INTERIM

Administrative operations within MWD and MSD could be consolidated. While duties would be similar for several
positions, the workload for each utility would remain and there would be no apparent need for immediate staff
reductions or additions; indeed, current staff express high stress and believe the existing operational structure is lean.
Temporary staff or contract assistance may be required during consolidation. The ability to have additional staff
dedicated to focus upon individual subject areas, rather than single positions that are split between human resources
and information technology, for example, is beneficial; better focus and economies of scale would result for each
subject area, service levels would likely improve as a result, and current staff would be unburdened from having to
work in multiple areas at once.

However, in a few positions there is some redundancy that would occur. A consolidation would result in two General
Manager positions. In the proposed interim structure, one General Manager could be retitled as a second Assistant
General Manager to oversee the operations functions of Wastewater functions within the combined entity. In this
way, the General Manager would be free to focus upon inter-governmental and community relations, as well as the
possible implementation of a new recycled water program, leaving internal operational concerns to the two Assistant
General Managers over Water and Wastewater operations.

There would also be overlap in duties between the MWD Administrative/HR Assistant and the MSD District
Administrator/Clerk of the Board position, both of whom prepare Board of Directors agendas and packets, oversee

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 25

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 181 of 251



elections, and provide human resources services. These duties could be split, with one position focused solely on
providing assistance with Board agendas and packets and elections, and the other focused solely on human resources
in the interim. Other possible workload assignments could ensure duties are not duplicated across staff.

There would also be some overlap in duties between the MWD Business Manager and MSD District
Administrator/Clerk of the Board positions as both currently supervise the finance operations of their respective
districts. As an example, the MSD District Administrator/Clerk of the Board could focus on Board agendas, packets,
and elections for the new district, allowing the MWD Business Manager could be responsible for supervision of all
administrative functions.

Because of the larger scope of the MWD financial operation, including regular billing cycles and larger staffing, it
would be beneficial for the MWD and MSD finance staff to report to the Business Manager position. Both staffs can
continue operating mostly independently for now but over time, the finance function can begin to consolidate and
specialize by operational area versus water and wastewater business line, e.g., rather than having separate payrolls,
a single staff member may be able to provide payroll for both water and sewer staff once systems are combined and
automated. Information Technology (IT) would continue to be the focus of a Financial Analyst/IT Specialist who
supervises outsourced assistance and uses additional capacity to assist the financial function, as is done now.

A proposed new interim organizational structure consolidating the two administrative functions is shown in Figure
8 below. Positions in blue represent current MWD positions and positions in orange represent current MSD
positions. The second General Manager position, which would either have a new role overseeing operations or be
eliminated, is not shown. The result is a new combined Management and Administration Division with 11
employees, including the General Manager.

26 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 182 of 251



|| Office Technician Il
2.0FTE

Board of Directors
I
Administrative /
General Manager Human Resources
1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE

= 4= > “+-. > -~
I/ ; \ ¢ \
| [ 11 [ |
| 11 : | |
| _|[Business Manager| : : Public Information | : Groundwater :
| 1.0 FTE 1 Officer 1 Specialist (GSA) |
| . 1.0FTE 1 1.0 FTE |
: 11 51 |
| I I |

o Il I |

| District I 1 |
I H  Administrator 11 1 |
: 1.0 FTE 1 ™ |
| 11 I |
| I [ : | |
| Accounting & : ! | : !
| Administrative 1 : I :
| Assistant I 1 |
! 1.0FTE N I\ /
' 1 Na__=0 PEAN P —— -
! | Communications GSA
| Financial Analyst / |
I IT Specialist |
: 1.0 FTE |
| |
' |
| Sr. Office |
M Technician |
| 1.0 FTE I
! l
' |
! |
' |
! |
' )
\

/
N -

F\inance, Billing, Customer
Service & IT

Figure 7: Potential Interim Consolidated Administrative Support Structure

In the interim period, there is little potential for collective savings related to Administrative staffing. As noted above,
this structure would require minor retitling and reassignment of job duties across positions to ensure a minimum of
overlap. Since all 11 FTE positions are currently budgeted, there would be negligible short-term financial impacts.

The focus should be on facilitating the consolidation and integrating services, rather than cost savings. The
consolidated entity would still require roughly the same number of administrative staff to continue operations on
both the water and wastewater sides. While there is immediate overlap in duties, several roles such as the District
Administrator and Administrative Assistant positions currently wear multiple hats; several positions are currently
responsible for multiple unrelated tasks, such as HR, information technology, and finance, all of which require focus
in order to perform at a best practices level.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 27

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 183 of 251



By consolidating, the new entity could be able to divide work between the combined staff so that individual staff
members can focus on fewer areas and work with greater efficiency and enhance the level of service provided. We
would anticipate more comprehensive human resources services, for example, by having a single staff member fully
devoted to these functions.

CONSOLIDATED ADMINISTRATION — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, the administrative function could continue to consolidate and become more
cohesive, structuring by functional areas such as finance and accounting or billing and customer service across the
entire enterprise rather than continuing by water or sanitary business lines. In particular, an opportunity exists to
move some Finance staff capacity to assist with Human Resources needs. A potential long-term structure for a new
Administrative Services function including finance and human resources, which would require changing job
classifications and moving staff over time, is shown in Figure 9 below.

Should the District choose to enhance levels of service, the combined Administrative Assistant/Human Resources
position currently at MWD could be split into two, adding one new Human Resources specialist FTE devoted to
HR functions for a larger organization. This split also increases administrative support to the new General Manager
by 0.5 FTE (from 0.5 FTE now to 1.0). The result is 12 FTEs, one more than the interim 11. The estimated loaded
cost of a Human Resource Specialist (salary and benefits) is $80,791 at midpoint.

Board of Directors

[

Administrative
— Assistant
1.0 FTE

General Manager
1.0FTE

————— > e “«-. - “«-q

Administrative

4 Groundwater
Services Manager

Public Information

Ay \
I 1 hi I
I I h I
I } I } I I
! ! Officer I'| Specialist (GSA) | !
! 10 FTE P 1.0 FTE g YT |
I | ) | :
| h h I
I } I } I I
} Human Resources District | ! | ! }
| Specialist —t—| Administrator | } | } |
| 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE I h |
I o h I
i I L I \
| L Accounting & | | |
I Sr. Gjce Administrative [ h I
| Tedgplcian  |— Assistant o hy |
! ¥ 1.0 FTE ! ! g !

|
| o hi I
! F ial Analyst / P g ‘
| Office Technician Il fnancial Analys o I |
| 20 FTE —— IT Specialist [ I |
I B 1.0 FTE I I |
| Iy I |
\ /N /N /
N - S SN __ -
Administrative Services Communications GSA

Figure 8: Potential Long Term Consolidated Administrative Support Structure

It is difficult to predict the level of day-to-day administrative support that would be necessary to support a
consolidated organization. As the organization works towards consolidation, it should evaluate administrative

28 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 184 of 251



workload and determine if staffing levels are appropriate for needs. We do not see any immediate or obvious
opportunities to reduce staff because, in the interim in particular, this workgroup would bear the brunt of
consolidation efforts in combining policies and procedures for finance, Board of Directors procedures, human
resources, and more. Once consolidation is fully implemented several years out, there could potentially be
opportunities to reduce staff depending upon operations and workload at that time.

Initially, both finance operations would be operating independently. Over time there would be some efficiencies by
combining banking, payroll, investing, and accounts payable and receivable operations. Because of the differing
methods of billing customers, with MWD billing customers and sewer levying an annual fee on the property tax bill,
there is not a great deal of opportunity for savings. In the interim period, the workload in administration and finance
are expected to increase as the group begins to take many detailed steps to consolidate, including moving to combined
Board packets and agendas and to a single financial software and chart of accounts.

The new agency would be able to achieve savings estimated between $50,000 and $100,000 per year by eliminating
redundant professional services contracts such as financial auditors or contract attorneys, streamlining from two to
one provider. Over time, there may also be minor materials and supplies savings such as elimination of redundant
telephone licenses/purchases, larger contracts, etc. The magnitude of these savings is estimated to be between $5,000
and $25,000 per year.

There are also likely to be some accompanying one-time additional costs associated with the consolidation effort.
These include direct costs such as legal fees, consultant studies, communications costs, data conversion, as well als

incidentals such as new uniforms, rebranding efforts to consolidate logos, new signage, and more. Raftelis estimat
these one-time transition costs at roughly $50,000 - $250,000.

It is important to note that in the short term, there would be significant amounts of staff time devoted to implementing
any form of consolidation of agencies. It is estimated that several hundred hours of staff time would be needed in the
administrative and management areas to execute a consolidation, particularly for the General Managers. This could
impact their ability to address other strategic initiatives such as implementing a new recycled water program or
addressing drought related issues.

Another potential barrier would be an unwillingness for staff to change or take on new duties. If both groups were
open to consolidation as an opportunity to provide a higher level of service and improve practices by taking the good
from each District’s current system to create a more refined operation, the administrative function could successfully
consolidate and potentially provide a higher level of service than at present. The magnitude is hard to quantify, but
would likely be incremental. An additional hurdle to progress could be a lack of allocated financial resources for
necessary changes such as potential new software or equipment. MSD is already planning to replace its financial
system as the current version is reaching obsolescence, while MWD’s Tyler Incode financial system is quite new but
may require additional modules or features for a combined organization. Should the Districts choose to implement
an entirely new financial system, this can cost up to $600,000 or more depending upon modules and level of staff
training included. For purposes of this review, we will assume both entities would use the Tyler system. A few new
annual licenses to add MSD staff could cost under $5,000 per year while additional modules could cost up to $30,000
each as a one-time cost depending upon specific needs and training included.

The primary risk of Consolidating administrative functions is an unplanned and rushed approach. The
administrative function is critical for ensuring legal and audit compliance, staff satisfaction through human resources
and payroll functions, customer service satisfaction, and more. A breakdown in customer billing or financial systems
would be highly problematic, particularly if it were to impact billing and, thus, revenues needed for operations. A
carefully planned and phased approach over time would be the best approach to ensure that operations can continue

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 29

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 185 of 251

~

- [ Deleted: etc

(was max $200K)

- [ Commented [RH2]: Bumped it up by $50K to add incidentals

h \[ Deleted: 0




as consolidation moves forward. Full implementation of a consolidation of the management and administration
units could take two to three years.

Over time, the consolidated district should undertake a comprehensive analysis of staff workloads, performance,
and service levels to determine the required workload to meet service expectations and the associated correct number
of staff positions.

Treatment and Field Operations

MWD and MSD provide related but separate services to their respective service areas. They are similar in terms of
the type of work done by employees, but the work is not identical. Both organizations operate treatment plants,
perform maintenance on horizontal infrastructure, and maintain equipment, grounds, and facilities. They also have
administrative and support people that ensure non-core operations activities are addressed. The following section
examines the treatment and field operations staffing in each district and potential consolidation opportunities.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

At MSD, treatment and field operations staff are broken up into two divisions, Wastewater Treatment and
Collections, with the head of each reporting to the General Manager. The Collections Superintendent is in charge of
the wastewater collection system as well as facilities and equipment maintenance staff. The Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator runs the day-to-day operations of the plant. The Laboratory and Pretreatment
Manager, who ensures that MSD complies with Federal and State environmental and water quality regulations,
reports directly to the General Manager but also works closely with the Treatment Plant Superintendent and other
operations staff. Figure 10 shows the organizational structure for the current 14 FTE operations staff in MSD.

Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0FTE
T
Laboratory & . Treatment Supt./
Pretreatment Collfecnons Chief Plant
Superintendent
Manager 10FTE Operator
1.0 FTE ’ 1.0 FTE
—— L ——
Lead Collection Chief Maintenance]
Systems Operator Mechanic
1.0FTE 1.0FTE
I I
Collections Facilities Wastewater
Maintenance Treatment Plant
Operator e
4.0 FTE Technician Operator
’ 1.0FTE 40FTE

Figure 9: Current MSD Operations Structure

The wastewater treatment plant owned and operated by MSD has a rated capacity of 1.5 MGD but currently is
operating at approximately 0.5 MGD for average dry weather flow. The treatment team is comprised of four

30 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 186 of 251



Operators and a Treatment Plant Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator. The Treatment Plant Superintendent/Chief
Plant Operator acts as the District’s Legally Responsible Official, responsible for operating the plant and reporting
discharge in compliance with the terms set forth in the District’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
permit. Treatment plant staff support operations and maintenance of the facility.

The Collections System Superintendent, acts as the District’s Legally Responsible Official for the collection system,
ensuring operation and maintenance practices minimize spills and reporting is in accordance with the State Water
Resources Control Board’s Sanitary Sewer System General Order. The Collection System Superintendent oversees
five collection operators and two maintenance personnel. The Five collection system maintenance FTEs are
responsible for maintaining MSD’s wastewater collection system, which encompasses 73 miles of gravity main, 2.2
miles of force main, and five pump stations.?’” In addition, staff respond to sewer main breaks, leaks, and sanitary
sewer overflows (SSOs) when they occur. In addition, they perform Preventative Maintenance on lateral
infrastructure including flushing and televising sewer mains.

A Chief Maintenance Mechanic and a Facilities Maintenance Technician perform other maintenance for the MSD.
According to the job description for the Chief Maintenance Mechanic this includes Preventative Maintenance and
repair of equipment at the Wastewater Treatment Plant and pumping stations as well as maintenance of MSD
vehicles and portable equipment. The Facilities Maintenance Technician is responsible for grounds maintenance in
addition to support for fleet, equipment, and facilities maintenance.

At MWD, there are 17 FTE operations staff divided into two divisions, each overseen by a Superintendent position
that reports to the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager. In addition to the Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager position, the General Manager also supervises the Groundskeeper/Conservation
Coordinator, who works closely with Operations staff on conservation efforts. The following figure shows the current
organizational structure for the MWD operations staff.

27 Montecito Sanitary District, About the District,

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 31

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 187 of 251



Water District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0FTE

Asst. General

Manager /
Engineering Mgr.
1.0 FTE
: !
Distribution Treatmem & Groundskee_per /
. Production Conservation
r| Superintendent X )
1.0 FTE Superintendent Coordinator
. 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment
Operator Operator Chief Operator
1.0FTE 1.0FTE 1.0FTE
I
Distribution Control System Water Treatment
Technician /
H Operator Operator Plant Operator
6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 20FTE

Fleet Technician /
Distribution
Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 10: Current MWD Operations Structure

The Distribution Division is responsible for 114 miles of water mains, nine pump stations, 10 reservoirs, 2,800
isolation values, 1,000 fire hydrants and 52 pressure resulting stations.?® This work is led by a Distribution
Superintendent. There are seven operator FTEs that support the maintenance, repair, and installation/replacement
of the water distribution systems. In addition to reactive and Preventative Maintenance on the distribution system,
the Division is also responsible for fleet maintenance and grounds maintenance. One FTE, a Fleet Technician,
supports fleet maintenance work for the MWD.

The Treatment and Production Division is responsible for two surface water treatment plants, 12 groundwater wells
some with localized water treatment. MWD deliveries on average between approximately 1.5 to 4.5 MGD of
drinking water to customers depending on the time of year. The Division has two Operator FTEs and a Chief
Operator to operate and maintain the two water treatment plants. The Control System Technician is responsible for
maintenance and repair of technology and monitoring equipment used by the District, as well as being a Treatment
Operation FTE. The Dam Caretaker is responsible for facility maintenance and grounds maintenance at the Juncal
Dam, which includes living onsite at the facility at Jameson Lake.

28 Montecito Water District, Service and Facilities,

32 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 188 of 251



CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS - INTERIM

Because consolidation of the two agencies would not change the nature of utility operations, we do not project any

consolidated structure for Operations in the interim period. This includes reclassifying the second General Manager
and the current Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager as Assistant General Manager for Wastewater
and Assistant General Manager for Water, respectively. The Groundskeeper/Conservation Coordinator would no
longer report to the General Manager but to the Assistant General Manager — Water. This organizational
arrangement would provide adequate administrative support for the consolidation, two Assistant General Managers
to oversee daily operations, and allow the General Manager to focus on inter-governmental partnerships and
financial oversight. This increases Operations staff from 31 to 32 by moving the former MSD General Manager into
Operations as Assistant General Manager for Wastewater.

Board of Directors

General Manager

1.0 FTE
I 1
Assl’;;a:; Geerrjeral Assistant General
Wastea/ater Manager - Water
10FTE 1.0FTE
| L 1 1
Laboratory & 8 Treatment Supt./ Distribution Treatment & 5
Pretreatment Cisctions Chief Plant r ; Production iatenConsopvaton
Superintendent Superintendent p Specialist
Manager 10 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE Superintendent 1OFTE
1.0 FTE X 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE :
Lead C 0 Chief Mai Wastewater Distribution Chief Dam Caretaker / Water Treatment
System Operator Mechanic Treatment Plant H Operator Operator ——| Chief Operator
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Operator 1.0FTE 1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
} } 4.0FTE T
I |
— Facilities Distribution ool sysied Water Treatment
ollections Maint Technician /
Operator aintenance H Operator Operator — Plant Operator
Technician 6.0 FTE 20FTE
4.0FTE 10 FTE 1.0 FTE
Fleet Technician /
4 Operator
1.0 FTE

Figure 11: Interim Treatment and Operations Structure

Because utility operations would continue as they do currently, consolidation would not result in specific operational
efficiencies.

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT AND FIELD OPERATIONS — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, operations staff could work toward a structure with three divisions reporting to the
General Manager: Water Operations, Wastewater Operations, and Maintenance. A proposed long-term structure
for operations is shown in Figure 13 with changes made to positions to align titles and clarify roles.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 33

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 189 of 251




Board of Directors:

T

General Manager

1.0FTE
I
" Assistant General Assistant General
Chief 1ce| Manager -
Mechanic g Manager - Water
1.0 FTE Wastewater 1.0FTE
) 1.0 FTE
I [ f 1
! ! L T t &
Facilities Laboratory & Collecti Treatment Supt./ Distribution Fr'ea;mcetn Water Conservation|
Maintenance Pretreatment s © ei |ozs ¢ Chief Plant —| Superintendent s m.ut Izn ¢ Specialist
Technician Manager “pf’l;”FeT"E en Operator 1.0FTE “pf’(;";”E en 1.0 FTE
1.0FTE 1.0FTE . 1.0 FTE =
Control System Lead C ion Pistribution CRE Dan:)Caretaker/
T athilioian Treatment Plant H Operator perator
L System Operator 1.0 FTE
Operator 1.0FTE B
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
4.0FTE
I . Control System
Collections | Didtrbtiiion Technician /
Operator Operat:
Operator 6.0 FTE perator
4.0FTE : 1.0FTE
Fleet Technician/ Water Treatment
Distribution Chief Operator
Operator 1.0FTE
1.0 FTE
[
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
20FTE

Figure 12: Long Term:Operations Structure

Should the District choose to enhance levels of service for maintenance of fleet and facilities, staff that perform
grounds, facilities, vehicle, and equipment maintenance could be consolidated in a new Maintenance Division,
reporting to the Chief Maintenance Mechanic position. This allows the two Assistant General Managers to focus on
the treatment and distribution/collection, as well as engineering needs for those utilities. The new Maintenance
Division would be responsible for operational support functions including maintenance at facilities, treatment plants,
and properties and work with the existing split Fleet Technician/Operator position within Operations. One
additional Control System Technician position should be considered as well, in order to provide dedicated staff
capacity for control systems maintenance. This increases Operations FTEs from 32 to 34 with the addition of the
Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and a new Control System Technician position. An additional Control
System Technician position would cost $103,657 which equates to approximately $134,754 with benefits. Over time
it would be important to monitor the workload of this Division to ensure they have the appropriate staff to support
the combined utility.

34 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 190 of 251



Engineering and Capital Improvement

Engineering services for MWD and MSD are provided by a mix of dedicated staffing resources and management
with specific engineering certification and training. Consultant engineers are used to augment in-house staff when
specialized system knowledge is required. MSD contracts for all construction inspection. Both organizations are
responsible for developing and implementing a capital improvement plan (CIP) that invests in the utility to ensure
the appropriate water resources for the service area, rehabilitates and repairs current infrastructure, and takes
advantage of the latest industry trends in technology and treatment.

SERVICES AND POSITIONS

MWD has two Assistant Engineers that are focused on various engineering related tasks including design and
construction phase work for capital improvement projects. Outside engineering and environmental consultants are
used as needed for specialty design and construction related services. These Assistant Engineers are also involved in
the monitoring of construction and consultant contracts and help to prepare requests for proposals and process bid
solicitations. Additionally, the Assistant Engineers attend to public requests for services including construction plan
reviews, new water service requests, water leak investigations, etc. Approximately 80% of engineering design is
performed in-house such as for pipeline replacements, with the remaining 20% outsourced for specialties like
reservoirs or SCADA design. Figure 14 shows the current structure for the three FTE engineering staff in MWD.

Water District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

I
Asst. General
Manager /
Engineering Mgr.
1.0 FTE

Assistant Engineer
2.0FTE

Figure 13: Current MWD Engineering Structure

The Assistant Engineers report to the Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager, a licensed professional
engineer who provides the administrative direction and oversight for engineering functions as well as supervising
operations functions. The Assistant Engineers are encouraged to acquire a professional engineering license but it is
not required of the position.

At MSD there is one employee dedicated to engineering, who reports to the General Manager. The Engineering
Manager manages and performs technical engineering work including planning, design, and construction of projects
with the significant assistance of outside consultants. They also review and prepare plans, specifications for requests
for proposals, and manage contracts. The General Manager estimates that approximately 50% of engineering
workload is not in MSD’s control but the result of Caltrans and County projects. The following figure shows the
current structure for MSD engineering staff.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 35

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 191 of 251



Sanitary District
Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Engineering
Manager
1.0 FTE

Figure 14: Current MSD Engineering Structure

Engineering staffing across MWD and MSD consists of 3.00 dedicated engineering FTEs, supplemented by a portion
of the MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager and MSD General Manager positions. It would be
important to ensure that the engineering function has enough capacity to manage the capital plans for both the water
utility and wastewater utility as well as support asset management needs with operations staff.

CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING - INTERIM

In the short-term interim period, all engineering staff should be retained but restructured to align their work and
begin consolidation of the workgroups. Because licensing and qualifications for each engineering staff incumbent
varies, and because the knowledge of both water and wastewater staff would be necessary for any management
position, we recommend an interim structure having all three engineering staff under the direct supervision of the
General Manager. In this manner, the General Manager can mediate any disagreements among staff and provide
direction for the unit as a whole.

Figure 16 shows the potential interim structure for Engineering; because the experience and technical knowledge of
incumbents in the Engineering Manager and Assistant Engineer positions is unknown, all three positions are added
at the same job classification level, reporting to the General Manager. In the long term, management will need to
determine who is best qualified to lead the unit.

Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0FTE

BTGl Assistant Engineers|
Manager 20 FTE
1.0 FTE :

Figure 15: Potential Interim Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure

36 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 192 of 251



Over time the two engineering workgroups can align their work plans and capital investment, and managers can
determine the best use of 3.0 FTE engineering capacity to address both water and wastewater needs.

Engineering staff should review the current CIPs for MWD and MSD, capital needs for both organizations, and any
planned rehabilitation or replacement projects. It may be important to keep the CIP for water and wastewater utilities
separate due to the distinct funding sources and separate accounting structure. The nature of projects varies, with
renewal and replacement of water and sewer infrastructure handled differently; while water involves dig and replace,
sewer renewal at this time is largely trenchless lining projects (which do not require digging up pipes). Additionally,
the age of water and wastewater assets typically drive capital replacement/renewal schedules and therefore,
significant planning and coordination of future capital projects will be needed to geographically group capital projects
in order to realize synergies in the capital program.

However, aligning this work to ensure there is appropriate capacity to manage projects and ensure continued
operations would be important. The two groups could utilize best practices to enhance asset management and find
synergies with procurement, contracting, and GIS. As part of a consolidated budgeting and financial reporting
process, the combined organization should also present a combined CIP to the Boards of Directors even if funding
remains separate. In order to align all capital planning and engineering work into one workgroup and continue
separate enterprise funds, a cost allocation plan would be needed to estimate the cost of personnel assigned to water
and wastewater projects or tasks.

CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING — LONG TERM

Over the next three to five years, the engineering staffing and structure should not change significantly unless a new
service like recycled water is added. Working under the direction of the General Manager, the engineering staff
would need to work with oversight from the two Assistant General Managers to align the types of projects designed
in-house using District staff versus what should be contracted. In addition, the organization would need to create the
appropriate level of expertise and continuity of knowledge. It would be important to maintain an expertise in both
water and wastewater specialties within the Engineering workgroup.

The organization should retain the Engineering Manager title as a position to manage and lead the engineering
workgroup across all utility functions, and who should report directly to the General Manager. While MSD has an
existing Engineering Manager position and incumbent in the position, all three current engineers from both MWD
and MSD could be evaluated for the potential to serve as Engineering Manager over the entire unit. This would build
a career ladder for staff and promote retention. Figure 17 represents the potential long term consolidated structure
for engineering.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 37

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 193 of 251



Board of Directors

General Manager
1.0 FTE

Engineering
Manager
1.0FTE

Assistant Engineer
20FTE

Figure 16: Potential Long Term Engineering and Capital Improvement Structure

The potential for collective savings in engineering is limited. It is necessary to have appropriate levels of staff in to
support both water and wastewater expertise as well as to recruit staff with the necessary training and certification,
and to ensure staff historical knowledge of infrastructure and ensure in-house staff continuity. Both districts have
growing capital project needs which increases the workload of the Engineering workgroup. Given future planned
capital improvement project needs, it would be difficult to keep the costs of contracting below the cost of an in-house
staff member.

The potential for service level enhancements in engineering is also somewhat limited. By consolidating engineering
staff, there is some potential for additional backup and cross-training compared to operating separate engineering
functions.

The foreseeable hurdles to progress include change management, collective bargaining, updated rate studies,
recruitment, and retention. Any amount of organizational change can be difficult on employees and these changes
could have an impact on staff. It would be important for the leadership of MWD and MSD to communicate honestly,
frequently, and in a variety of ways to ensure all staff understand planned changes and how it would impact them.
The project team has worked with clients across the country who are having difficulty hiring and retaining
engineering staff. The skillsets needed by utilities are in high demand and recruiting for qualified engineers can take
time. Insufficient expertise or project management capacity could delay the implementation of the consolidated
organization’s capital plan.

The potential staffing and structural changes to engineering are intended to align resources and create capacity by
providing additional backup and skillset compared to the current, separate approach by MWD and MSD. As the
organization works toward long term consolidation, it would be important to engage with staff and communicate
frequently to help with retention. It may also be appropriate to evaluate compensation for engineering staff to ensure
pay ranges are in line with the market. In addition, implementing the capital program would require project
management capacity and any turnover or vacancies would delay that implementation.

38 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 194 of 251



Impact of Potential Consolidation on Organizational Structure
and Staffing

The summary of the organization structure and staffing level impacts of consolidation for the three areas is
summarized organization-wide below for both the interim and long term scenarios.

CONSOLIDATED AGENCY - INTERIM

Should the districts pursue a consolidation/reorganization and LAFCO approve it, the new Board of Directors
would need to immediately appoint a General Manager of the consolidated organization who will be responsible for
organizing the staff. This decision would need to be carefully considered by the new Board of Directors, as this role
could be filled from the existing staffs or recruited from outside the organization. The proposed interim
organizational structure reclassifies the existing MWD General Manager position to the General Manager role, and
the MSD General Manager and MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager positions could be
reclassified as Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and Assistant General Manager for Water, respectively.
All these positions play critical roles to implement all of the many steps required for consolidation/reorganization.

The administrative support staff for the two organizations could be restructured to report to the MWD Business
Manager, retitled as Administrative Services Manager in the long term. This workgroup would be responsible for all
financial, customer service, billing, human resources, and administrative support functions. The MSD District
Administrator would be responsible for finance and accounting duties with support from the MSD Accounting &
Administrative Assistant and the MWD Financial Analyst/IT Specialist. This structure would retain all current
administrative staff to support the interim period workload that would result from consolidation efforts, such as
aligning financial practices, policies and financial management systems, updating human resources policies, and
supporting the General Manager and Board of Directors. Staffing in both districts is currently lean and both General
Managers noted having existing unmet needs due to a lack of staffing, particularly in the areas of human resources,
conservation, and recycled water.

The three Engineering positions would report to the General Manager. Based on historic workloads, the current
three FTEs should be sufficient capacity for the combined organization but adjustments to job requirements and
credentialing needs may be necessary over time.

This proposed interim structure retains all current employees at MWD and MSD and continues most of their current
job responsibilities. This should provide additional administrative and management capacity to allow the combined
organization to work toward a long term structure. This interim structure does not represent short-term savings on
personnel. Potential opportunities for efficiencies with specialized administrative, finance, and maintenance staff
may be present in the long-term consolidated structure and could be more fully understood during the interim period.
The interim consolidated structure is necessary to begin melding staff together as the organizations work through the
steps to complete consolidation.

Figure 5 below represents a conceptual interim organizational structure should the districts combine. Positions from
MSD are shaded in orange and positions from MWD are shaded in blue; combined units including both MSD and
MWD staff are not shaded (white).

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 39

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 195 of 251



Board of Directors|

General Manager
1.0 FTE
Administrative /
Human Resources
Assistant
1.0FTE
Engineering Staff Asst. GM - Groundwater Public Information Asst. GM — Business Manager|
3.0FTE Wastewater Specialist Officer Water 1.0FTE
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Laboratory & q Treatment Supt./ Treatment & " ferra .
Pretreatment Collgctlons Chief Plant Distribution Production et Cor!selrvatlon D.ISFFICﬁ e Of."r,:e
Superintendent . " Specialist Administrator [ Technician
Manager 10FTE Operator | Superintendent Superintendent 10FTE 1.0 FTE 10FTE
1.0 FTE : 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE : . .
N B . Accounting &
Lead Collections Chief Maintenance| | Treatment Plant Distribution Chief|| | Dam Caretaker/ patelicatent Administrative Office Technician I
System Operator Mechanic Operator || Operator 1| Chief Operator ; .
4.0 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE d 1.0 FTE ! : 1.0 FTE
I I I
. Facilities Control System . .
Collections Maintenance Distribution Technician / Water Treatment Financial Alnallyst/
Operator e | | Plant Operator IT Specialist
4.0 FTE Technician Operator Operator 20FTE 10 FTE
. 1.0 FTE 6.0 FTE 1.0 FTE : .
Fleet Technician /
Distribution
Operator
1.0 FTE

40

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 196 of 251

Figure 17: Potential Interim Consolidated Structure

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS




Placements were made in general work unit structure but additional changes might be required in specific cases. The
second General Manager position is reclassified to become an Assistant General Manager — Wastewater so as to
manage all wastewater and engineering functions. The three Engineering staff (one in MSD and two in MWD)
would be combined into one unit and report to the General Manager, who is a licensed engineer and can provide
management guidance. The current MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering would be reclassified as
Assistant General Manager — Water and oversee treatment and distribution. The potential impacts of a
reorganization on engineering, administrative, and operations staff are discussed in more detail later in this report
and can be assessed over time post-consolidation as needed.

This interim structure includes 46 FTEs and retains all positions currently funded by both districts but changes
reporting relationships to align similar staff. At an organization-wide level, the interim consolidated structure keeps
the same reporting relationships for most staff, especially in operations.

CONSOLIDATED AGENCY - LONG TERM

The structure above may not be ideal for a long term, combined utility. The project team further refined the potential
structure and reviewed the appropriate staffing, managerial support, and roles necessary for a fully consolidated
organization. The potential long-term consolidated structure creates seven functions reporting to the General
Manager including Maintenance, Wastewater, Water, Engineering, Business Operations, Public Information Officer
and Groundwater Specialist.

One proposed long-term organizational structure is provided below in Figure 18 below with potential staffing options
shaded in gray and potential additional new staff positions to enhance levels of service shaded with a diagonal
pattern.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 41

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 197 of 251



Board of Directors

Figure 18: Potential Long-Term Organizational Structure

42 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 198 of 251

General Manager Administrative
1.0 FTE 9 Assistant
. 1.0 FTE
Groundwater Public Information
ialist Officer
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
I 1
5 Assistant General Administrative
Engineering Chief Maintenance| Ass;;tant Eonrel Manager — Water Services Manager|
. anager —
Manager Mechanic 1.0FTE 1.0FTE
10FTE 1.0FTE Wastewater
- E 1.0 FTE |
T [ 1 1
- . Treatment Supt./ Distribution Treatmept & \Water Coqsgwatlon Human Resources District
. . Facilities Collection System . . Production Specialist M L
Assistant Engineer Maint S ) Chief Plant Superintendent : Specialist 1 Administrator
20 FTE ain erlla‘nce upervisor 1 Operator 10 FTE Superintendent 1.0 FTE 10FTE 1.0 FTE
. Technician 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE ) 1.0 FTE \ .
1.0FTE - T
I I
N Wastewater Distribution Chief . . Accounting &
Control System SL esatgn?gle:::z; Treatment Plant Operator | | Dam Caretaker S.?géirnﬁ:zf‘e | Administrative
Technician Y 1.0 F'I?E Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE . 4.0FTE . 1.0 FTE
I
: Distribution
Collection Lab & Pretreatment Operator Control System Office Technician Il
Operator — Manager 6.0 FTE — Technician 20 FTE —
4.0FTE 1.0FTE ) 1.0FTE .
Water Treatment
“— Chief Operator
1.0FTE
I
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
2.0FTE




There is a potential to eliminate the second General Manager position (potentially the Assistant General Manager
for Wastewater), with Wastewater Supervisors reporting directly to the General Manager. This would reflect the
level of current wastewater operations staffing in which the MSD General Manager is not a part. This is ndt

could save the District approximately $234,000 (salary plus an estimated 30% benefits).

The Maintenance Division would be responsible for facilities maintenance and grounds maintenance at all MSD and
MWD facilities, as well as fleet and equipment maintenance for all assets, supported by one supervisor and one
technician. They would be assisted by the existing Fleet Technician/Operator position reporting to the Distribution
Superintendent. The potential addition of a new Control System Technician position would cost an estimated
$134,754 with benefits.

The Wastewater Operations Division would be responsible for wastewater treatment, wastewater collection, and
laboratory operations. The Wastewater Division would include Laboratory/Pretreatment. This Division would
include an Assistant General Manager—Wastewater supported by 14 total FTEs. There may be an opportunity for
the wastewater lab to provide lab services for water operations in the future but in order to do so, it may be necessary
to add an FTE(s) considering lab services for water operations are currently outsourced. At many organizations, lab
functions are combined. This may result in savings on outsourced samples, and the additional FTE could provide
for succession planning and operational redundancy.

The Water Operations Division would be responsible for water production, treatment, distribution, and management
of a water source. This structure focuses all staff on water utility operations by moving primary responsibility for fleet
maintenance and facilities maintenance to the Maintenance Division, assisted by the Fleet Technician/Distribution
Operator. The Water Operations Division is led by the Assistant General Manager — Water, who is supported by 16
total FTEs. The workgroup includes the Dam Caretaker, who lives and works at the Juncal Dam located in the Santa
Ynez Mountains about 1.5 hours of drive time from the current MWD main office. This group also includes the full-
time Water Conservation Specialist position, which would report to the Assistant General Manager — Water. The
‘Water Conservation Specialist manages MWD’s water conservation program including rebates and provides hands-
on customer service, helping to identify leaks and inform/encourage customers to reduce water use.

The Business Operations Division could be retitled as Administrative Services and be responsible for all
administrative support functions including Billing and Customer Service, Finance and Accounting, and Human
Resources. The Administrative Services Manager would also be responsible for the administrative support necessary
for Board of Directors meetings and other administrative needs for management, including information technology
support. Notably, this structure creates a full time Human Resources Specialist to dedicate toward human resources
tasks and responsibilities, rather than relying on several positions that do those tasks on a part-time basis. The
Administrative Services Manager would be supported by seven FTEs.

The Public Information function is supported by one FTE and is responsible for external communications and
educational campaigns for customers and the community. This position would report directly to the General
Manager to ensure involvement with key District initiatives and issues.

The Groundwater Specialist, who is responsible for assisting the General Manager and other staff with GSA-related
business and its related requirements, would report directly to the General Manager, illustrating the importance of
the GSA as a separate entity.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 43

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 199 of 251

- [ Deleted: e

- [ Deleted: and is not recommended




The Engineering Division is responsible for capital planning and investment for all water and wastewater facilities
and infrastructure. This would require working with contractors, managing projects, reviewing plans, and performing
design work as needed. Additionally, this division provides customer service related to new utility services,
development plan review, system leaks and other tasks. This function is supported by three FTEs which would, in
the long-term structure, include an Engineering Manager position to supervise the remaining two engineers and work
with upper management. While this division would report directly to the General Manager (a licensed engineer), it
would also work under the shared direction of the two Assistant General Managers.

In summary, the short-term and long-term consolidation scenarios proposed here represent the potential elimination
of a single position, the second General Manager, at a net potential savings of approximately $234,000 (salary and
benefits). If, however, the position is retained as recommended and reclassified as an Assistant General Manager for
Wastewater at a level equivalent to the existing MWD Assistant General Manager/Engineering Manager position
at approximately $244,125 per year, it would result in a cost increase of approximately $10,125 per year. Two
optional additional positions, a Human Resources Specialist and Control System Technician are included at a
combined cost of $215,545 per year.

Note that the potential structure and positions laid out in this section are designed to provide costs savings, where
determined feasible over the long-term under a consolidated model. Given current lean staffing levels in both
organizations, it should again be stressed that the elimination of any FTEs is not recommended; the consideration
of reclassification has potential. Administrative and managerial staff positions in a larger organization may require
higher compensation levels commensurate with the duties, which can be assessed in a few years post-consolidation.
Additional functions such as recycled water services may require the addition of more positions.

44 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 200 of 251



Financial Position

Below is a summary of the primary financial topics related to a potential consolidation of the two districts. In each
section, we discuss the current situation for the MWD, MSD, and impacts should the two be consolidated.

Bookkeeping

MWD books have two enterprise funds, one for water and one for the GSA, and MSD has one enterprise fund for
wastewater. An enterprise fund is defined by the Governmental Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB), who set the guidelines for governmental accounting standards,
as a separate accounting and financial reporting mechanism for municipal services for which a fee is charged in
exchange for goods or services (akin to a business). Because utilities charge rates to ratepayers for their services,
utilities operate as enterprise funds.

Consolidating MWD and MSD books would require three enterprise funds, one for water operations, one for
wastewater and one for the GSA. In essence, the current accounting structures could continue as-is but brought
together in a single set of books with three enterprise funds. In this way, charges for water services would remain
separate for use to cover the costs of water service provision and charges for sewer service would remain separate for
use to cover those associated costs. The purpose is to ensure that users are paying rates to cover the services provided
and the consolidated district complies with all accounting standards and California laws. Should recycled water
become a service of the new district, a potential fourth enterprise fund could be set up to track related revenues and
expenditures.

The most difficult aspect of consolidating finances into one utility would be to merge into a single chart of accounts
to govern coding of financial transactions. The consolidated utility would require three enterprise funds with fund
numbers (so that water and sewer transactions can be properly allocated), and a full chart of accounts with codes for
all necessary transactions. At first, the two charts of accounts could be merged, and duplicative entries removed. The
financial staff in the two utilities would need to meet and agree upon a new chart of accounts for implementation
over time and make the associated changes to setup in their respective financial software systems. Alternatively, the
consolidated utility could add a new field to identify transactions as either water or sanitary and continue to use the
existing charts of accounts. Ideally, the chart of accounts would be fully merged and streamlined. The effort to create
a unified chart of accounts and implement it into the systems could take six to 12 months.

Financial staff would need to examine and determine which financial software system is most beneficial for use in
the consolidated utility. Currently, MWD uses ERP Pro 10 financial software from Tyler Technologies, which was
recently upgraded, and MSD is using MAS90 by Sage. MSD staff are already evaluating the Sage system for upgrade
and/or replacement. With a new system While in the interim period the likelihood is that both systems would be
needed to run concurrently, in the longer-term a determination would need to be made whether one of the current
systems or an entirely new system would best meet the agency’s needs. An evaluation of the pros and cons of current
and other potential systems should occur, a selection made, data transferred, and staff trained. This could be a two
to three year process from start to finish which is why having concurrent systems running in the meantime is
necessary. The consolidated utility might retain one of the two current systems and simply add licenses for new staff,
or may choose to go out to identify an entirely new solution. Costs of this could range from $10,000 for a few new
licenses to $600,000 for a new ERP system, including vendor training and consulting. Any system would require the
implementation of multiple modules including fund accounting, purchasing/contracting, accounts receivable, and
accounts payable at a minimum. Other modules such as capital projects and payroll can be evaluated.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 45

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 201 of 251



Finally, a consolidated entity would need to perform an allocation of staff across its enterprise funds to ensure ample
justification and separate finances for each. To ensure compliance with California’s Proposition 218 that requires
property related fees and charges cannot exceed the cost of providing the service, and also for best accounting
principles, the consolidated entity would want to allocate costs separately to each enterprise fund. For example, the
salary of a shared finance staff member, performing work for both utilities, would need to be partially allocated to
water and partially to sanitary sewer. The same allocation would need to be made for other shared positions such as
the General Manager, Business Manager and PIO.

Revenues and Expenses

Revenues for each agency are unlikely to be greatly affected by a consolidation and would remain largely unchanged.

As shown in Table 8, MWD has FY2022 projected actuals of $26.5 million, which is over the $24.1 million budgeted,
due to water sales exceeding budget. The three largest revenue sources are water sales (70.2% of revenues), water
service charges (17.6%), and Groundwater Sustainability Authority (GSA) revenues (5.3%). The following table
shows a breakdown of MWD revenues since FY2020.

Table 8: MWD Revenues FY2020-FY2022

MWD Revenues :YZOZO 2020 Uﬁzﬁgiztzed zz;c:;;
ctuals Actuals Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Water Sales $9,317,500 $19,065,915 $18,542,822 99.0%
Water Service Charges $4,276,307 $4,486,101 $4,627,950 8.2%
Water Surcharges $5,753,179 $306,330 $307,458 -94.7%
Other Operating Revenues $135,111 $334,142 $445,719 229.9%
Subtotal -Operating $19,482,097 $24,192,488  $23,923,949 22.8%
Capital Cost Recovery Fees $0 $0 $455,018 100.0%
Rental Revenue $42,785 $43,905 $0 -100.0%
Investment Earnings $192,392 $31,515 $13,332 -93.1%
Grant Funding $0 $286,330 $409,820 100.0%
Other Non-Operating Revenues $209,752 $347,972 $312,504 49.0%
Subtotal — Non-Operating $444,929 $709,722 $1,190,674 167.6%
Groundwater Sustainability Agency $0 $1,002,486 $1,398,217 100.0%
TOTAL REVENUES $19,927,026 $25,904,696  $26,512,840 33.1%

In its most recent rate study, the MWD changed its methodology, resulting in an increase in Water Sales revenues
and decrease in Water Surcharges, with the prior Water Shortage Emergency Surcharge eliminated. The increase in
total Operating Revenues from $19.5 million in FY2020 to $24.2 million in FY2021 is a combination of the rate
increase as well as significant water sales above budget due to ongoing drought conditions. In FY2021, the GSA
began receiving revenues though a property fee assessed through the Santa Barbara County tax roll. These revenues
are for a specific and segregated purpose, however, and should not be included in consideration of general operations.

As shown in Table 9, MSD has FY22 budgeted revenues of $7.0 million, of which 94.3% is operating. Sewer service
charges contributed between 87.6% and 94.3% of total revenues since FY2020. The balance includes investment

46 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 202 of 251



earnings (loss) and property tax revenue. While revenues show a decrease of 5.3% from FY2020 to FY2022, this is
the result of conservative budgeting practices, with FY2022 revenues budgeted, not actual. Unaudited actual
revenues as of November 2022 totaled $7,474,860, an increase of 1.1% over FY2020. The District saw a decrease in
Commercial Sewer Service Charge as a result of less water usage after the Debris Flow, which resulted in many
businesses experiencing far less customers or ceasing operations altogether. Since water usage data lags a year for
current year revenues there is an anticipated uptick in revenue beginning FY2023-24.

Table 9: MSD Revenues FY2020 — FY2022

MSD Revenues Ia2020 2021 Ui:ﬁgiztid Zi'::;et
Actual Actual Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Sewer service charges $6,256,696 $6,533,184 $6,543,285 4.58%
Connection fees $119,564 $203,860 $191,597 60.25%
Other $100,843 $104,248 $75,538 -25.09%
Operating Revenue $6,477,103 $6,841,292 $6,810,420 5.15%
Property Tax $603,497 $633,568 $676,670 12.12%
Investment Income (loss) $309,612 ($14,911) $0 -100.00%
Non-Operating Revenue $913,109 $618,657 $676,670 -25.89%
TOTAL MSD REVENUES $7,390,212 $7,459,949 $7,487,090 1.31%

MSD adopted the Teeter Plan in the California Revenue and Tax Code with the County of Santa Barbara, which
guarantees 99.6% of secured property tax apportionment and 95% of unsecured. The remaining 5% is placed in a
Tax Loss Reserve Fund used to offset County tax sale losses. The MSD is assured of receiving 100% of its sewer
service charges each fiscal year. This mechanism would need to continue in a combined entity unless a different
mechanism such as basing wastewater billing on water consumption were employed. This would be a significant
change. Table 9 shows a breakdown of MSD revenues since FY2020. It should be noted that the MSD received over
$1.3 million in grant revenues in FY2018 to offset prior disaster costs, a large one-year anomaly.

Any increases to sewer service charges would come from a rate increase or increase in number of connections. Sewer
connection fees are set per MSD Board resolution and reimburse existing customers for past investment in collection
and capacity of the system. The MSD connection fee is $8,400 per equivalent residential unit. Other Services includes
miscellaneous revenue sources such as engineering review and inspections, plan check, and processing agreements.

MSD receives one-half of 1% of total property tax revenue collected by the County of Santa Barbara which increases
or decreases based upon assessed value of property within the District. Because its tax rate was below 12.5 cents per
$100 in assessed value in 1978, the MSD is exempt from Proposition 13 appropriation limits. Because the boundaries
of MWD and MSD are different, a consolidated district would need to carefully track property tax revenues and
expenses to ensure they are allocated only within the appropriate geographic areas. These revenues would not be
available on parcels outside of MSD’s boundaries unless a change is approved by LAFCO.

If the two districts were combined, revenues would total $33.5 million including $1.4 million of GSA revenues based
on FY2022 projected actuals. The majority of revenues are fairly stable, with water sales having the greatest
variability based upon usage and environmental factors such as drought impacts.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 47

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 203 of 251



MWD had a positive operating income (the difference between operating revenues and expenses) before depreciation
of $3.9 million in FY2020 and $8.5 million in FY2021. The increase in FY2021 was due to an increase in water sales
and FEMA funding and legal settlements from prior emergencies. MSD similarly had a positive operating income
before depreciation of $644,379 in FY2020 and $944,195 in FY2021.

Net position for both, inclusive of depreciation, non-operating revenues and expenses, and capital contributions, was
also positive, with MWD showing a positive change of $11.3 million in FY2020 and $8.7 million in FY2021. MSD
showed a positive change of $1.5 million in FY2020 and $851,568 in FY2021. In summary, both are contributing
positively to their bottom lines and adding to reserves.

Table 10 below shows MWD expenses from FY2020 to FY2022 based upon information from the annual audits and
other financial reports.

Table 10: MWD Expenses FY2020 to FY2022

oo | pvaon | FYE2 | G
Actuals Projected Actuals FY2020 to
FY2022
Cachuma Ops & Maint Board $666,821 $708,492 $762,259 14.31%
Cachuma Cons & Release Board $183,348 $159,960 $127,044 -30.71%
US Bureau of Reclamation $243,495 $259,495 $89,133 -63.39%
Cater WTP O&M $914,418 $1,070,577 $1,152,423 26.03%
Cater WTP Capital $262,896 $198,189 $147,616 -43.85%
Central Coast Water Auth — Fixed $2,334,847 $2,302,008 $1,899,198 -18.66%
DWR - Fixed $3,568,581 $3,107,780 $2,344,746 -34.29%
State Water Project (SWP) - Variable (DWR) $95,843 $32,605 $17,143 -82.11%
Supplemental Water Purchase $1,021,020 100.00%
—----
Jameson $200,710 $200,710 $315,660 57.27%
Transmission & Distribution $1,651,408 $1,651,408 $1,666,451 0.91%
Treatment $1,323,015 $1,323,015 $1,386,986 4.84%
N T
Engineering $541,781 $894,046 $707,573 30.60%
Customer Service $416,408 $412,002 $409,344 -1.70%
Public Info/Conservation $132,789 $121,743 $179,073 34.86%

48 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 204 of 251



Percent

FY2020 FY2021 Uﬁ:ﬁgiﬁ » Change
Actuals Projected b FY2020 to
ctua FY2022
Fleet $220,158 $226,855 $246,205 11.83%
Administration $1,918,026 $2,174,539 $1,722,732 -10.18%
Semitropic Mgmt./ Maintenance/ Banking Fees $22,854 $22,411 $27,003 18.15%
MWD 218 Payment to GSA $422,200 $1,003,072 $235,925 -44.12%
Recycled Water Development $7,561 ($21,549) $397,452 5156.61%
Legal — All $152,992 $233,191 $336,009 119.63%
2020 WSA w/ Santa Barbara (Desal) $0 $0 $2,526,261 100.00%
Extraordinary $0 $118,527 $199,447 100.00%
Depreciation $1,224,820 $1,070,814 $1,156,535 -5.58%

Operating Expenses

2004 DWR Ortega Loan $590,400 $23,556 $0 -100.00%
2010 Bond Interest Expense $690,462 $130,426 $0 -100.00%
AMI Meter Financing $163,993 $0 $0 -100.00%
Cater DWR Loan $231,648 $231,648 $231,647 0.00%
Cater Ozone $276,323 $276,323 $276,902 0.21%
2020 Bond Interest Expense $0 $160,222 $495,200 100.00%
2020 Bond Principal $0 $160,000 $0 0.00%
voeccmee | ol amml el s
Capital Expenses $5,651,777 $3,831,281 $5,029,021 -11.02%

TOTAL EXPENSES $21,967,616 $22,083,346 $25,106,008 14.83%

Table 11 below shows MSD expenditures from FY2020 to FY2022.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 49

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 205 of 251



Table 11: MSD Expenditures FY2020 to FY2022

Fy2020 Fy2021 Frz0z2 Change
Actuals Actuals (unaudited) FY2020 to
FY2022
Salaries & Benefits $2,995,138 $2,932,359 $2,614,724 -12.70%
Insurance $67,965 $66,844 $103,557 52.40%
Maintenance & Repairs $138,627 $183,068 $256,297 84.90%
Goods & Supplies $84,252 $87,107 $89,444 6.20%
Professional Services $131,273 $298,690 $197,618 50.50%
Administrative Costs $166,181 $132,478 $100,527 -39.50%
Plant & Lab Operating Costs $508,683 $508,027 $462,308 -9.10%
Safety, Training, and Travel $24,274 $12,617 $14,624 -39.80%
Utilities $203,618 $228,227 $223,421 9.70%
g:s;:se;vice Payment/ Interest ($82,288) $138,850 100.00%
____
Covid-19 Expenses $135,604 $140,104 -100.00%
MSD Debt Service Payment $327,300 $303,100 $277,700 -15.20%
MSD Bond Principal Payment $605,000 $635,000 $655,000 8.30%
TotalNonOperating Expenses  SIOSTOM4  S10Tazo4  semfe0  -t270%
Capital Expenses $787,184 $984,707 $1,811,463 100.00%

TOTAL EXPENSES $6,175,099 $6,430,040 $6,945,533 12.50%

Based upon FY2022 financials, the districts would have combined expenses, including capital and debt service, of
approximately $32 million per year. This amount is below the approximate $34 million in revenues noted earlier.

Total MWD Operating Expenses were 75% of the total in FY2022. Excluding the JPA, which is a separate entity,
and depreciation, MWD Operating Expenses are 44% of total expenses. MSD Operating Expenses in FY2022 were
41.2% of the total. A large portion of expenditures is comprised of non-operating costs such as capital projects. We
assume for the purpose of this review that capital projects would remain the same as those already in their respective
capital improvement plans, as each district would need the same or similar investment in future infrastructure.
Currently, MSD and MWD each have capital spending budgets averaging between $2 and $5 million per year.

There may be some minor overlap in administrative costs like office supplies and other areas under a consolidated
utility. In the interim period (two to five years) there would likely be an increase in expenses as the consolidated
utility implements a single financial software and other systems, contracts for various studies such as a classification
and compensation review, and other costs of consolidation such as rebranding, new uniforms, website development,

50 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 206 of 251



and more. Over time, these costs may return to baseline (pre-consolidation) as the newly consolidated entity moves
forward, and could decline slightly in relative terms because of minor economies of scale.

Salaries and Benetfits

Salaries and benefits would be of particular interest for a potential consolidation. This section compares salary ranges
and benefits offerings between the two agencies and review how they might be impacted by consolidation.

GOVERNING BOARD COMPENSATION

Compensation for the Board of Directors of each agency was reviewed with the knowledge that any consolidated
entity would likely merge boards and require new compensation policies for the Directors.

Per MWD'’s Directors’ Benefits, Compensation, and Expense Reimbursement policy dated August 21, 2007, Directors are
compensated at a day rate for attendance at MWD and other authorized meetings, and is limited to one meeting per
day and no more than 10 meetings per month. By policy, Directors are not to receive medical, dental, vision, or
retirement benefits unless elected prior to January 1, 1995.

Per MSD’s Ordinance 20, adopted in October 2022, Board members are paid “$231.00 per day for each day of
attendance at a regular or special meeting of the Board, a meeting of a standing or ad hoc committee of the Board,
or for each day’s service rendered as a Director by request of the Board, not exceeding a total of six days in any
calendar month.” In addition, per diems are provided for attendance at conferences or seminars and reimburses costs
of travel, lodging, and meals. No mention of other benefits are included in the Manual, and it is assumed that Board
members are not eligible.

Both Boards have a day-rate pay mechanism to include meetings and committees, and neither are offered other
benefits such as medical, dental, or retirement. While the day rate of reimbursement may be different, it would be
fairly straightforward to agree upon one policy to govern a combined Board of Directors as the differences are minor
and cost impacts minimal.

Consolidation would result in the elimination of compensation for five Board members. While compensation varies
depending on attendance, a rough estimate based upon FY2020 average annual compensation of $7,000 each yields
a total estimated savings of $35,000.

STAFF COMPENSATION

In 2020, MWD performed an employee compensation comparison to provide information and recommendations to
assist in ensuring its ability to attract and retain qualified staff and ensure staff are compensated fairly and
commensurate with job duties and responsibilities. This study found that MWD'’s salaries were broadly in line with
surveyed peers and the 2019 American Water Works Association (AW WA) salary survey, based upon the high cost
of living in Santa Barbara County.

MWD has a Bi-Weekly Salary Range and Position Control Schedule with five steps. Employees may move to the
next steps based upon performance, conducted annually on or around their anniversary date. Increases are
recommended by their supervisor and must be approved by the General Manager. Any increase above one step
requires approval by the Board of Directors. In addition to the salary ranges, MWD offers a longevity pay program
that adds 2.5% after 8, 14, 20, and 26 continuous years of service as an incentive to retain staff. The Board considers

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 51

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 207 of 251



a Cost of Living Adjustment annually for all employee with the exception of the General Manager and adjustments
to the salary schedule is updated accordingly.

MSD has a five-step salary table for operations and administrative staff with increases that are available to staff each
year based upon merit; in this way, MSD staff receive increases through a combination of performance and time on
the job. Compensation for collection and treatment operators at the MSD are directly connected to their certification
levels as issued by the California Water Environment Association or State Water Resources Control Board,
respectively. They are evaluated annually on or around their anniversary date. This salary table is considered for
adjustment annually based on a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA). The table also provides hourly minimum and
maximum rates for the District Administrator, Engineering Manager, Collection System Superintendent, Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator, and Lab and Pretreatment Manager positions. The General Manager’s
compensation is established through a contract.

For both entities, the approved FY2023 salary ranges were reviewed. MWD'’s salary ranges were provided with bi-
weekly pay minimums and maximums, which were multiplied by 26 to arrive at an annualized amount. The MSD
salary ranges were provided with hourly minimum and maximums for each classification, which were multiplied by
2,080 hours to arrive at an annualized amount. By converting both salary range tables to annual amounts and adding
a midpoint for each range, it is possible to quickly sort and analyze the results to determine whether there is similarity
in pay for positions with similar job duties and responsibilities, where the biggest differences might be, and steps that
would need to be taken to consolidate pay across a unified single agency. The results, sorted from smallest to largest
midpoint salary, are shown in Appendix C. It should be noted that MWD recently adopted an increase to the salary
range maximum for its 20 union represented and 8 non-represented employees, effective June 28, 2022. MSD has
recently adopted its first memorandum of understanding with its union-represented employees, while negotiations
are pending for non-represented employees.

This analysis shows some disparities in pay ranges between the two agencies, as might be expected. For example, a
Distribution Operator I in MWD has a midpoint of $66,602 while a Collections Operator I in MSD has a midpoint
of $66,102 which is 1% less. The Distribution Operator II in MWD makes $78,803 while the Collections Operator
II in MSD makes $74,069, which is 6% less. There are minor variabilities between the two entities for many similar
positions which could require minor class and compensation adjustments to equalize salaries and to ensure equity
across staff and reduce negative impacts on morale and workplace culture.

The disparities in some positions are more significant. The MSD Collection & Maintenance Supervisor, with a
midpoint at $124,571, is 5.3% below the Treatment & Production Superintendent at MWD. As one example, the
Treatment Chief Operator and Distribution Chief Operator IV in MWD has a midpoint of $108,104 while the Chief
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator in MSD has a midpoint of $139,932, over 29% above MWD.

To consolidate the districts, a comprehensive class and compensation study would need to occur to analyze job
functions and responsibilities and to consider equalizing pay ranges for similar positions were appropriate. This
would result in some cost impacts as those positions paid at the lower level would likely require upward adjustment.
In our experience, having similar positions paid at different rates results in serious morale and retention issues for an
organization. The estimated cost of a parity adjustment across all positions, based upon the current differential
between similar positions and raising the lower paid position to match the higher, is approximately $150,000 but is
obviously variable and dependent upon collective bargaining and internal negotiations. It is important to recognize
that this is not a one-time cost but a permanent increase to the base budget for the combined entity.

52 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 208 of 251



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

Until recently both MWD and MSD did not have employees represented by collective bargaining agreements
(unions). However, in the last year both organizations have begun the process of recognizing and negotiating their
first union contract. MSD has recently completed the process of negotiating its first agreement with 15 represented
employees; discussions are continuing for non-represented staff. The MWD Board of Directors approved a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Service Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 620 at their
regular Board meeting on June 28, 2022.

MWD’s MOU with SEIU discusses benefits, leave, rules of conduct, disciplinary guidelines, and employment
practices. Twenty of the twenty eight full-time employees employed by MWD are members of the union, all of which
are non-exempt members.? The agreement allows for periodic reviews of employee classifications and job duties in
preparation of a compensation study by the MWD as well as the ability for employees to submit a request for review
if they think their position is misclassified. The MOU also details the process for disciplinary action, appeal, and
grievance procedure.

Should the Districts pursue consolidation, partnering with any union(s) representing employees would be important.
Union representatives would be important to include in the decision making process and in discussions about the
implementation of any changes. Their inclusion would be essential both in providing the employee perspective to
MWD and MSD management and elected officials as well as in helping to communicate the reasons for changes to
union-represented employees.

STAFF BENEFITS

A comparison of benefits offered to staff in MWD and MSD shows many points of similarity with some minor
differences. Table 12 below summarizes benefits information provided in the Montecito Water District Employee
Handbook and MOU, both dated June 28, 2022, and Montecito Sanitary District Employee Handbook dated December 1,
2019 with updates from the negotiated February 2023 SEIU Local 620 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

Table 12: Staff Benefits Comparison

seneit Type “

Regular Full and Part Time employees working
30 hours/week or more are eligible on 1st day of

Provided to all regular Full Time, Part Time,
and eligible retired employees. New
employees eligible on first of month after their

month after 30 days worked for medical and
dental. Casual, temp, or contract staff not
eligible. If hired prior to 1/1/18, District

Medical hire date. District pays premium for eligible contributes up to Employee Plus 1 level. If hired
employees and a portion for dependent or after 1/1/18, District contributes up to $1,400 per
family coverage if elected by the employee. represented employee per month, $1,000 per

unrepresented employee. Employee pays any

amount beyond this.

Delta Dental PPO. If hired prior to 1/1/18, District
District pays dental premium for all eligible contributes up to Employee Plus 1 level. If hired

Dental employees. Dependent/spousal coverage is at  after 1/1/18, District contributes up to $1,000 per

employee's cost. employee per month. Employee pays any
amount beyond this.
District pays vision premium for all eligible
Vision employees. Dependent/spousal coverage is at  Not offered

employee's cost.

2 Montecito Water District, Memorandum of Understanding Between MWD and SEIU Local 620, Draft June 28, 2022

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 53

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 209 of 251



Benefit Type

Basic Life and AD&D

Short Term Disability

Long Term Disability

Deferred
Compensation

Retirement

Retiree Health
Coverage

Holidays

Vacation

Sick leave

Longevity Pay

Bereavement Leave

District pays premium for $50K for all eligible
active employees while employed at the
District. Dependent/spousal coverage is at
employee's cost.

District pays premium for employee.

District pays premium for employee.

Voluntary IRS 457 plan available to
employees, eligible on first day of
employment. District makes no contribution or
match.

CalPERS defined benefit plan. All Classic
members enrolled on or before 12/31/12 in 2%
at 55 plan and District pays a portion of
employee's contribution. If enrolled on or after
7/1/12, District pays employer's portion only
and employees pay their portion. PEPRA
employees enrolled on or after 1/1/13
participate in the 2% at 62 plan and pay their
own portion.

Provided if hired on or before 6/30/13, at/after
age 60, and completed 12 years of service
with District. District will pay premium for a
designated Medicare supplement for
employee only (if of Medicare-eligible age) or
amount up to one-party coverage on District's
current HMO plan if under Medicare age. No
coverage offered for employees hired after
7/1/13.

8 holidays plus four personal leave days

Full-time employees accrue time each pay
period based on length of service to District,
earning from 12 to 27 days per year. Part-time
employees working at least 20 hours/week
earn vacation on a pro-rata basis. An
employee may cash out up to a maximum of
120 hours once per calendar year, provided
they have no less than 80 hours remaining
following cash out.

All employees eligible. Full Time earn up to 96
hours per year. Part Time accrue at pro-rata
rate based upon number of hours worked.
Temporary staff accrue at rate of one hour for
every 30 hours worked. Upon departure, staff
who have worked six continuous years of
service are compensated for unused sick
leave from 50-100%

Increase of 2.5% based on performance
evaluation after 8, 14, 20 and 26 years of
continuous service with District

Up to three days for immediate family.

54 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 210 of 251

District pays 1.5 times salary, up to $50K

District pays premium for all Full Time
employees.

District pays premium for all Full Time
employees

Voluntary plan, two separate IRS 457 plans
available. Employee eligible to enroll upon date
of hire and may change contribution amounts of
percentage at end of any pay period. District
makes no contribution or match.

CalPERS defined benefit plan. If hired prior to
1/1/13 or reciprocal, based on 2% at age 55
highest single year plan. If Classic hired prior to
1/1/18, District pays both District and employee
monthly contribution. For Classic hired on or
after 1/1/18, employee required to pay employee
portion through payroll deduction. Employees
hired after 12/31/12 are PEPRA plan based on
2% at age 62, final three year formula plan. The
District does not pay employee contribution.

Provided if hired prior to 7/1/10, 55+ years old at
retirement, who have worked at least 10
consecutive years with District are eligible.
District will pay premium for up to "Employee +
1" level until employee reaches age 65. No
coverage offered for employees hired after
6/30/10.

10 holidays plus four personal leave days. Part
Time employees eligible on pro-rata basis.

Full-time accrue vacation per bi-weekly pay
period from hire date to anniversary of
succeeding year based on length of service to
District. GM discretion on prior years of service.
Full and Part Time employees may begin taking
paid vacation after accruing vacation benefits.
Employees can earn 80-200 hours per year
depending on years of service.

All employees eligible. Full Time accrue up to 96
hours/year from date of hire. Part Time accrue
pro-rated to number of regularly scheduled
hours. Sick leave not accrued when employee
on leave. Upon departure, staff reimbursed for
unused sick leave from 50-100% depending
upon years of service.

Regular employees who have been at top step
of classification for one year or more are eligible
to be considered for incentive awards earned by
exceptional performance.

Up to three days for immediate family.



In general, benefits are fairly comparable. Both districts offer general medical, dental, and retirement offerings plus
vacation, sick, and holiday time. Both offer some form of retiree health care for eligible employees. Both offer
retirement through CalPERS, the public retirement system, which makes consolidation easier in that employees
would not have to convert to a new retirement system. Both offer most benefits on a pro-rata basis for part-time staff.

Minor differences exist with regard to eligibility requirements for retirement, vision insurance (offered by MWD but
not MSD) and longevity pay. A consolidated utility would need to redefine eligibility for all benefit types and
determine a single consistent offering to staff. Cost impacts of these changes is roughly estimated at $50,000 to work
through parity issues and would continue each year thereafter as an addition to the consolidated entity’s base budget.

Investments

Also important to financial condition and operations is investment of available cash. Most public organizations
utilize investments to provide interest income as an additional non-operating revenue sources. According to the
annual audited financials for period ending June 30, 2021, MWD held the following investments in accordance with
its Investment Policy (Resolution 2233) dated June 28, 2022. All investments have a maturity of 12 months or less,
providing reasonable liquidity and the ability to draw upon funds if needed.

Table 13: MWD Investment Portfolio

Central Coast Water Authority Investment Pool $1,495,584
Semitropic Stored Water Recovery Units $1,924,510
Money-Market Mutual Funds (Schwab) $5,676,938
ARB Money Market $7,451,833
TOTAL $16,548,865

The MWD received $32,242 in interest revenues in FY2021 and $13,332 in FY2022. Average total annual investment
earnings since FY2018 have been $145,246 per year, for an average return of 1.6% based upon the FY2021 portfolio
of $9.1 million. Investment income rose in FY2019 and FY2020, dropping significantly during FY2021 and FY2022
as a result of economic conditions. At the time of this review, the District also held over $6.5 million in a checking
account, some of which may be invested in the future.

In addition, the MWD has liquid cash in check and money market accounts. The City of Santa Barbara holds over
$777,000 of MWD funds as debt service coverage and reserve for the Water Supply Agreement.

Though by budget the MSD is only one fourth of the size of MWD, the MSD has almost the same amount of invested
cash assets. The MSD has distributed its investable monies in two vehicles: 1) the Santa Barbara County Investment
Pool, and 2) the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California controlled investment pool.
Funds are readily available from either pool. As of June 30, 2021, MSD held the following investments.

Table 14: MSD Investment Portfolio

Lovsripion T pmount_|

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $2,016,534
Santa Barbara County Investment Pool $14,626,965
TOTAL $16,643,499

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 55

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 211 of 251



The MSD investment policy, Resolution No. 2013-883, states that it shall be its policy to invest funds, with maximum
security through diversification and prudence, in a manner that would provide the highest investment return while
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity and conforming to all statutes governing investment of public
funds.

MSD received $31,515 in interest revenues in FY2021. Average annual investment earnings since FY2018 is
$193,756 per year, for an average return of 1.2% based upon the FY2021 portfolio of $16.6 million. Investment
income rose in FY2019 and FY2020, dropping significantly during FY2021 as a result of economic conditions.

According to the annual audit, MSD investments lost $14,911 in FY 2021. The MSD has adopted a more
conservative investing approach than MWD, with 100% of its assets put into municipal investment pools. MWD
has over 62% of its assets in money market mutual funds.

Information on individual rates of return for specific investment vehicles was not available for this review. If
consolidated, the new district would need to review which investment vehicles have performed well, are easiest to
administer, and provide the most security and return at the lowest cost. The consolidated district could transfer funds
between them accordingly as part of active treasury management to maximize interest earnings, but be careful not
to improperly mix enterprise funds. Over time, the consolidated district can eliminate specific investment vehicles
deemed to be underperforming in comparison to others. Some investment vehicles may offer enhanced interest rates
for larger deposits, which may be possible in a consolidated district. Since predicting interest returns is highly
speculative and dependent upon market conditions, and because the amount is not likely to be material, no change
is predicted as a result of consolidation.

Debt and Debt Service

At the time of this review, MWD had three outstanding debts. The largest is the 2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds,
used to refund two prior debts, the DWR-Ortega Loan and 2010A Refunding Revenue Certificates of Participation,
taking advantage of favorable rates with a savings valued at over $3.3 million. The 2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds
have variable rates from 4-5% and will mature through July 1, 2029. The total outstanding balance of principal and
interest as of June 30, 2021, was $13,938,700. Annual debt service payments average $1.64 million beginning in
FY23.

MWD participated in two debt financings as part of a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the City of Santa Barbara.
MWD receives a portion of its water supplies from or through the Cachuma Project, and these supplies are treated
by the City of Santa Barbara’s Cater Water Treatment Plant. MWD has a JPA with the City of Santa Barbara as of
November 1, 2003, to participate in a California Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) financing of $19.2
million to fund general plant improvements. A second JPA with the City, also entered into on November 1, 2003,
and for a DWSRF financing, was for ozone treatment improvements at the plant. The following table summarizes
MWD outstanding debt obligations.

Table 15: MWD Debt Obligations

Balance June (NEEER
Title Annual Debt Payoff Year
30, 2021 .
Service

2020A Refunding Revenue Bonds $13,938,700 $1.640,000 FY2030
Cater DWR Loan (JPA) $3782,400  $235000 Fv2026 _
Cater Ozone Loan (JPA) $4,300,000 $275000 Fv2035

56 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 212 of 251

_ - ( Deleted: r

i - { Deleted: r




In addition to this direct debt, MWD also pays annual debt service to the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA),
a JPA within Santa Barbara County, toward its State Water Project debt. While not on the District’s books, it is a
required annual debt service payment. In FY2022 unaudited actual expense was $4,243,945.

At the time of this review, MSD had one active debt, revenue bonds used in 2017 to refund prior 2007 Certificates
of Participation in order to take advantage of favorable interest rates. According to the ACFR, the total issue amount
was $10,020,000 with a principal and interest balance of $9,194,600 as of June 30, 2021. Debt service has a variable
rate with annual debt service averaging approximately $915,000 per fiscal year. If taken to full term, this debt will be
retired in 2031. The following table summarizes MSD outstanding debt obligations.

Table 16: MSD Debt Obligations

n Balance June Average Annual
30. 2021 Debt Service | P2Yoff Year
Zé0°1n7d§ewer Refunding Revenue $9.194.600 $915,000 FY2031

A consolidated debt service schedule for both MWD and MSD for the next 10 years is provided in the following
table. As can be seen, debt service totals just over $3 million per year through FY2026, dropping to $2.83 million
through FY2030 and then dropping again to $1.2 million in FY2031.

Table 17: Consolidated MWD and MSD Debt Obligations

Loan Title FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031

2020A
Refunding
Revenue
Bonds

Cater DWR
Loan (JPA)
Cater Ozone
Loan (JPA)
2017 Sewer
2:3::“1‘:9 $915,000  $915,000  $915000  $915000  $915,000  $915000  $915000  $915000  $915000  $915,000
Bonds

;::\alli;ebt $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 | $3,065,000 ( $3,065,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $2,830,000 | $1,190,000

Given that both entities have incorporated these obligations and the annual debt service payments into their budgets
already, we do not see any impact on a consolidated utility. There may be opportunity to further reduce costs by
further consolidating and refunding the debts, depending upon interest rates at the time and the ability to allocate
costs between enterprise funds.

$1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 $1,640,000 =

$235,000 $235,000 $235,000 $235,000 $235,000 - - - - -

$275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000 $275,000

Working Capital and Reserves

‘Working capital (reserves) for utilities are the accumulated difference over time between revenues and expenditures.
When a utility’s revenues exceed its expenditures, the difference is added to its working capital which builds over
time with a goal of having funds available to help manage risk. Conversely, should a utility expend more than its
revenues, this overspend in a single year is drawn from the accumulations of working capital from prior positive
years. Having funds available to mitigate risk is critical for utilities due to the uncertainty that can impact them, such
as unforeseen breaks in extremely high cost capital assets, lower than budgeted usage, extreme weather events, and

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 57

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 213 of 251



source supply and energy costs that are not in the utility’s control, among other factors. The level of working capital
can be measured as the available buffer or margin for an enterprise fund.

According to its Reserve Policy adopted via Resolution 2237 dated June 28, 2022, MWD has established five
unrestricted Board Committed reserves, as shown in the following table. Committed reserves, as defined by GASB
54, is a classification including amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes determined by a formal action
of the government’s highest decision-making authority (in this case, the MWD Board). These reserves can only be
used for these purposes and can only be repurposed if the Board approves such an action.

Table 18: MWD FY2022 Committed Reserves

June 28, 2022
Reserve Category Descript Balance
unaudited

Approximately three months of total operating
Operations Reserve expenditures. Can be used as an alternate short- $3,400,000
term or immediate-purpose funding source.

To provide protection for losses in the event of
hydrological, meteorological, or man-made
emergency in which MWD infrastructure is severely

Emergencies damaged. Can be used as gap funding to cover time $500,000
from loss until insurance payout, as well as
deductible.

q Provides cash necessary to construct, procure, or

g:;;;a;:ed Capital repair new/existing infrastructure that wasn’t planned $500,000
at budget adoption.
Established in FY21 to fund pay-go capital expense

Water Supply associated with the Santa Barbara Desalination

Agreement Plant. As a condition, MWD must fund a portion of $600,000
maintenance costs; this reserve to be funded
annually.

Supplemental Water \I;raci;irdes cash for the acquisition of supplemental $3,000,000

Unlike MWD, MSD has no committed or restricted reserve types but instead has four designated reserves as shown
in the following table. Per GASB 54, designated reserves are included as unrestricted reserves, which are set at levels
established by either formal or informal policies of the utility and can either be committed for specific uses (as with
MSD) or available for a variety of uses. Their use is subject to Board approval.

Table 19: MSD FY2021 Designated Reserves

Roserv Caegory

Funds set aside in the County Retirement Benefits

Designated for Fund that pays for the post-retirement benefits
Retirement Benefits available to a finite number of employees (those $184,072
Obligation employed prior to July 1, 2010, and who retire from

the District).

Funds set aside in the County Capital Infrastructure
Designated for Capital Fund to fund the District's Capital Improvement
Replacement Program. The amount typically contributed is equal
to the prior year's audited depreciation expense.
Funds set aside in the State LAIF Investment Fund
to be utilized when unforeseen project/operational
needs arise but for which there is no budget in the $2,016,534
normal Operations & Maintenance and Capital
Improvement Program funds.

$7,622,671

Designated for
Reserves

58 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 214 of 251



Rosorv Catogor o

Funds set aside in the MBT Recycled Water
Checking Account specifically for the purpose of
Designated for studying the feasibility of recycled water. The District $1,096.679
Recycled Water received a small grant to start the project and funded e
the fund with two years of its typical %z of 1% of
property tax revenues.

In summary, the MSD reserves are unrestricted and available for any use by Board vote; MWD reserves are
committed to more specific categories of use. In both cases, reserves can be changed by action of the respective Board.

GFOA recommends that local governments take numerous local factors into account in establishing the level of
working capital in a formalized reserve policy, including:

o Strength of collection practices

e Historical consumption of inventories and prepaids

o Transfers out (if applicable)

e Cash cycles

o Customer concentration

e Demand for service

e Control over rates and revenues

o Asset age and condition

e Volatility of expenses

o Control over expenses

e Management plans for working capital (restrictions, designations)

e Debt position

GFOA recommends a target level of working capital in enterprise funds to be between 45 and 90 days of annual
operating expenses. This is typically for unrestricted working capital that can be used for any operational purpose.
Based upon combined Operating Expenses of $23.3 million in FY22, the consolidated utility would require between
$2.9 million (45 days) and $5.7 million (90 days) as an Operating Reserve. The combined current MWD Operating
Reserve and MSD Designated for Reserves amount is $5.4 million, which is slightly below 90 days of operating
reserves. When the Districts are combined, the unified board should revisit reserve level policies to assess whether
they are appropriate or could be adjusted. However, it’s important to note, that in order to maintain compliance
with Proposition 218, enterprise fund reserves cannot be commingled or combined, and each separate fund should
have a specific reserve target based upon the nature of the utility, potential variability due to drought or natural
disasters, and other conditions.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 59

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 215 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

60 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 216 of 251



Operations and Efficiencies

This section will review the potential impacts of consolidation on operations and identify potential efficiencies that
could result from consolidation.

Economies of Scale

As noted earlier in this report, a combined utility can present efficiencies in terms of administrative and engineering
staffing. Generally, fewer management and administrative support staff are necessary in combined utilities.
According to the 2020 American Water Works Association (AWWA) Utility Benchmarking survey, the median
combined utility has 43.5% of overall staffing used for management, engineering, and customer service positions
compared to 49.1% for water only utilities.3® As noted earlier in the staffing section, combining district administrative
groups would result in additional staff to focus on each business area; for example, while Human Resources may be
the focus of one person half-time now, the combined agency would have a single employee fully devoted to nothing
but Human Resources.

Operational economies of scale are harder to envision but there is potential in areas such as fleet and facility
maintenance due to the addition of more vehicles and more facilities over which costs and staff time can be spread.
There is some potential savings through joint contracting on some chemicals, materials, or parts. Operations staff
may see some savings through sharing of resources and learning of best practices between MWD and MSD staff.

Because there would be few changes to current operating methods and organizational structure in the short-term,
cost savings as a result of operational efficiencies are limited and would depend greatly on the interactivity between
MWD and MSD operations staff. There is greater potential for savings due to economies of scale in the
administrative and engineering functions.

Provision of Recycled Water

One operational area that combined utilities can readily collaborate on is using water resources wisely, which
includes conservation, water reclamation, and water reuse. This is advocated in the industry as part of a “One Water”
approach where water resources are managed through the entire water cycle, from sourcing to reclamation to
recycling. Reclaimed water is non-potable but can be used to augment water supplies for irrigation, industrial,
ecological, aquifer recharge (limited), and municipal uses.3!

In areas prone to drought or with restricted water supplies, like California, the use of reclaimed water can increase
water supply as long it is done in a regulatory compliant and environmentally sound way that is protective of
downstream users. In some cases, water reuse is also a possibility. Water reuse involves additional treatment of
treated wastewater, brackish, or saline supplies (ocean water) to at least drinking water standards. Utilities with
scarce water supplies often consider a combination of conservation, water reclamation, and water reuse that is
appropriate for their circumstance. Because of the long-term drought in California and groundwater depletion
throughout the State, most water experts expect the State will broaden the allowed use of recycled water over the
next few years. The State will likely consider curtailing ocean discharge from sanitation districts in the near future.

% American Water Works Association (AWWA), 2020 AWWA Utility Benchmarking, Page 31.
31 American Water Works Association (AWWA), Reclaimed Water for Public Water Supply Purposes,

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 61

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 217 of 251



The two Districts are partnering on an Enhanced Recycled Water Feasibility Study and on this assessment of the
feasibility of Special District consolidation. The Recycled Water study focuses on potable reuse options and evaluates
the potential for greater collaboration with other agencies in the region, including the Carpinteria Valley Water and
Carpinteria Sanitary Districts, as well as the City of Santa Barbara.

As noted earlier in this report, one of the benefits of consolidation is to have a single governing board to oversee
projects like recycled water, which intersects with both water and wastewater operations. While the two separate
districts can certainly collaborate as they do now, a single Board of Directors would ensure a unified approach in the
long term.

Facilities
This section reviews administrative and other general facilities for potential consolidation opportunities. Our

assumption is that operational facilities, such as treatment plants, pipelines, and pump stations, would be largely
unaffected by consolidation and continue as-is to ensure ongoing water and sewer operations to customers.

MWD FACILITIES

The main office for the MWD is located at 583 San Ysidro Road, on a major arterial in Montecito. According to the
Santa Barbara County Assessor’s Office, it is a 3.03-acre site with residential properties to the east, commercial
properties to the west and south, and government (Montecito Fire District) and residential uses to the north. A
satellite image of the site is provided in the following figure.

Figure 19: Aerial Photo of MWD Administrative Office

The site encompasses several buildings, including:

62 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 218 of 251



e Administrative Office Building that includes offices for the General Manager, Assistant General Manager/
Engineering Manager, Administrative/HR Assistant, Public Information Officer, 2 Assistant Engineers,
Business Manager, Financial Analyst/IT Specialist, Senior Office Technician, two Office Technician II, and
a GSA Groundwater Specialist, as well as a Board meeting room

e Modular building with office space for the Distribution Superintendent and Water Conservation Specialist

o A residential unit for one employee who also serves as site caretaker after business hours

o Shop offices for Distribution employees, including restrooms, a break room, and equipment storage

o Storage buildings for files, meters, valves, and more

o Repair facilities for vehicles and minor equipment

e A large storage area for sand, gravel, large pipes, and more

e A pumping station and emergency generator

e A groundwater well and associated appurtenances

The Administration building is approx. 100 years old and appears to be well maintained but at maximum capacity
for staff of 12. If administrative staff were added to the site from MSD, a small addition to the building or additional
modular facilities would likely be required. There is adequate room on the site for another minor structure or an
addition to the Administration building and some increase to parking. There may be other code or zoning
requirements in effect that could impact site expansion which would need to be investigated.

The Board meeting room is small and, while sufficiently sized to accommodate the Board’s routine business, cannot
handle significant numbers of public such as when considering a water rate increases. In this case, MWD staff secure
the use of other locations for larger crowds, such as nearby schools or churches.

MSD FACILITIES

The main offices for the MSD are located at 1042 Monte Cristo and 910 Channel Drive in Montecito (this single site
spans both addresses). This is a quiet and exclusive property; according to the Santa Barbara Assessor’s Office, the
site is approximately 6.3 acres, adjacent to residential properties to the south, parking for the Music Academy of the
West on the east, Southern Pacific Railroad track and Highway 101 on the north, and the Santa Barbara Cemetery
on the west. A satellite image of the site is provided in the following figure.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 63

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 219 of 251



Figure 20: Aerial Photo of MSD Administrative Office

The site includes the following:
e Administrative offices for the MSD for the following:
- Board meeting room
- General Manager
- District Administrator
- Reception area and office for Accounting/ Admin Assistant
- Engineering Manager
o All treatment facilities necessary for conventional secondary treatment and disinfection
e Equipment for a small, recycled water demonstration project
e Drying beds for use in emergencies
e A modular office for Lab and Pretreatment Manager
e An office for Chief Treatment Plant Operator
e Modular restrooms
o Large locker facilities for collection and treatment plant employees
e Maintenance shop and Garage facilities for maintaining equipment such as the District’s vacuum truck,
CCTV van, lift station pump and other mechanical equipment

All administrative and operational staff for the MSD are based at this location. The site is well maintained with space
for future growth, including possible expansion of the existing treatment plant, as well as addition of new recycled
water facilities. In 2020, prior management was planning to construct new offices, a community meeting room and
a small residential housing/caretaker unit on site; however, in 2020, the MSD Board of Directors chose not to
implement this plan.

The administrative office area is adequate, but at maximum capacity for staff, with no room for additional staff unless
additional offices are added. Recent improvements have been made to the Board room which is nearly equivalent
size to the MWD Board meeting room. As with MWD, it is small and sufficiently sized to accommodate the Board’s
routine business, but cannot handle significant numbers of public and, in these cases, another location must be
utilized.

CONSOLIDATED FACILITIES

Upon initial review, the pros and cons of each site are summarized in the following table.

64 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 220 of 251



Table 20: Pros and Cons of MWD and MSD Facilities

I e A

e Aesthetically pleasing site near

commercial area and residences

Caretaker residence onsite

Office for Water Conservation Specialist

MWD: Vehicle/equipment repair facility

583 San Ysidro Road Ofﬁce§, restrooms, and break room for

operations staff

Materials storage area

e Adequate room available for additional
administrative office space

e No room within existing admin
building for additional 4 staff without
minor modification
Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

e 100 years old

e Board meeting room of insufficient
size on infrequent occasions

e No room within existing
administrative building for additional

e More industrial site with less impact on 12 staff without significant
neighbors (including freeway and modification to the existing building
cemetery) e No offices or break rooms for

e Past plans for expansion already operations staff

MSD: complete but w!II require reworking e No caretaker unit onsite
1042 Monte Cristo Lane * Updated and slightly larger Board room e  Board meeting room of insufficient

e Sewer treatment facilities onsite size on infrequent occasions

o Offices for Lab/Pretreatment Manager e  The vacant space on MSD property
and Chief Treatment Plant Operator is reserved for both replacement of
onsite the existing treatment process as

e Locker facilities for operations staff well as a potential recycled water

facility.

The high cost of local real estate in the area makes purchasing a new site impractical and, given the existing assets in
place, expansion and consolidation is the more prudent approach. Either site, if expanded, could be used to house
the consolidated administration and management functions, which would provide the benefit of a single, centrally
located site for customer contacts. Both Districts are currently lacking sufficient administrative space. Based upon
this initial review, the MWD site is more suitable to accommodate a combined management and administrative staff
as it has sufficient available land space, is more centrally located, and because moving in the MSD administrative
staff of four is far fewer than moving 12 from MWD. The existing materials storage space and vehicle/equipment
repair facilities at MWD could remain on the site and used for the benefit of a consolidated entity.

Relocating the four MSD administrative staff to the MWD site is preferred form a cost and staffing perspective. The
former MSD Board Room and office spaces could be reconfigured to incorporate plans for additional offices,
restrooms, breakrooms, and lockers for staff. Some staff now based at MWD might be moved to MSD and vice
versa. While the size of the MWD Board meeting room is insufficient to meet the needs of every meeting, offsite
meetings with high public interest can be scheduled in local community facilities.

An expansion and renovation plan would likely take 1-2 years in order to prepare architectural drawings and plans
to remodel one or both sites and to provide funding for the project, and then another year or more to construct. By
utilizing a combination of the existing sites in the most cost-effective way, the consolidated district should have
sufficient space for management and administrative staff and improved facilities for operations staff. A very
conservative cost estimate would be between $50,000 and $250,000 to provide minimal renovations to existing spaces
and purchase some modular trailers to put onsite if needed. One-time relocation and moving costs are estimated to
be between $5,000 and $30,000.

In the interim, management and administrative staff would remain in their existing facilities but should make a
concerted effort to meet regularly at a single location in order to begin to know each other, clarify roles, and share

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 65

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 221 of 251



information. As an alternative, certain groups could move and consolidate, allowing functions like customer service
and engineering to be unified. By remaining physically separated, it would be difficult to truly feel like a consolidated
utility, and every effort should be made to break through this barrier until physical co-location is possible.

66 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 222 of 251



The Feasibility of
Consolidation

Based upon an analysis of the impacts of potential consolidation on governance and staffing, financial position, and
efficiencies and operations, it seems that consolidation offers modest potential benefits but at a cost.

Interim Consolidation

Due to the distinct services and regulatory environments for water and wastewater operations, the opportunities for
consolidation among operations staff are limited. Generally, operators in each type of utility require different
certifications and training. Consolidation presents an opportunity to align maintenance staff that support these
operators and, as the organization works toward consolidation, align policies and procedures where appropriate.
Some dual-certifications (water and wastewater) may also be possible in the future. This may become helpful if a
recycled water facility is constructed.

In the interim period, reporting relationships for frontline operations staff could remain relatively unchanged.
Alignment should begin at the management and supervisor levels, and the General Manager should be responsible
for organizing the consolidated staff. In the interim period, MWD and MSD could align operations staff under two
Assistant General Managers who can assist with day-to-day operations for water and wastewater, manage policies,
and align service level expectations. These positions would report to the General Manager. It would be helpful to
have both current General Manager positions available for the interim period to apply their knowledge of the water
and wastewater specialties. In the potential organizational structure shown below, the MSD General Manager
position is reclassified as the Assistant General Manager for Wastewater, but the Board should decide who would
become the General Manager of the consolidated entity.

The organizational structure for water operations could remain unchanged, with the MWD Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager serving as the Assistant General Manager for Water and supervising both
distribution and water treatment & production superintendents and managing the associated CIP and related
engineering.

The organizational structure for wastewater operations could also remain unchanged, with the reclassified General
Manager position serving as the Assistant General Manager for Wastewater and supervising both the Treatment
Superintendent/Chief Operator and Collections Superintendent.

Figure 21 shows a potential interim consolidated structure with MSD positions shaded in orange and MWD
positions shaded in blue.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 67

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 223 of 251



68

Board of Directors|

General Manager

Administrative /
Human Resources

1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE
Groundwater Public Information
Specialist Officer
1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
. . Asst. GM - Asst. GM — Business Manager|
Engineering Staff e ——— Water 1.0 FTE
3.0FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Laboratory & P Treatment Supt./ Distribution T';ea;m;f‘t & Water Conservation| District Sr. Office
Pretreatment : Chief Plant —|  Superintendent e el Sracklic Administrator Technician
Superintendent P! Superintendent P!
Manager 10FTE Operator 1.0 FTE p1 O FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE : 1.0 FTE - |
—
—— L I
L 5 Accounting &
Lead Collections Chief Maintenance]| | Treatment Plant ||| Pietibution Chief Da%gz::gfe” Administrative | | | Office Technician Ii
System Operator Mechanic Operator 1pO FTE 1.0 FTE Assistant 2.0FTE
1.0 FTE 1.0FTE 4.0FTE . : 1.0 FTE
I I
i AT Control System i i
. Facilities Distribution ) Financial Analyst /
Cgllecu::ns Maintenance — Operator Technician / IT Specialist
perator Technician 6.0 FTE Cpeiar 1.0 FTE
4.0FTE 1.0FTE 1.0 FTE
Fleet Technician /
Distribution Water Treatment
— Operator Chief Operator
1.0 FTE HoIF=
I
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
20FTE

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 224 of 251

Figure 21: Potential Interim Agency Structure




This potential structure maintains current staffing and preserves many current reporting relationships. However,
should the organization move toward long term consolidation it will be important for the staff responsible for grounds
maintenance, fleet maintenance, and facilities maintenance to coordinate and align their work. This includes the
Chief Maintenance Mechanic, Facilities Maintenance Technician, Groundskeeper, Fleet Technician, Dam
Caretaker, and Control System Technician. Even though they are not aligned structurally in the interim period they
need to work together to ensure they can support the needs of the combined utility.

Long Term Consolidation

Over the first three to five years, operations staff could work toward a structure with three divisions reporting to the
General Manager: Water Operations, Wastewater Operations, and Maintenance. While other options are available,
a proposed long-term structure for operations is shown in the following figure with changes made to positions to
align titles and clarify roles.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 69

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 225 of 251



Board of Directors

Administrative
General Manager .
1.0 FTE Assistant
) 1.0 FTE
Groundwater Public Information
iali Officer
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
I 1
q Assistant General Administrative
Engineering Chief Maintenance| Ass;tant G Manager — Water Services Manager
. anager —
Manager Mechanic 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE Wastewater
) ) 1.0 FTE T
T [ | 1
— Treatment & . e
_ . Fadilities Collection System Treatrpent Supt./ Dlstl_'lbutlon Production \Water Con_sepzatmn Human R_es_ources D_|s@nct
Assistant Engineer Maintenance Supervisor L] Chief Plant Superintendent | superintendent Specialist Specialist 1 Administrator
20FTE L P Operator 1.0 FTE 3 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
Technician 1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE
1.0 FTE T
I I
. Wastewater Distribution Chief . N Accounting &
Control System Lead Collection Treatment Plant Operator Dam Caretaker Senior ance Administrative
£ System Operator — Technician — N
Technician 1.0 FTE Operator 1.0 FTE 1.0FTE 1.0 FTE Assistant
1.0 FTE ) 40FTE . 1.0 FTE
I
" Distribution
Collection Lab & Pretreatment] Operator Control System Office Technician Il
Operator = Manager 6.0 FTE — Technician 20 FTE —
4.0FTE 1.0 FTE . 1.0FTE .
Water Treatment
“— Chief Operator
1.0 FTE
I
Water Treatment
Plant Operator
20FTE

70 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 226 of 251

Figure 22: Potential Long Term Agency Structure




‘While the option exists to eliminate the second General Manager position, for reasons noted above, we recommend
reclassifying the position to Assistant General Manager for Wastewater. The MWD Assistant General
Manager/Engineering Manager position would similarly be converted to an Assistant General Manager for Water,
responsible for the water distribution and treatment. It is recommended that the Assistant General Manager title
remain in use in order to support succession planning for the agency.

Staff that perform grounds, facilities, vehicle, and equipment maintenance are restructured to report to the Chief
Maintenance Mechanic, and the position could later be retitled to a Maintenance Supervisor or similar position. This
allows the two Assistant General Managers to focus on the needs for those utilities. The Maintenance Division would
be responsible for all operational support functions including maintenance at all facilities, plants, and properties.
Over time it would be important to monitor the workload of this Division to ensure they have the appropriate staff
to support the combined utility.

Table 21 below summarizes the pros and cons of potential consolidation of the two districts:

Table 21: Pros and Cons of Consolidation

e Costs of remodeling and physical co-location

* Better integrated water policies and approach e Cost of new shared systems such as financial

e Unified governing board management software

e Some savings through potential elimination of one e Staff time to review policies and procedures and to
position merge operations (especially administrative)

e Greater staff specialization e Impacts on staff morale and retention

e Some economies of scale through shared contracting, o Diverts staff capacity from other initiatives
shared resources (tools, chemicals), and coordination e Perceived or real loss of local control and dilution of

services

The primary benefit of consolidation is not financial. Potential cost savings are relatively minimal compared to the
combined $32 million budgets of the two organizations. Instead, the primary benefit is a single Board making
determinations on water policies, especially if the decision is made to go forward with a recycled water program.
This is especially important in how costs are allocated to ratepayers. Under the current governance structure, or even
if a new joint powers arrangement is utilized, there will be an inherent conflict between how to allocate costs and
responsibilities. A single unified board would eliminate this potential for conflict.

It is important to note that consolidation is a time-intensive effort requiring large amounts of general manager and
administrative staff capacity for two to three years. During this interim period, it will be critical to make sure that
resources dedicated to ensuring a smooth transition do not detract from other important priorities for the new district.
This would include advancing recycled water projects and acquiring state and federal grants funds that have been
included in recent federal legislation.

Potential for Collective Savings

Both in the short term and the long term, the potential for savings from consolidation/reorganization are limited.
Due to the distinct regulatory environment and operating needs, water and wastewater operations are generally
separate functions even in combined utilities. However, there is opportunity to align service levels, policies, and
management structures. Over time there is also potential for cross training and investment in additional licensing or

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 71

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 227 of 251



certification to allow operators to backup one another and assist with large projects or in the event of an emergency,
but this would likely also require additional incentives such as those non-required certifications that could benefit the
district in emergencies.

As the organization aligns administrative functions like purchasing and materials management, there may also be a
potential savings in pursuing larger contracts compared to what MWD or MSD could pursue alone. While water
and wastewater operations are quite different, there may be the potential for the combined utility to pursue larger
contracts for some chemicals, materials, or parts compared, which could reduce the overall cost paid by MWD and
MSD separately. Similarly, by pooling tools, equipment, and vehicles the combined organization can maximize the
utilization of these items, potentially reducing the need for duplicative equipment. The accredited MSD laboratory
could possibly assist in processing water samples to reduce costs and delays of contracting these out, but these savings
would be offset by the cost of an additional FTE, and equipment/supplies needed to perform the work. MSD’s
SCADA system, the software that provides live data on plant operations and can alarm staff when there are issues,
could potentially be improved through collaboration with MWD’s in-house controls specialists.

There would be potential for service level enhancements by allowing operational staff to specialize and focus upon
their specific area of expertise. For example, rather than requiring the Distribution Supervisor to also oversee fleet
maintenance needs for the organization (though a small percentage of overall job duties), the position could now
focus 100% on water system maintenance and repair. This specialization should improve service levels over time,
compared to operations staff that were responsible for multiple maintenance or operating areas. This is similar to
administrative staff currently performing multiple roles such as human resources and information technology and
now being able to specialize and focus on one.

Based upon this study, the net financial impact of consolidation over the next 10 years (long term) is a savings
between $370,000 and $655,640. This assumes the immediate implementation of salary savings by eliminating the
former MSD General Manager position, eliminating pay for five Board members, professional services and materials
and supplies savings, and additional interest income. This also includes one-time consolidation costs of potential
facility renovation and/or expansion, transition costs, new financial software, and the ongoing cost of providing
parity across staff salary and benefits, as well as adding two new positions, a Human Resource Specialist and a
Control System Technician, to enhance service levels and are recommended. The largest cost driver is the cost of
salary and benefits parity and whether or not the second General Manager position is eliminated and the two new
positions added, as well as costs of any renovation work to facilities. Actual net impacts would vary depending upon
the actions taken by the districts and combined utility, if approved.

72 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 228 of 251



Table 22: Net Savings (Costs) of Consolidation over 10 Years

One Year Over 10 Year Horizon
Description Type Low High High
Estimate Estimate Estimate

Elimination of second General Manager

position Ongoing $234,000 $0 $2,340,000
I;«;l)d Human Resources Specialist (years 3- Ongoing $0 ($80,791) $0 ($646,328)
Add Control System Technician (years 3-10) Ongoing $0 ($134,754) $0  ($1 ,078,032)|
Eliminate pay for five Board members Ongoing $35,000 $35,000 $350,000 $350,000’
Professional services savings Ongoing $50,000 $150,000 $500,000  $1 ,500,000|
Annual materials and supplies savings Ongoing $5,000 $25,000 $50,000 $250,000
¢:::;iosr.11a(lj)interest income (Implemented Ongoing $5.000 $10,000 $25,000 $50,000
$:::s°;_ﬁ:)‘;;’idi“9 salatypatityj(implsmented BEENCR oY ($25,000)  ($150,000)  ($200,000) ($1,200,000)
g;s’;:;‘;;‘::;dg‘;f:ge:gf parity Ongoing ($25,000)  ($50,000) ($200,000)  ($400,000)
Financial software/ IT costs g:s%r:ﬁé ($5,000) ($30,000)  ($50,000)  ($30,000)
Office remodeling/ expansion costs One-Time ($50,000) ($250,000) ($50,000) ($250,000)|
Relocation costs One-Time ($5,000) ($30,000) ($5,000) ($30,000)
Consolidation,costs (studies, legal, uniforms, —One-Time - - — ($50.000)~ — -($250,000)- — —($50,000) - —($200,000)] —

NET SAVINGS (COSTS) OF CONSOLIDATION ($65,000) ($521,545) $370,000 $655,640

Hurdles to Progress

The potential hurdles to progress include change management, collective bargaining, communication, and training.
Any amount of organizational change can be difficult on employees. It would be important for the leadership of
MWD and MSD to communicate honestly, frequently, and in a variety of ways to ensure all staff understand planned
changes and how it would impact them.

To support ongoing operations, it would be important for the Maintenance Division, Water Operations Division,
and Wastewater Operations Division to communicate regularly and align their work. This would be a new practice
for the staff in all three workgroups and a change in how facilities, grounds, and equipment maintenance was done
previously. To ensure excellent service to customers, the communication between maintenance staff and treatment
staff would be particularly important.

Risks

The potential structural changes to treatment and field operations functions are intended to limit risk by limiting the
disruption to the core functions of the utilities. There is still the potential for risk, particularly in facilities and
equipment maintenance support, aligning policies and procedures, and retaining talented staff. The most significant
change for treatment and field operations is to the grounds, equipment, and facilities maintenance functions.
Previously, in MWD, these tasks were under the direct supervision of plant or distribution supervisors. This creates

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 73

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 229 of 251

T ‘[Formatted Table

J

{ Deleted: studies and legal

{ Deleted: 0

{ Deleted:




natural alignment in work planning but separating these functions into their own Division would require proactive
coordination. The potential structure is similar to how MSD operates currently, so should have limited impact on
wastewater operations.

Another potential risk is aligning policies and procedures among operating areas; this is particularly important for
the safety of frontline staff. All staff need to have a clear understanding of the proper protocols for different tasks and
especially tasks that are dangerous. In the interim period it would be important for supervisory staff to align their
policies and procedures and ensure staff are trained on the updated protocols.

Lastly, the potential loss of talented staff is a very real risk for the organization. Organizational change creates
uncertainty, which can lead employees to look for new jobs. Utility Operators in particular are in high demand across
the country and may be able to easily find employment at nearby utilities. A reduction in potential career ladders
and promotional opportunities can also result in the loss of staff who must go elsewhere to move up in their careers.
Proactive communication and clear planning can help address the uncertainty associated with change, but other
retention strategies may be necessary to ensure the combined organization has appropriate staffing through the
transition.

Data Gaps

This assessment was limited to the data provided by MWD and MSD as well as publicly available information and
best practices from industry resources like AWWA. Interviews with staff and observation of staff were not part of
this study. In some cases, information for the same fiscal years was unavailable for both entities. As part of
implementation, it would be important to engage with staff to understand nuances, communicate plans, and ask for
feedback.

Should the two districts choose to consolidate, it would require a thoughtful, deliberate, and phased process to ensure
concerns of all stakeholders — Board, staff, and public — are addressed. A proposed timeline showing steps toward
immediate consolidation is provided in Table 23 below.

74 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 230 of 251



Table 23: Phased Consolidation Plan

Description

Undertake public outreach campaign to educate
Montecito stakeholders about study and reasons the
districts are evaluating consolidation.

Governing Boards review study and vote upon whether
or not to move forward with consolidation.

LAFCO application and CEQA review process

If approved, establish staff work teams to work on key
issue areas of A) Human Resources including staffing,
salaries, and benefits, B) Information Technology, C)
Facilities, and D) Finance. Work teams to present
recommendations to GMs and Boards on how to operate
following consolidation.

Implement work team outcomes in preparation for official
consolidation

Utilities officially begin consolidation operations at start of
new fiscal year

Staff time,
newspaper ads

Staff Time

$25K (consultant)

Staff Time and/or
Consultant Cost

Staff Time
Consultant Costs

None

Estimated Timeline

January 2023 - June 2023

April = June 2023

July 2023 — March 2024
March — December 2024

June 2024 — July 2025

July 1, 2025

Figure 23 below shows the same Phased Consolidation Plan in graphic form as a Gantt chart. This timeline presumes
ongoing public outreach throughout the process and an approximate nine-month review time for LAFCO. It also
presumes that California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review would result in an exemption or negative
declaration; a full environmental impact review would require additional time.

2023 I 2024

JAN APR JuL ocT DEC JAN APR JuL DEC JAN

Step 2: Governing Board Review
and Vote

Step 3: LAFCO application and
CEQA review process

Step 4: If Approved, Establish Joint
Staff Work Teams on HR, IT,
Facilities, and Finance

Step 5: Implement Work Team
Outcomes

Step 6: Official Start of Consolidated
District

Figure 23

: Phased Consolidation Plan in Graphic Form

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 231 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

76 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 232 of 251



Conclusion

The proposed consolidation or reorganization of MWD and MSD is feasible and can be achieved, resulting in one
organization managing potable water and wastewater services for the community. This organizational approach is
not unique, and there are many examples of consolidated operations in California, both as special districts and within
municipal organizations.

The Montecito Water District (MWD) and the Montecito Sanitary District (MSD) have expressed interest in
evaluating consolidation for several reasons. First, there is a collaborative desire by both organizations and their
elected Boards of Directors to optimize the use of resources for the betterment of the community. Second, there is
interest in providing customers with the best level of service in the most cost-effective manner. Third, the State of
California has encouraged reviews of special districts in California to ensure constituents are getting the best service
at the lowest practical cost and evaluating consolidation aligns with this statewide initiative.

This review shows that, while consolidation could legally and functionally occur, it would provide limited benefits
in terms of cost savings and improved levels of service to customers. There are benefits and drawbacks to
consolidation of the two districts. The greatest benefit to consolidation would be the ability to implement activities
of joint interest such as recycled water more easily with the approval of a single governing body. By combining the
two separate districts, the new district can cohesively address local recycled water needs within a single agency with
unified policy direction on important considerations such as how to allocate project costs and develop appropriate
rate structures. While these programs can also be implemented through other mechanisms such as forming a JPA,
utilizing a single organization to move forward on these endeavors ensures a unified approach and helps to avoid
potential future organizational conflicts that can arise due to conflicting missions and priorities, and as Boards and
district management changes over time. Other potential benefits of consolidation include the ability to have greater
levels of specialization among staff who now must wear multiple hats and some economies of scale through shared
contracting, resources, and coordination.

Potential drawbacks to consolidation include the costs of aligning staff salaries and benefits, physical moves and co-
location, and new shared software and other office needs. Significant staff time would be dedicated to managing the
efforts needed to merge the two districts and it is unclear how other time-sensitive projects could also be
accomplished. Administrative facilities would need to be combined and perhaps expanded, resulting in additional
costs. Existing staff could be disenfranchised and morale negatively impacted; in any significant restructuring, it is
expected some subset of staff could choose to move elsewhere rather than deal with the uncertainty of major change.
The combined entity could lose some talent in a job market where competition for skilled utility operators is stiff.
This risk must be purposefully acknowledged and planned for due to its potential to delay or eliminate many of the
potential benefits that might be achieved by consolidation.

It is recommended that consolidation, if desired, be implemented in a phased manner. The first phase, the interim
period of 3-5 years, would simply merge the two organizations without any significant changes in staffing and largely
maintain status quo activities. The Santa Barbara County LAFCO would work with the districts to either merge
MSD into MWD, or create a new Community Services District. There are pros and cons to each approach. During
this interim transition period financial, governance, and other areas would need to be aligned to develop a deeper
understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of various options. Decisions could then be made about long-term
staffing, combined facilities, and streamlining policies and procedures to assure the best chance for success.

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 77

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 233 of 251



In conclusion, consolidation presents possible benefits to both utilities, but they must be considered within the
context of the drawbacks that may occur. If a complete consolidation is not possible or not desired, other alternatives,
such as the creation of a JPA or simple contractual agreements on key issues, are a possible alternative approach.
‘While the past relationship between MWD and MSD has not always been collegial, both districts are under newer
management and boards and are now working together on common interests. This gives both utilities an opportunity
to successfully consider and move toward the best outcomes for their customers.

78 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 234 of 251



APPENDIX A:

Current MWD & MSD Positions

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 235 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

80 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 236 of 251



MWD

MWD

MWD

MWD

MWD

Table 24: Detailed Personnel Information MWD and MSD Positions

Administrative / Human
Resources Assistant

Assistant Engineer

Assistant General
Manager / Engineering
Manager

Business Manager

Control Systems
Technician / Operator

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 237 of 251

Provides varied, complex, and confidential office administrative
and secretarial support to the General Manager, Board of
Directors, and management personnel

Assists in the preparation of District Board agendas, minutes, Lliiitar:

actions, ordinances, and resolutions AIMTGET e e
’ ’ Resources
Acts as a human resources assistant assisting with personnel
recruitment, training, compensation and benefits, employee
relations, labor relations, and personnel information systems
Participates in the planning, design, and construction phases of
engineering projects
Prepares and monitors construction and consultant service
contracts and assists in the preparation of requests for Engineering No 2.0
proposals
Administers the cross-connection control program including
maintaining a comprehensive database of known hazards
Plans, organizes, manages and provides administrative
direction and oversight for all functions and activities of the Administration;
Engineering Department and assists the General Manager with  Engineering;
similar duties related to all District functions and activities Water v
. es 1.0
Treatment;

Assists the General Manager in providing policy guidance and Water
program evaluation to the Board of Directors and management  Distribution
staff

Plans, organizes, directs, manages and reviews the
administrative activities and operations of the District including
budget and accounting, information technology, human
resources, and general office management functions

Administration;
Finance; Human

Resources; Yes 1.0
Management of the overall annual budget, oversight of the gustpmer
: - ) ervice
customer service and billing function, and management of
human resources issues
Operation, installation, repair and maintenance of electrical,
pneumatic and electronic instrumentation equipment, including Water
Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC’s), Remote Terminal Treatment/
Units (RTU’S), Variable Frequency Drives (VFD’s), and Facilities No 1.0

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) for water

treatment and distribution facilities MEMmiEENeE

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

81



Performs complex maintenance work in the upkeep of the
treatment plants and other related facilities

Construction, madification, maintenance, repair, and operation
of District infrastructure, including the Juncal Dam and related

facilities, systems, grounds, buildings, and equipment Water

Treatment/
Facilities
Maintenance

MWD Dam Caretaker/Operator | No 1.0
Patrols Dam facilities; inspecting grounds for maintenance and
repair needs and makes recommendations regarding
improvements

Leads, trains, oversees, directs, and participates in the work of
a crew responsible for providing the maintenance, repair, and
installation of District water distribution system and related
facilities and equipment;

Distribution Chief
Operator

Water

LD Distribution

Directs the work of assigned staff; coordinates, monitors, and Yes 1.0
provides technical input for assigned distribution system

maintenance, operations, and related projects and programs;

Prepares reports including time and material records, rolling

stock, and equipment usage, and facilities breakdowns

Participates in a crew responsible for providing the

maintenance, repair, and installation of District water

distribution systems and related facilities and equipment Water

Distribution No 6.0

MWD Distribution Operator

performs routine to complex maintenance and repair work of
potable water distribution main and lateral pipeline systems
Plans, organizes, manages and provides administrative
direction and oversight for all functions and activities of the
District’'s water distribution system, fleet maintenance, and

grounds keeping functions Water

Distribution

Distribution

MVD Superintendent

Yes 1.0

Long- and short-term project planning, record keeping,
inventory control, training of water distribution employees,
conducting safety meetings, and review of employee
performance
Performs complex financial accounting and administrative
activities; prepares a variety of comprehensive financial reports,
including those related to the general ledger, accounts payable,
cash collections, accounts receivable, payroll, project
accounting, inventory, and fixed assets. Finance;

Information No 1.0
Performs comprehensive staff analysis work supporting the Technology
development and implementation of a variety of accounting,
financial, and related systems; trains staff in the requirements
of various systems; and performs a variety of technical tasks
relative to assigned area of responsibility

MWD Finanpigl Analyst / IT
Specialist

82 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 238 of 251



Fleet Technician /

LD Distribution Operator

MWD General Manager

MWD Wate_r Qonservation
Specialist

MWD Groundwater Specialist

MWD Office Technician Il

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 239 of 251

Repairs, services, and performs semi-skilled and skilled repair Fleet

duties in order to ensure that District automobiles, trucks, Maintenance;
backhoes, and other power-driven equipment are operatingina Water

safe and efficient manner Distribution
Plans, organizes, and provides administrative direction and

oversight for all District functions and activities;

No

Provides policy guidance and program evaluation to the Board

of Directors and management staff;

Encourages and facilitates provision of services to District Administralay Yes
customers;

Fosters cooperative working relationships with
intergovernmental and regulatory agencies and various public
and private groups

Coordinating and implementing the District’'s water conservation

programs and projects, including inspecting homes and Water
providing customers with recommendations for improved Conservation
conservation, preparing and presenting information to the

public, and assisting in the administration of program budgets

Assists with the development and implementation of the
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Montecito
Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)

Oversees and guides technical aspects of Agency programs

and projects including but not limited to groundwater quality Engineering;
monitoring, water level monitoring, well metering, basin Environmental No
monitoring, and groundwater modeling Compliance

Oversees and directs Agency projects including budgets,
invoices, contracts, and other tasks as required. Prepares and
monitors requests for proposals and contracts for the Agency.
Ensures environmental compliance for Agency projects
Performs a wide variety of administrative and office support
duties for an assigned department and/or program, requiring full

knowledge of its policies, procedures, and operational details; Billing &

Customer No

Establishes and maintains customer accounts for water 5
Service

services;

Provides direct customer service associated with utility

1.0

2.0

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

83



84

MWD Public Information Officer
MWD Senior Office Technician
wwp  Jrment & Poducton
MWD Treatment Chief Operator

Water Treatment Plant

MWD Operator

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 240 of 251

payments, requests for service, responding to complaints and
providing information

Plans, coordinates, and participates in a variety of
communications, public information, marketing, community
relations, and outreach activities and initiatives

Responsible for the development of original content including
communications, media, website content, and other related
materials

Performs complex and difficult duties related to the general
accounting, customer service, and payroll functions;

Maintains District financial accounts and records and assists in
the preparation of financial reports and analyses;

Functions as the lead of the customer service office support
team; provides direct customer service associated with utility
payments, requests for service, responding to complaints and
providing information;

Maintains centralized payroll operations; prepares, maintains,
and distributes a variety of payroll records and reports

Plans, organizes, manages and provides administrative
direction and oversight for all functions and activities of the
District’s two (2) surface water treatment plants, reservoirs,
pump stations, and groundwater well sites

Long- and short-term project planning, record keeping,
inventory control, training of water treatment employees,
conducting safety meetings, and reviewing employee
performance

Oversees, directs, and reviews the work of a crew responsible
for providing the maintenance, repair, and operation of the
District’'s water treatment and related facilities and equipment;

Directs the work of assigned staff; coordinates, monitors, and
provides technical input for assigned water treatment plant
maintenance, operations, and related projects and programs;

Prepares reports including time and material records, rolling
stock, and equipment usage, and facilities breakdowns
Operates and maintains the District’s two (2) surface water
treatment plants, reservoirs, pump stations, and system well
sites;

Performs complex maintenance work in the upkeep of the

Communications

Finance; Billing
& Customer

Service

Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

No

No

Yes

Yes

No

20



MSD

MSD

MSD

MSD

MSD

MSD

MSD

MSD

Accounting &
Administrative Assistant

Chief Maintenance
Mechanic

Collections System
Superintendent

Collections Operator

District Administrator

Engineering Manager

Facilities Maintenance

Technician

General Manager/District
Engineer

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 241 of 251

treatment plants and other related facilities; uses and operates
a variety of manual and power tools and light to heavy power
driven equipment

Clerical and administrative support duties as well as customer
service, plan checking and review, permit preparation and
processing of payments.

Independent handling of incoming calls, preparation of
correspondence and standard agreements, front counter
customer interaction, data entry into the GIS database and
preparing invoices for accounts payable

Responsible for all maintenance, including preventive
maintenance, troubleshooting, repair and replacement of all
equipment at the Waste Water Treatment Plant, five Collections
System Pumping Stations in the field, and all District
Emergency Equipment, Vehicles, and portable equipment.
Supervising, planning and coordinating the services,
maintenance and operations of the wastewater collection
system.

Ensuring that all the wastewater equipment, lift stations,
collection lines and manholes are maintained correctly to
prevent sewage spills and to minimize Inflow & Infiltration
Ensuring that all the lift stations, collection lines and manholes
are maintained correctly to prevent sewage spills, and to
minimize Inflow and Infiltration

Clerk of the Board, Accountant & Finance, Human Resources
Manager, and Payroll Administrator, Information Technology
management, joint safety and staff training officer, insurance
and risk management officer

Manage and perform engineering and technical work involving
the investigation, planning, design, and construction of projects
in the wastewater field including pipelines, lift stations,
wastewater treatment plant processes, recycled water, and
rehabilitation and improvement projects

Review and prepare plans, specifications, and contracts
Provides maintenance support for District Buildings and
Grounds, Vehicles, Equipment and Facilities including the
Wastewater Treatment Plant, the Collection System, and Lift
Stations

Serves as chief executive and management official of the MSD

Works with the Board to carry out the statutory authorities and

Administration;
Finance

Facilities
Maintenance;
Fleet
Maintenance

Wastewater
Collection

Wastewater
Collection

Administration

Engineering

Facilities
Maintenance;
Fleet
Maintenance;
Grounds
Maintenance

Administration

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

No

No

Yes

5.0

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

85



86

MSD

MSD

MSD

MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Laboratory &
Pretreatment Manager

Wastewater Treatment
Superintendent/ Chief
Plant Operator

Wastewater Treatment
Plant Operator
(ImAn/oIT)

Montecito Sanitary District

Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023

Page 242 of 251

responsibilities of the District, as it updates, refines or expands
the District’'s mission.

Responsible for all business operations, oversees
implementation of the Board’s policies and programs, and
manages District staff

Ensuring compliance with all federal, state, and local regulating
agency requirements

Supervising the Laboratory’s Quality Control and Quality
Assurance programs to meet the Environmental Laboratory
Accreditation Program requirements for laboratory certification
and accreditation, supervising laboratory operations to ensure
compliance with District standard operating procedures and
policies

Provide the Operations & Maintenance Manager with accurate
and complete reports and other information

Maintains Wastewater Treatment facility operations and works
closely with senior operators and the Operations &
Maintenance Manager to develop and maintain procedures to
ensure compliance with all federal, state, and local regulating
agency

requirements.

Maintains Wastewater Treatment facility operations and works
closely with senior operators and the Operations &
Maintenance Manager to develop and maintain procedures to
ensure compliance with all federal, state, and local regulating
agency requirements

Environmental No
Compliance
Wastewater No
Treatment
Wastewater
Treatment e

3.0

4.0



APPENDIX B:

Map of MWD & MSD Boundaries

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 243 of 251



This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

88 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 244 of 251



Figure 24: MWD Boundary Map

7= SNaW a

S

SN-26W i nasw

Montecito Water District
Compiled by the Office of the County Surveyor in October of 2014

y ion of the County Board of T,Pages 287-293,11/7/1921.
Sphere 3/1/2012. Last Action: 24, Bella Vista Annexation, LAFCO 10-01, 5/6/2010.
y

Y  hup:

GRAPHIC SCALE

o 02s os 1
— —
Miles

"("“'C_

Legend

— Freeways (] Parcels LD sphere of Influence

— Highways ] Sections [ Formation Barbars County
— Roads (] Ranchos and Townships B Annexation smhion

=+ Railroads (TJos [

4

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 245 of 251

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 89




This page intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing.

90 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 246 of 251



Figure 25: MSD Boundary Map

Montecito Sanitary District
Compiled by the Office of the County Surveydr on 1/17/2017.
Formed 7/21/1944 by Board of Supervisors Resolution 7557.
Action: 24, Calvin Annex., LAFCO 14-06, 2/2/2015. Sphere: 11/04/2010 amended 11/06/2014. 0

) 4

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY 91

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 247 of 251



92 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 248 of 251



APPENDIX C:

Salary Ranges

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 249 of 251



The table below shows minimum, midpoint, and maximum salaries at the time of this report, in increasing order of
the midpoint. Those MSD classifications noted with an asterisk were in process of being re-evaluated for potential
pay adjustments at the time of this writing.

Position Title/Job Classificati Annualized Salaries
osition Title/Job Classification gency mmm

Collections Operator in Training (OIT) 51,584 57,148 62,712
Operations Operator in Training (OIT) MSD 56,534 62,618 68,702
Dam Caretaker MWD 55,139 64,559 73,980
Distribution Operator | MWD 56,884 66,602 76,320
Office Technician Il MWD 57,597 67,437 77,277
Collections | MSD 62,962 69,742 76,523
Operator | MSD 63,877 70,762 77,646
Operator Il MSD 70,387 77,990 85,592
Collections Il MSD 70,554 78,146 85,738
Facilities Maintenance MSD 70,554 78,146 85,738
Distribution Operator Il MWD 67,304 78,803 90,301

Administrative Assistant/Office Technician MWD 69,868 80,661 91,455
Water Conservation Specialist MWD 69,003 80,791 92,580
Mechanic/Distribution Operator | MWD 70,744 82,830 94,917
Public Information Officer MWD 73,898 85,313 96,729
Operator Il MSD 77,646 86,018 94,390
Distribution Operator IlI MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Senior Office Technician/Staff Accountant MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Treatment Plant Operator MWD 74,824 87,608 100,391
Collections Il MSD 79,082 87,610 96,138
Engineering Assistant MWD 76,712 89,818 102,924
Operator IV MSD 85,613 94,827 104,042
Collections IV MSD 87,152 96,554 105,955
Accounting/Admin. Assistant MSD 90,813 100,589 110,365
Control System Technician/Treatment Operator MWD 88,532 103,657 118,783
Chief Maintenance Mechanic MSD 98,904 109,564 120,224
Distribution Chief Operator IV MWD 93,638 109,636 125,634
Treatment Chief Operator MWD 93,638 109,636 125,634
Collections Supervisor MSD 100,901 111,769 122,637
Lab & Pretreatment Manager* MSD 97,094 112,081 127,067
Financial Analyst/IT Specialist MWD 96,001 112,403 128,804
Operator V MSD 104,437 115,679 126,922
Distribution Superintendent MWD 113,588 131,136 148,683
Treatment & Production Superintendent MWD 113,588 131,136 148,683
Groundwater Specialist MWD 117,183 135,285 153,388
District Administrator* MSD 118,248 136,510 154,773
Operations Manager* MSD 119,371 137,800 156,229

94 MONTECITO WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICTS

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 250 of 251



Position Title/Job Classification

MSD

Chief Plant Operator*

Engineering Manager* MSD
Collections & Maintenance Superintendent* MSD
Business Manager & Assistant Secretary MWD
Engineering Manager MWD

Assistant General Manager/ Engineering Manager MWD

Montecito Sanitary District
Special Board Meeting June 15, 2023
Page 251 of 251

SPECIAL DISTRICT COLLABORATION AND CONSOLIDATION STUDY

Annualized Salaries

126,318
123,510
130,187
128,662
134,398
162,662

139,932
142,584
144,217
148,539
155,160
187,790

153,546
161,658
158,246
168,415
175,922
212,919

95



	_Board Packet TOC 2023.06.15
	3A1. Staff Report - Discussion of Next Steps on MSD-MWD Draft Consolidation Report jw
	MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT

	3A2. MSD-MWD Collaboration and Consolidation Study - DRAFT
	3A3. Montecito Draft ... Presentation 05.02
	3A4. Raftelis Cost Memo 03.01.23



